
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Audit Committee  

   

Date: MONDAY, 28 JUNE 2010 
 

Time: 5.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
Members on the Committee 
 
John Morley (Chairman) 
George Cooper 
Phoday Jarjussey (Labour Lead) 
Richard Lewis 
Raymond Graham 
 

  
Published: 18 June 2010 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact:  Khalid Ahmed 
Tel: 01895 250833 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: kahmed@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=256&MId=661&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    

 



 

 
This Committee 

 
This Committee will be responsible for ensuring that the financial 
management of the Council is adequate and effective and that the Council 
has a sound system of internal control. This Committee will also consider risk 
management issues and performance reports.  

 
 



 

Terms of Reference 
 

The Constitution defines the terms of reference for the Audit Committee as: 
 
 Statement of Purpose 

 
The purpose of Audit Committee is to: 
 
• provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the Council’s risk 

management framework and the associated control environment 
• provide independent scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial 

performance to the extent that it affects the authority’s exposure to risk and 
weakens the control environment 

• oversee the financial reporting process. 
 
 
 
Audit Activity 
  
The Audit Committee will: 
 
1. Approve but not direct Internal Audit’s strategy and plans, ensuring that work 

is planned with due regard to risk, materiality and coverage. This will not 
prevent Cabinet directing internal audit to review a particular matter. 

 
2. Review the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report and Opinion and 

Summary of Internal Audit Activity (actual and proposed) and the level of 
assurance this can give over the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements. 

 
3. Review summaries of Internal Audit reports and the main recommendations 

arising. 
 
4. Review a report from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not 

implemented within a reasonable timescale. 
 
5. Consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the 

providers of internal audit services. 
 
6. Receive and consider the External Auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports 

and the report to those charged with governance. 
 
7. Monitor management action in response to issues raised by  External Audit. 
 
8. Receive and consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor. 
 
9. Comment on the scope and depth of External Audit work and ensure that it 

gives value for money. 



 

 
10. Liaise with the Audit Commission over the appointment of the Council’s 

External Auditor. 
 
11. Commission work from Internal and External Audit, following a formal request 

by the Committee to and a joint decision from the Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for Finance & Business Services. 

 
12. Ensure that there are effective arrangements for ensuring liaison between 

Internal and External audit. 
 
 
Regulatory Framework 
  
The Audit Committee will:  
 
1. Maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of contract 

procedure rules, financial regulations and codes of conduct and behaviour.  
And, where necessary, bring proposals to the Cabinet and/or Council for their 
development. 

 
2. Review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive or a Director, or any 

Council body. 
 
3. Approve and regularly review the authority’s risk management arrangements, 

including regularly reviewing the corporate risk  register and seeking 
assurances that action is being taken on risk related issues.  

 
4. Review and monitor Council policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’ and anti-

fraud and anti-corruption strategy and the Council’s complaints process. 
 
5. Oversee the production of the authority’s Statement of Internal Control and 

recommend its adoption. 
 
6. Review the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and agree 

necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 
 
7. Consider the Council’s compliance with its own and other published 

standards and controls. 
 
 
Accounts 
  
The Audit Committee will: 
 
1. Review and approve the annual statement of accounts.  Specifically, to 

consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and 



 

whether there are concerns arising from financial statements or from the 
auditor that need to be brought to the attention of the Council. 

 
2. Consider the External Auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 
 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

1 Apologies for absence and to report the presence of any substitute members 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting 

3 Minutes of previous meetings - 11 March and 13 May 2010 (Page 1) 

4 Exclusion of Press and Public  

 To confirm that all items marked Part I will be considered in public and that any 
items marked Part II will be considered in private.  

5 Approval of the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts (Page 13) 

6 Indicative Stage Use of Resources Report (Page 117) 

7 Head of Audit Annual Assurance Statement (Page 151) 

8 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Systems of Internal Audit (Page 185) 

9 Fraud Awareness Survey 2010 (Page 191) 

10 Consolidated Fraud Report (Page 201) 

11 Review Progress on Implementing Actions Arising from Committee Self 
Assessment (Page 207) 

12 Update on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) (Page 215) 

13 Audit Committee Work Programme (Page 217) 

14 Report to Council on Work of Audit Committee (Page 221) 

15 Changing Legislation and Current Issues  

 • Audit Commission – The National Fraud Initiative 2008/9 
• CIPFA – Leading in Hard Times, Guidance for everyone involved in the 

leadership of public services 
• CIPFA / SOLACE – After the downturn, managing a significant and 

sustained adjustment in public sector funding.  

16 Key Financial Audit Risk Relating to the Valuation of Icelandic Investments (Page 
227) 

17 Internal Audit Progress Report (Page 237) 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Audit Committee 
 
11 March 2010 
 
Minutes 
 

 

  
 Independent Member: 

John Morley (Chairman) 
 
Members Present: 
Councillors George Cooper, Tony Eginton, Liz Kemp and Mary O’Connor. 
 
Also Present: 
Councillors Phoday Jarjussey and Mo Khursheed.  
 
Apologies: 
None 

 
Officers Present: 
Sarah Harty (Head of Resources, Policy and Performance, Education and 
Children Services), David Kidner (Interim Manager of Hillingdon Grid for 
Learning (HGfL) Education and Children’s Services), Nancy Le Roux (Senior 
Finance Manager – Corporate Finance), Rob Mackenzie-Wilson (Policy Officer, 
Deputy Chief Executive’s Office), Christopher Neale (Director of Finance & 
Resources), Chris Spencer (Director of Education and Children’s Services), 
Helen Taylor (Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Governance), Steve Wilkins 
(Risk & Insurance Manager), (Head of Accountancy Services) and Khalid 
Ahmed (Democratic Services Manager). 
 
Others Present: 
Paul Hutt (Deloitte) and Gus Miah (Deloitte) 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



42. Declarations of Interest:  
 
John Morley and Councillor Liz Kemp declared Personal Interests in Agenda 
Item 10 – Internal Audit Operational Plan as they were Members of the Board of 
Hillingdon Homes. They both remained in the room and took part in discussions 
on the item. 
 
Councillor George Cooper declared Personal Interests in Agenda Item 8 – 
Internal Audit Progress Report as he was a Governor of St Mary’s School, and 
in Agenda Item 5 – Deloitte – 2009/10 – Annual Audit Plan, as he was a 
Member of the Pensions Committee. He remained in the room and took part in 
discussions on the items. 
 
Councillor Tony Eginton declared a Personal Interest In Agenda Item 8 – 
Internal Audit Progress Report as he was a Governor of Hillside Junior School 
and Minet Nursery and Infant School. In addition his wife was a Governor at 
Harlyn Primary School. He left the room and did not participate in discussion on 
the item. 
 
Councillor Mary O’Connor declared a Personal Interest in Agenda Item 8 – 
Internal Audit Progress Report as she was a Governor of Botwell School and 
Moorcroft School.  She remained in the room and took part in discussions on the 
item. 
 

  
43. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2009 

 
Agreed as an accurate record. 
 
[During discussion on the item, Councillor Eginton advised the Committee that 
he would be resigning as a Member of the Committee. Councillor Eginton left 
the meeting at this point.]     
 

44. Exclusion of the press and public:  
 
It was agreed that Items 16, 17 and 18 be considered in private. 
 

45. Deloitte – 2009/10 – Annual Audit Plan 
  
Paul Hutt and Gus Miah from Deloitte attended the meeting 
and introduced the report to Members. 
 
Members were informed that the report set out the initial plans 
for the audit of the Statement of Accounts 2009/10. The plan 
highlighted the key financial and non-financial audit risks which 
were:- 
 
Financial risks  

• Grant income recognition 
• Property valuations 
• Valuation of Icelandic Investments 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



• Pension liability assumptions 
• Accounting for local taxes 
• Bad debt provisions 

 
Non-Financial risks 

• Contract procurement 
• Partnership working 

 
In addition the report set out an audit plan for the Pension Fund 
audit which highlighted three risks:- 

• Contributions 
• Benefits 
• Financial instruments 

 
Issues raised by Members were:- 
 

• An update report be submitted to the next meeting of 
this Committee on the key financial audit risk relating to 
the valuation of Icelandic investments 

• In relation to Contract Procurement and the comment 
that this was considered a wider risk across the Council, 
the Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Governance 
reported that a number of audits had been undertaken 
and the arrangements around procurement were 
complex 

• The next Pensions Committee was prior to the next 
meeting of this Committee which would mean the 
Pension Fund Annual Report would be agreed before 
this Committee received it       

 
Resolved -      

 
1. That the information contained in the report be noted. 

 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte 

46. Deloitte – Annual Grant Audit Letter 
 
Members were informed that a report by the Audit Commission 
in September 2009 recommended that auditors should report 
annually to those charged with governance in order to highlight 
the errors, adjustments and qualifications arising in claims and 
returns in relation to grants. 
 
There had been a total of 9 grant claims which had been 
audited. Deloitte reported that all claims had been submitted on 
time and a number of non significant adjustments had been 
made to five of the grant claims. Only one grant claim had been 
given a qualification letter which was a significant improvement 
on last year which demonstrated the efforts of the Finance 
Team. 
 
An Issue raised by Members was in relation to Deloitte’s testing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



of the Housing and Council Tax Benefits Scheme grant and the 
issuing of a qualification letter, Members were informed that an 
error of £224.91 had been identified in relation to one claim. 
This was taken from a sample of up to 100 where 3 or 4 errors 
would be found. This was an immaterial sum on which to base 
a qualification but Deloitte confirmed that qualification in this 
context was just a record of errors found and not the same as a 
set of qualified accounts.  
 
Resolved –  
 

1. That the information contained in the report be noted and 
Internal Audit officers be congratulated for their improved 
performance in relation to grant claims.       

 

Action By 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Taylor 
 
 
 

47. Delivering the Annual Governance Statement  
 
Members were informed that the Council was rolling forward 
the existing framework which had been developed over the 
past two years to evaluate the management of internal 
controls, risk and control assurances across all services. The 
Corporate Governance Working Group would provide the 
leadership and support to compile the Statement.   
 
Resolved –  
 

1. That the information contained in the report be noted.      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48. Internal Audit Progress Report  
 
The report provided Members with details of the summary of 
Internal Audit activity for the period to 19 February 2010. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Governance reported 
there was no cause for concern at this time with the levels of 
assurance. There was one audit with limited assurance which 
related to the Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
application where weaknesses were identified in relation to 
password controls. Plans were in place to address these 
weaknesses. 
 
Areas discussed included:- 
 

• School audits – Haydon Secondary School was 
limited assurance. The Head of Internal Audit and 
Corporate Governance would send Members details 
of the audit on this school 

• School audits – Holy Trinity and Bourne Primary had 
achieved Financial Management in Schools Standard, 
which had to be met every 3 years 

• School audits – Members noted the full assurance 
level which Queensmead Secondary School had 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Taylor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



achieved. 
• Follow up audits – Website Content Management – 

The outstanding recommendation was partially 
completed and this related to the strategy for 
standardised access. Members asked that if this 
outstanding recommendation had not been 
implemented before the next meeting, that officers be 
asked to attend to provide further details and target 
dates for completion  

 
Members were reminded that at their last meeting it was 
agreed that a representative from Hillingdon Grid for Learning 
(HGfL) be invited to provide reassurance on outstanding 
recommendations. The Director of Education and Children’s 
Services, the Head of Resources, Policy and Performance, 
Education and Children Services and the Interim Manager of 
HGfL  attended the meeting to provide Members with details of 
progress made.  
 
Most of the outstanding recommendations contained in the 
action plan had been implemented but there were still 
concerns around procurement. Monthly meetings were taking 
place with the Corporate Procurement Board, but the broader 
remit was looking at value for money. The Head of Internal 
Audit and Corporate Governance reported that a formal follow 
up audit would take place. Members thanked officers of 
Education and Children’s Services for attending the meeting 
and it was agreed that sufficient re-assurance had been given 
that outstanding recommendations should be implemented.  
 
Resolved- 

 
1. That the in-year progress against the Internal Audit Plan 

for 2009-10, and the updated position of those audits 
undertaken in 2007-8 and 2008-9 be noted and the 
Internal Audit Team be thanked for all their efforts and 
the results they have achieved.    

   

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
Helen Taylor 

49. Internal Audit Strategy 
 
Members were informed that the report set out the strategy for 
delivery and development of the Internal Audit Service 2010-11 
and the associated Internal Audit Plan. This detailed how the 
service would be delivered, the assurance that it would provide 
and how the Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Governance 
would contribute to corporate governance arrangements, risk 
management processes and key internal control systems. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Governance reported 
that the audit of IT systems would continue to be contracted out 
to an outside contractor. A retender of the contract was 
currently underway which would be in place before the start of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



the new financial year.  
 
Reference was made to the Internal Audit team now being fully 
staffed and officers were asked to look at again the 
descriptions of the skills in the team detailed on page 122 of 
the agenda.   
 
Resolved- 

 
1.   That approval be given to the internal audit strategy. 

 

Action By: 
 
Helen Taylor 

50. Internal Audit Operational Plan 2010-11  
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government required the Head of Internal Audit and Corporate 
Governance to produce a risk based plan which was fixed for 
no longer than a year and was designed to implement the Audit 
Strategy. 
 
Reference was made to the planned audit work for the year but 
changes in service delivery arising from the Business 
Improvement Delivery process would mean that there was a 
much greater likelihood that audits would be added or deleted 
than there had been in previous years. Members were 
informed that Housing Management would be brought back 
into the Council. Hillingdon Homes’ internal audit services were 
currently provided by Mazars and the Head of Internal Audit 
and Corporate Governance was asked to work closely with the 
Director of Finance of Hillingdon Homes to ensure a smooth 
transition. 
 
Discussion took place on Human Resources – CRB checks 
and re-checks. Some Members believed there was a possibility 
that documentation provided to support CRB checks was held 
for longer than it should be under regulations. The Head of 
Internal Audit and Corporate Governance undertook to clarify 
the procedure with HR.      
 
Resolved- 

 
1.  That approval be given to the Internal Audit Operational 

Plan 2010-11 and the comments made be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Taylor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Taylor 

51. International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
 
Members were reassured that the Council was on track to 
implement the transition to report its Statement of Accounts 
under the IFRS based Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting. 
 
Resolved –  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
1. That the report be noted and consideration be given to 

providing customised training to newly appointed 
Members at an appropriate time. 

 

Action By: 

40. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment 
Strategy 2010-11 To 2012-13 
 
Members were informed that the Treasury Management 
Strategy was agreed by Council as part of the Budget setting 
process in February and it was brought to this Committee to 
allow greater scrutiny of the strategy. 
 
The strategy for 2010/11 had been written with the assistance 
of Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Advisors and the strategy 
had been developed to increase the range of permitted 
investment vehicles to allow greater diversification whilst 
maintaining a high degree of caution. 
 
Reference was made to the impact of interest on balances and 
Members were informed that this Council had not been too 
reliant on high interest returns which meant there had not been 
a huge impact during this difficult economic period. The Council 
had spent on capital developments rather than looking for 
active financial management opportunities. 
 
Members discussed the role of this Committee in scrutinising 
the strategies and it was felt it would be more beneficial for this 
Committee to consider the strategies before they were agreed 
by the Council. It was agreed that a representative from 
Arlingclose Ltd be invited to the December 2010 meeting of this 
Committee to enable Members to be provided with details of 
the strategies before they were agreed by Council.  
            
Resolved -      

 
1. That the information contained in the report be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nancy Le 
Roux 

41. Budget Setting Process 
 
Members were reminded that at the last meeting of this 
Committee a request was made for a report to be submitted 
providing details on the budget setting process within the 
Council. An informative report was considered which gave 
Members assurances that the budget setting process was 
subject to sufficient scrutiny elsewhere within the Council. 
 
Resolved –  
 

1.  That the information contained in the report be noted and 
the report be included in the information pack which was 
given to new Members of this Committee.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen Taylor 
 
 

Page 7



 Action By: 
42. Review of Internal Audit Terms of Reference 

 
Minor amendments were suggested to the Internal Audit Terms 
of Reference and these were noted. 
 

 

43. Changing Legislation and Current Issues 
 
Members were informed that this year’s Internal Audit review 
would be carried out by means of a self review. A report would 
be submitted to the Committee for information. 
 

 

44. Balances and Reserves Statement 2010/11 
 
The report on this item was included in Part II as it contained 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information) and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighed the public interest in disclosing it 
(exempt information under paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
as amended. 
 
Members were provided with details on the Council’s approach 
to management and measurement of the requirement to hold 
balances and reserves.   
 
Resolved – 

 
1.  That the information contained in the report be noted. 

 

 

45. Risk Management Report 
 
The report on this item was included in Part II as it contained 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information) and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighed the public interest in disclosing it 
(exempt information under paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
as amended. 
 
The report provided details of the reporting arrangements in 
place for the most significant risks identified by officers and the 
most recent quarterly report. 
 
Resolved – 

 
1.  That the information contained in the report be noted. 

 
 
 

 

Page 8



46. Internal Audit Progress Report 
 
The report on this item was included in Part II as it contained 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information) and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighed the public interest in disclosing it 
(exempt information under paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
as amended. 
 
Consideration was given to a progress report on four Internal 
Investigations. 
  
Resolved – 

 
1.  That the information contained in the report be noted. 

 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Meeting closed at: 6.55pm  
Next meeting: 28 June 2010 at 5.00pm 
 

 

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833. Circulation of these 
minutes are to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 1 - 

Minutes 
 
Audit Committee 
13 May 2010  
Meeting held at the Civic Centre, Uxbridge 
 

 

 
 Committee Members Present: 

George Cooper, Phoday Jarjussey, Richard Lewis and Raymond Graham. 
 
Officers Present: 
Lloyd White and Nikki Stubbs. 
 

1. Election of Chairman 
 
Resolved –  
That Mr John Morley be elected Chairman of the Committee for 
the ensuing municipal year. 
 

 

 Meeting closed at: 8.58pm  
Next meeting: 28 June 2010  
 

 
  

 
These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

APPROVAL OF THE 2009/10 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 

Contact Officers: Harry Lawson & Nancy Leroux 
Telephone: 01895 556578 

 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
The report presents the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts for approval by the Audit 
Committee as required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003.  It sets out the 
requirement for members to approve the Statement of Accounts and provides an update 
on key technical changes and the key issues raised in the Council’s accounts for 2009/10. 
The Pension Fund accounts from part of these accounts, whilst the Pension Fund Annual 
Report has been approved by Pensions Committee on 23 June 2010. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Committee approves the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31 
March 2010. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Requirement for Approval 
 
The Director of Finance & Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts that present fairly the financial position of the authority at the 
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2010.  The 
2009/10 accounts were released by the Director of Finance & Resources for approval by 
the Audit Committee on 17 June 2010. 
 
By formally approving the accounts the Audit Committee is demonstrating their ownership 
of the accounting statements and their confidence in the process by which the accounting 
records are maintained and the statements prepared.  
 
Audit Committee, under its terms of reference, have been tasked to review, challenge and 
approve the annual Statement of Accounts.   
 
The draft Statement of Accounts for 2009/10 is attached to this report.  The accounts take 
the form as prescribed in the Statement of Recommended Practice for local authority 
accounting. 
 
Although the pension fund accounts form part of the Council’s main accounting 
statements, the pension fund is subject to a separate audit.  The Pension Fund Annual 
Report has been approved by the Pensions Committee on 23 June 2010. 
 
Technical Changes to the Accounts 
 
2009/10 is the last year for Local Authority accounts to be prepared under the SORP prior 
to full IFRS adoption in 2010/11. Consequently changes have been kept to a minimum for 
this year and include:- 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

• Collection Fund. Non Domestic Rates (Business Rates) are now accounted on 
an ‘agency’ basis to reflect the fact that a billing authority is merely collecting 
these rates to passport straight to central government. This removes any 
individual NNDR debtors or creditors from the Council’s balance sheet, leaving 
only the amount still payable to central government on 31 March 2010.  
The Council Tax Income and Expenditure account is adjusted to reflect council 
tax income on an accruals basis with the balance sheet adjusted to reflect the 
agency nature of deficits / surpluses pertaining to the GLA. Previously this was 
attributable to the billing authority. 
 

• Senior Officer Remuneration. Greater detailed disclosure is now required for 
senior officers’ remuneration published alongside posts considered to be the 
equivalent of a listed company board. 

 
• Removal of Notes. A few notes to the accounts are no longer required to be 

published including Building Control, S137 Expenditure and publicity notes. 
 

• IFRIC12. Early implementation of IFRS regarding the accounting treatment of 
PFI schemes. Hillingdon already had the one PFI scheme it possesses on its 
balance sheet. 

 
• True and Fair. The accounts now must give a ‘true and fair’ view of the Council’s 

financial position rather than ‘presents fairly’ 
 
 
Key Movements in the Accounts 
 

• A revenue surplus of £2,477k was achieved, however much of this is attributable 
to crediting revenue with amounts previously lying on the balance sheet. 

 
• The deficit shown on the face of the Income and Expenditure account of 

£125,690k is another ‘accounting treatment’ loss attributable to significant 
downward revaluation of the Council’s schools. Such losses would normally be 
offset by historic revaluation gains not yet realised, however the Revaluation 
Reserve only came into existence for local authorities in 2007 and so does not 
contain previous gains to which to charge any impairments. 

 
• Liabilities related to the pension scheme grew by a further £204million. These are 

actuarial losses and do not represent the actual change in liabilities of the fund 
which actually increased in value by £145.4million. The actuarial loss is 
somewhat counter intuitive in that whilst 2009/10 saw the value of investments 
increase significantly, assumptions around future inflation, longevity and the use 
of historically low Gilt-based rates to determine the discount rate, saw the future 
liabilities of the fund rise significantly also. 

 
• As a result of these factors the Council’s net worth fell from £960,185k to 

£651,078k. 
 

• The HRA were able to contribute £1,484k to its reserves. 
 

Page 14



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

 
 
 
 
Audit of the Accounts and Public Inspection 
 
The audit of the accounts by Hillingdon’s external auditor, Deloitte, is due to start at the 
beginning of July and will be completed during the summer of 2010.  The deadline for 
publishing the audited accounts is 30 September 2010 and the auditor’s findings are due 
to be reported to Audit Committee in September 2010. 
 
The report will include any changes that are made to the accounts between approval and 
the final published audited version that are deemed to be ‘non-trifling’; that is adjustments 
of £120k or more.  It will also highlight any control issues found and provides an opinion of 
on the Council’s value for money. 
 
The statutory inspection period for the 2009/10 accounts will be 5 July to 30 July 2010. 
 
Committee Action 
 
Committee is requested to approve the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts after which the 
Chairman is asked to sign and date the Statement of Accounts to formally complete the 
Council’s approval of the accounts. 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



U
na
ud
ite
d

Statement of Accounts 
for the year to 31 March 2010 

Page 17



U
na
ud
ite
d

1

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Statement of Accounts for the Year ended 31 March 2010 

Contents Page 

1 Leader's Statement 2

2 Explanatory Foreword 3

3 Summary of the Authority's Financial Performance 5

4 Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 12 

5 Audit Certificate and Opinion 13

6 Statement of Accounting Policies 17

7 Income and Expenditure Account 27

8 Statement Of The Movement On The General Fund 28

9 Reconciliation Of The Movement On The General Fund 29 

10 Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 30

11 Balance Sheet 31

12 Cash Flow Statement 32

13 Notes to Main Financial Statements 33

14 Housing Revenue Account and Notes 66

15 Collection Fund Account and Notes 69

16 Group Accounts and Notes 72

17 Pension Fund Accounts 81

18 Annual Governance Statement 87

19 Glossary 94

Page 18



U
na
ud
ite
d

2

1. Leader’s Statement 

Introduction by Councillor Ray Puddifoot, Leader of the Council 

Welcome to the London Borough of Hillingdon’s Statement of Accounts for 2009/10.  This statement 
sets out how the Council spent your money and gives details about the Council’s financial position.  

Page 19



U
na
ud
ite
d

3

2. Explanatory Foreword 

This document sets out the annual accounts of the London Borough of Hillingdon for the year ended 31 
March 2010. The accounts are in the format for local authority accounts set by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy. 

The purpose of this foreword is to provide a guide to the most significant matters reported in the 
financial statements. Included are a number of technical terms that are specific to local government 
finance and a glossary has been provided on page 94 to assist the understanding of the financial 
statements.

The core accounting statements comprise: 

The Income and Expenditure Account 

This reports the net cost for the year of all the functions for which the authority is responsible, and 
demonstrates how that cost has been financed from general government grants and income from 
taxpayers. The surplus or deficit on this account represents the amount by which income is greater than 
or less than expenditure. Both income and expenditure are measured using essentially the same 
accounting conventions, UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (UK GAAP), which a large 
unlisted company would use in preparing its accounts. 

The Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance 

This reports items of income and expenditure that are required respectively to be credited or charged to 
the General Fund Balance by statute or non-statutory practices other than in accordance with UK 
GAAP. These are items that are taken into account in determining the Council’s budget requirement 
and its Council Tax demand. 

The Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 

This reports all the gains and losses experienced by a local authority in addition to those reflected in the 
Income and Expenditure Account. It will include, for example, gains on revaluations of fixed assets and 
pensions actuarial gains and losses. 

The Balance Sheet 

This shows the balances and reserves at the Council’s disposal at the year-end, together with its long-
term indebtedness, the net current assets employed in its operations and summarised information on 
the fixed assets held. It excludes funds held in trust for others and the Pension Fund. 

The Cash Flow Statement 

This summarises the cash movements arising from both revenue and capital transactions with third 
parties. It excludes funds held in trust for others and the Pension Fund. 

The supplementary accounting statements comprise: 

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Income and Expenditure Account 

There is a statutory duty to account separately for local authority housing provision. The HRA Income 
and Expenditure Account shows in detail the Income and Expenditure on HRA services included in the 
whole authority Income and Expenditure Account. It includes the major elements of Council housing 

Page 20



U
na
ud
ite
d

4

revenue expenditure on maintenance, administration, and capital financing costs, and major income 
sources such as rents and other income. 

The Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance 

This shows how the HRA Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit for the year reconciles to 
the movement on the Housing Revenue Account balance for the year. 

The Collection Fund Revenue Account 

The Collection Fund is a separate account into which amounts raised from local taxation are paid. From 
this, the amounts due to preceptors including the Council itself are paid. This account also collects and 
distributes the national business rates pool, which the Council collects on behalf of central government. 

The Pension Fund Accounts 

These show contributions to the Council’s Pension Fund for employees during 2009/10, together with 
the pensions and other benefits paid from it, movements in investments during the year and the 
financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2010. The accounts do not include liabilities to pay 
pensions and benefits after that date.  

The document also includes the following: 

Statement of Accounting Policies 

The accounts can be properly appreciated only if the policies that have been followed in dealing with 
material items are understood. The Statement of Accounting Policies and the various notes to the 
accounting statements therefore form an integral part of the accounts. There is also a glossary of terms 
and abbreviations at the end of this document. 

The Annual Governance Statement 

This statement is required under the CIPFA/SOLACE framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government’. This sets out the systems, processes, culture and values, by which the Council is 
directed and controlled, and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with, and leads the 
community. The framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives 
and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost-effective services. 

Glossary of Terms 

The Glossary provides a definition of key terms used to aid understanding the Accounting Statements. 

Page 21



U
na
ud
ite
d

5

3. Summary of the Authority’s Financial Performance 

Summary 

Following the dramatic, almost unprecedented events in the global economy that characterised the 
financial year to 31 March 2009, the 2009/10 financial year began with the economy close to the lowest 
point of the recession.  This continued to have a significant impact on the finances of the Council. 

The principal impacts of the recession had already been experienced by the Council in 2008/09, and 
are documented in our Statement of Accounts for the year to 31 March 2009.  These effects continued 
into 2009/10, and the Council suffered depressed income from local land charges, development control, 
building control, interest receivable from short-term deposits of Council funds, and capital receipts due 
to unfavourable market conditions for the disposal of property interests. 

The Council was prepared for new effects of the recession to emerge during the year.  However, as the 
year progressed the adverse effects of the recession began to be countered by new opportunities.  The 
sharp decline in inflation towards the end of 2008/09 turned into deflation in the economy in the first half 
of 2009/10, which had a dampening effect on the Council’s costs, with pay inflation being below that 
assumed at the time of setting the 2009/10 budget.  The global re-adjustments to the supply and 
demand of capital, meant that the Council was able to take advantage of opportunities in the first 
quarter of 2009/10 to re-finance long term debt at more favourable rates, leading to savings on 
borrowing costs. 

Therefore, by the end of 2009/10 the Council had fully adjusted to the impact of the recession.  An 
overall underspend against the General Fund revenue budget allowed reserves to be increased, 
leaving the Council well placed to build upon emerging signs of recovery in the economy reported in the 
final quarter of the year. 

The Council achieved another success in the final quarter of 2009/10 in our long-running campaign to 
secure a fair funding settlement from the UK Border Agency for the costs of services to unaccompanied 
asylum seeking children that arrive in the borough through Heathrow airport.  Additional grant of £1.8 
million for the 2008/09 and 2009/10 financial years was secured as a result of lobbying together with 
other authorities affected by this issue.  The offer of increased funding also applies to the 2010/11 
financial year and beyond, but is not yet sufficient to deliver a permanent funding settlement that takes 
this burden away from local Council Tax payers, who again contributed around £2 million to the cost of 
these services in 2009/10. 

This strengthened financial position meant that the Council was able to set a zero increase in Council 
Tax for 2010/11 for the second successive year for all residents and the third successive year for over 
65s, whilst continuing to invest in and deliver improved services to residents.  The capital programme 
outturn for the year included significant expenditure on two key new leisure facilities in the borough, as 
well as an innovative library refurbishment programme, investment in schools, decent homes and 
environmental improvements. 

Underpinning all of this improvement had been a continual focus on efficiency in service delivery.  A 
new business transformation programme – Business Improvement Delivery – has been developed 
during the year as part of the Hillingdon Improvement Programme, and is set to build further on the £13 
million of savings and efficiencies delivered through the previous programme of internal service 
reviews.

These achievements are set out in more detail in the following sections. 

Page 22



U
na
ud
ite
d

6

Revenue Budget 

Hillingdon’s General Fund net budget requirement for 2009/10 was set at £189.2 million.  Both the 
Council’s element of the Council Tax and the Greater London Authority precept were frozen at the 
2008/09 level, meaning that there was a zero ‘doorstep’ increase in the local Council Tax. 

Throughout 2009/10 the Council’s decision-making Cabinet received reports each month showing 
forecast variances against the main service budgets.  These reports highlighted where corrective action 
was to be taken to ensure plans were achieved and spending kept within approved levels.  The outturn 
for the year was £186.8 million, which compared to the revised budget showed an under spend of £5 
million (after taking into account the budgeted £2.6 million of drawings from balances for the year). 

The final outturn position for the General Fund revenue budget by Council department is set out in the 
following table: 

Table: General Fund Outturn 2009/10 
Service Department Revised

Budget
2009/10
(£000s)

Actual
Outturn
2009/10
(£000s)

Outturn
Variance
2009/10
(£000s)

Adult Social Care Health & Housing 91,879 91,493 (386) 
Education & Children’s Services 158,696 157,290 (1,406) 
Environment & Consumer Protection 37,351 37,483 132 
Planning & Community Services 13,774 13,716 (58) 
Central Services (Deputy Chief Executive’s / 
Finance & Resources) 

15,425 13,437 (1,988) 

Corporately Held Funds & Contingencies 1,213 0 (1,213)
Sub-total - Service Budgets 318,338 313,419 (4,919) 
Asset Management Revenue Account (130,764) (130,763) 1 
Appropriation to FRS 17 Pensions Reserve 9,091 9,091 0
Interest & Investment Income 7,204 7,087 (117) 
Corporate Government Grants (12,058) (12,066) (8) 
Contribution to / (from) Balances (2,566) 2,477 5,043 
Budget Requirement 189,245 189,245 0

The main variances from the revised budget were: 

Adult Social Care, Health and Housing 

 Significant variances in demand-led budgets between the major client groups for Adult Social 
Care, with excess demand for Older People’s Services (£0.9 million) and Mental Health 
Services (£0.5 million) offset by lower than expected demand for Learning Disability Services 
(£0.9 million) and Physical & Sensory Services (£0.4 million) producing a balanced outturn 
overall

 Improvement arising from the finalisation of the 2007/08 housing benefit grant claim as 
compared to the assumed position in last year’s accounts, contributing to an aggregate 
underspend on the benefits service of £0.4 million 

Education and Children’s Services 

 Schools collectively managed their net expenditure within individual budgets leading to an 
increase in aggregate schools balances (£0.4 million) 

 The Council also managed net expenditure on its retained share of the schools budget within 
budget leading to an increase in the earmarked reserve held for unused ring fenced Dedicated 
Schools Grant (£0.5 million) 

 Use of earmarked reserves to meet planned redundancy costs (£0.2 million) 

Page 23



U
na
ud
ite
d

7

 Management of demand for care placements enabling some high-cost placements to be 
deferred into the new financial year (£0.1 million) 

 Shortfall on funding of services to asylum seekers for the year (£1.1 million) 
 Retrospective funding of asylum services received for previous years (£1.3 million) 

Environment and Consumer Protection  

Greater than planned activity levels in the street cleansing and recycling services leading to 
increased costs (£0.2 million) 
Reduced charges from the waste disposal authority due to lower residual waste tonnages (£0.4 
million)
Lower than expected reduction in trade waste volumes leading to over-achievement of income 
target (£0.2 million) 
Lower than planned absorption of costs of Harlington Road Depot into other service budgets 
due to reduced intensity of depot usage (£0.2 million) 
Greater than planned activity levels in the Streets Ahead Week of Action programme leading to 
increased costs (£0.2 million)

Planning and Community Services 

 Additional costs incurred to maintain management arrangements across the department and 
underachievement of income targets especially for the arts service (£0.2 million) 

 Policy decision not to fully commit expenditure from the Community Safety Fund (£0.2 million) 

Central Services 

 Underachievement of rent income targets from commercial property due to the continuing 
impact of the recession (£0.1 million) 

 Reduced income from schools and other external parties for hire and services related to the 
Council’s facilities management (£0.1 million) 

 Rebates secured on the Council’s main agency staff contract (£0.2 million) 
 Underspend on the Leader’s Initiative carried forward in general reserves (£0.1 million) 
 Ward Budget Initiative expenditure funded from accumulated balances (£0.4 million) 
 Unapplied grants and contributions were used to fund general Council expenditure (£2.3 million) 

Capital Spending in 2009/10 

Capital expenditure is expenditure on the purchase, improvement or enhancement of assets, the 
benefit of which impacts for longer than the year in which the expenditure was incurred. Capital 
spending for the year was £72.1m (£70.1m in 2008/09). This expenditure was financed from various 
sources including capital receipts (£1.4m), Housing revenue contributions (£10.2m), government grants 
(£33.8m), Section 106 (£0.9m) and other third party contributions (£2.6m).  

Major capital schemes in 2009 included the completion of Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Complex, 
Charville Young People’s Centre, various Children’s Centres around the borough, Breakspear 
Crematorium investment project, investment in public conveniences including composting toilets at 
allotments, improvements to the Cedars and Grainges car parks, investment in the borough libraries 
and refurbishment of a youth bus. Construction of a new leisure centre at Botwell Green has continued, 
and in 2009 two new young people’s centres and the Merrifield Centre have been adapted to facilitate 
short breaks for disabled children.  

Section 106 has been invested in ongoing Longmead and Pinkwell School expansions, town centre 
initiatives and the Skidz vehicle workshops at West Drayton Young People’s Centre. 

The Local Government Act 2003 introduced the prudential code whereby the Council is responsible for 
deciding its own level of affordable borrowing. In doing so capital investment plans have to be 
affordable, prudent and sustainable. To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these objectives a 

Page 24



U
na
ud
ite
d

8

range of prudential indicators are set annually and performance against these indicators is monitored 
regularly.

During 2009/10 the Council required unsupported borrowing of £22.2m to finance the capital 
programme.  

The tables below show how the 2009/10 Capital Programme was financed and which services received 
Capital investment. 

Capital Financing 2009/2010

Grants
47%

HRA (inc MRA)
14%

Unsupported
31%

Capital 
Receipts

2%

Section 106 
and other 

contributions
6%

Capital Expenditure 2009/10

Major 
Construction 

Projects
36%

Education & 
Children's 
Services

27%

Finance & 
Resources

3%

Deputy Chief 
Executive

2%

Planning & 
Community 

Services
3%

Adult Social 
Care, Health & 

Housing
6%

HRA
13%

Environment & 
Consumer 
Protection

10%

Page 25



U
na
ud
ite
d

9

Reserves

These are set aside to cover unexpected expenditure, for instance additional costs arising from such 
things as stormy weather or other business risks. Each year the Director of Finance reviews the level of 
the general reserve to ensure it is adequate, as there are restrictions on the Council’s ability to borrow 
to support revenue expenditure. At the time of budget setting for 2009/10 it was assessed that the 
appropriate level of reserves needed to support the continuation of Hillingdon’s services was between 
£10m and £17m. Four years ago the general reserve had fallen to an unacceptably low level following 
retrospective charges in Central Government asylum grants and considerable effort has been placed 
on securing an increase. The general reserve for non-schools services now stands at £18.9m. 

Schools also hold reserves for similar purposes and to meet future project expenditure. These are 
committed to be spent on the education service. At 31 March 2010 school reserves amounted to 
£11.9m. This is approximately 7% of schools expenditure.  

In addition, the Council holds a number of earmarked reserves. This is money that has been set-aside 
for specific purposes most of which are statutory. 

Treasury Management  

During 2009/10 the main focus for Treasury Management was to reduce the risk within the investment 
portfolio and to minimise borrowing costs. This was achieved by utilising investment balances to 
prematurely redeem loans and facilitate debt rescheduling.  

The prevailing market conditions for the financial year forced short-term interest rates to historic lows 
however conversely there was little movement in longer-term rates. The strategy applied by the Council 
was to reduce investment holdings by using liquid funds to prematurely redeem long-term debt. This 
approach not only lessened investment exposure but also lowered borrowing costs. In addition the year 
saw increased debt restructuring with the maturity profile of the portfolio shortened to take advantage of 
lower rates available at the short end of the investment curve.  

The Council achieved an average rate of return on its investments of 1.74% and earned interest of 
£1.13m (5.04% at £5.68m 2008/09). Outstanding debt was reduced by £25.4m with a further £60.0m 
being restructured. These actions had a material impact on costs with interest payments on outstanding 
loans totalling £6.87m at an average rate paid of 3.94%. (£9.36m at 4.24% 2008/09) 

The administration of Heritable Bank is proceeding as planned and during 2009/10 dividends were 
received of £5.28m. The latest estimate based on winding up the bank by 2012 shows an expected 
return of 84.98%. No dividends have been received from Landsbanki Bank and the final decision 
regarding the priority status of local authorities is under judicial review in the Icelandic courts. The latest 
information suggests local authorities will retain their priority status and based on that assumption the 
expected return is 94.86%. 

Accounting for Pensions 

The Council participates in two local government pension schemes, one administered by the London 
Borough of Hillingdon and the other run by the London Pension Fund Authority. The London Borough of 
Hillingdon Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson, last carried out an actuarial valuation of the fund on 31 
March 2007.  The triennial valuation calculated a deficit of £50m, which resulted in an increase in the 
employer’s contribution rate effective from 1 April 2008. The London Borough of Hillingdon common 
contribution rate during 2009/10 was 16.8%, and employees' contributed at variable rates between 
5.8% and 7.5% of pensionable salary. 

Teachers employed by the Council contribute to the Teachers Pension Scheme administered by the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families (Department of Education from 12 May 2010). 
Contributions are paid to this body reflecting employee and employers contributions. More details are 
given at page 59. 

Page 26



U
na
ud
ite
d

10

The Council is required to adopt FRS17 on retirement benefits.  The net liability in respect of the 
London Borough of Hillingdon and London Pension Fund Authority funds at 31 March 2010 of £414.5m 
has been recognised, compared to £210.4m at 31 March 2009. The movement during 2009/10 was 
primarily due to actuarial losses, which resulted from higher inflation assumptions, and a change in the 
discount rate as set out in note 48 on page 62. Details of the disclosures are shown in the Statement of 
Accounting Policies (page 17) and in disclosures notes on pages 59 to 63. 

Collection Fund 

The Council has reported a deficit on the collection fund of £1,009k for 2009/10 (£175k for 2008/09). 
This will be recovered in future financial years from the Council and Greater London Authority (GLA) in 
proportion to the value of the respective demands on the Collection Fund, for 2009/10 this was 78.22% 
for the Council and 21.78% for the GLA.  The Council Tax collection rate was 96.6% compared to 
96.1% in 2008/09. 

Review of Staffing 

Recruiting and retaining high calibre employees is essential if the Council is to achieve its performance 
objectives.  At 31 March 2010 the number of Council employees, excluding schools, totalled 2,919 full 
time equivalents (FTE). This is an increase of 57 FTE (2%) on 31 March 2009, due to the conversion of 
agency workers to permanent employment, thus reducing reliance on agency staff and overall costs.  
Agency expenditure in 2009/10 was £17.3m (£18.8m in 2008/09). The following chart shows the 
breakdown of the number of employees by department as at 31 March 2010.

Number of Employees (FTE) across departments

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTUVES OFFICE

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

FINANCE AND RESOURCES

ENVIRONMENT & CONSUMER PROTECTION

ADULT SOCIAL CARE HEALTH & HOUSING

EDUCATION & CHILDREN SERVICES

Voluntary labour turnover decreased from 7.2% in 2008/09 to 6.14% in 2009/10.  

The Council performance on a range of employee best value performance indicators show:  

2009/10 2008/09 
Working days lost due to sickness 8.45 days 8.10 days 
Proportion of the top 5% earners who are women 40.85% 39.84%
Proportion of the top 5 % earners who are from 
ethnic minorities 

12.68% 12.13% 

Percentage of employees with disability 2.00% 2.06%
Ethnic minority representation in the workforce. 22.47% 23.44%

Outlook for the Future

Hillingdon’s budget requirement for 2010/11 as agreed by Council on 25th February 2010 is £194.2 
million, and was set at that amount in order to freeze Council Tax at 2008/09 levels.  Along with the 

Page 27



U
na
ud
ite
d

11

zero increase in the precept set by the Greater London Authority, this resulted in no change in the total 
level of Council Tax per band paid by Hillingdon residents. 

The impact of the recession in the national and global economy has meant that the Government has 
indicated that severe restrictions on public expenditure will be applied from 2011/12 onwards, and the 
Council is planning on the basis that there will be significant cuts in Government grants over the next 
three to four years. 

The Council has responded pro-actively to the exceptional level of challenge that these funding cuts will 
impose, by developing the Business Improvement Delivery programme as its major transformation 
project.  This programme will review the Council’s whole operations and service delivery, and has been 
set a target to identify £30 million of savings and efficiencies over the next four years.  The Council is 
confident that the principles of sound financial management and efficient service delivery that have built 
up the current position of financial strength will continue to provide the basis for delivering improved 
service outcomes for the residents of Hillingdon. 

Page 28



U
na
ud
ite
d

12

4. Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

1. Council’s Responsibilities 

The Council is required to: 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of 
its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.  In this Council that 
officer is the Director of Finance & Resources; and 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its 
assets.

2. Director of Finance & Resources Responsibilities 

The Director of Finance & Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s statement 
of accounts that present a true and fair view of the financial position of the authority at the 
accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2010. 

In preparing this statement of accounts the Director of Finance & Resources has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 
 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 
 Complied with the code of practice. 

The Director of Finance & Resources has also: 

 Kept proper accounting records that were up to date; and 
 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

3. Director of Finance & Resources Approval of Accounts 

I certify that these accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the London 
Borough of Hillingdon, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in Great Britain (‘the code of practice’), as at 31 March 2010 and its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended. 

Christopher Neale 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & RESOURCES 
21 September 2010 

Audit Committee Certificate for the Approval of the Accounts 

I confirm that these accounts were considered and approved by the Audit Committee at the meeting 
held on 28 June 2010. 

Signed on behalf of London Borough of Hillingdon 

John Morley 
CHAIRMAN (AUDIT COMMITTEE) 
28 June 2010 

Page 29



U
na
ud
ite
d

13

5. Audit Certificate and Opinion 

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of London Borough of Hillingdon 

Opinion on the Authority accounting statements 

Page 30



U
na
ud
ite
d

14Page 31



U
na
ud
ite
d

15Page 32



U
na
ud
ite
d

16Page 33



U
na
ud
ite
d

17

6. Statement of Accounting Policies 

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the 2010 Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting and Statement of Recommended Practice, issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) and Financial 
Reporting Standards (FRS). Any departures from recommended practices are stated within this section 
and/or within the notes to the accounts. 

CAPITAL

1. Tangible Fixed Assets  

Recognition: All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of tangible fixed assets is 
capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts, provided that the asset yields benefits to the authority 
for a period of more than one year.  This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of 
fixed assets that is charged direct to service revenue accounts. 

Measurement: Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly 
attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use. Assets are then carried in 
the balance sheet valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements 
of Asset Valuation Principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered 
Surveyors (RICS).  Fixed assets are included in the balance sheet on the following basis: 

 Land, operational properties and other operational assets are included in the balance sheet at the 
lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value in existing use, 

 Non-operational assets, including investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, 
are included in the balance sheet at the lower of net current replacement cost or net realisable value. 
In the case of investment properties this is normally open market value. In some cases where a 
Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) figure has been used, an additional opinion has been sought 
as to the Open Market Valuation (allowing for alternative uses) if it was at a figure significantly higher 
or lower than the DRC figure, 

 Infrastructure assets and community assets are included in the balance sheet at historical cost, net of 
depreciation,

 Plant and machinery forming an integral part of the property is included in the valuation of the 
buildings. Other plant and machinery has been given a value on the basis of historical costs as a 
proxy for current value.

A de minimis value of £10,000 has been set for capital purchases. This latter limit also applies to 
valuations.

Revaluations of fixed assets are planned at five yearly intervals, although material changes to asset 
valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, as they occur, using valuation data obtained each year 
by the Council’s valuers. Any surpluses arising on the revaluation of fixed assets are credited to the 
Revaluation Reserve. This was a new account effective from 1st April 2007 and gains arising before that 
date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  

De minimis expenditure is charged to revenue but, where permissible and appropriate, it is financed as 
though it were capital expenditure.  

The Council does not own foundation school assets and the value of the assets are not included in the 
Council’s balance sheet.  

Impairment: An impairment review of all assets is undertaken at the end of each financial year.  
Losses arising from the clear consumption of economic benefits would be recognised as a cost in the 
relevant service revenue account. Otherwise it is written off against any revaluation gain attributable to 

Page 34



U
na
ud
ite
d

18

the relevant asset in the Revaluation Reserve, with any excess charged to the relevant service revenue 
account. It is then reversed out in the Statement of Movement on General Fund Balances so it does not 
have an impact on the Council’s taxpayers.

Depreciation: Depreciation is provided in the accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting 
Standard (FRS) 15 and CIPFA guidelines. FRS 15 states that depreciation is to be provided on all fixed 
assets other than non-depreciable land and non-operational investment properties according to the 
following policy: 

 Newly acquired assets are not depreciated in the year of acquisition and assets in the course of 
construction are not depreciated until they are brought into use; and 

 Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method. 

Depreciation is based on the following useful lives or approach:  

Infrastructure 40 years 
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture & Equipment 5 to 7 years 
Other Land & Buildings Useful life varies depending on the condition, 

type and usage of the asset 
Surplus Assets Useful life varies depending on the condition, 

type and usage of the asset 
IT Equipment 5 years 
Intangible Assets 5 years 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their 
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment 
Account.

Disposals: When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, any loss or profit on disposal is written 
off to the Income and Expenditure Account. The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against 
Council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital 
financing. Therefore the loss or profit on sale is appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from 
the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. Realisable gains on disposal are credited to 
the Capital Adjustment Account with amounts in excess of £10k being categorised as capital receipts.  

Capital Receipts: Receipts from the disposal of fixed assets are accounted for on an accruals basis. 
Capital receipts are available to finance capital expenditure and any receipts that are not used to 
finance capital expenditure in year are included in the balance sheet in the Usable Capital Receipts 
Reserve.

Council houses are sold at a discount in accordance with the legislative requirements. Some land and 
property may be sold at a discount or at nil value to housing associations in return for nomination rights 
(i.e. taking tenants from the Council’s waiting list); otherwise all other assets are sold at market value. 

Commitments to make stock transfers are valued at estimated tenanted market value at the time the 
transfer is agreed and an adjustment made to the fixed assets and any loss charged to the HRA 
Income and Expenditure Account. An adjustment is made to fixed assets for any change to this 
valuation at the time of actual disposal.

The Local Authorities (Capital Financing and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 requires the 
Council to pay a specified amount of capital receipts from the disposal of housing land and dwellings to 
the Secretary of State as a contribution to the housing pool. The rate is currently 75% of the capital 
receipt from the sale of Council dwellings and 50% of any other interest in housing land although there 
are reductions for certain qualifying disposals. This expenditure is recorded in the Income & 
Expenditure Account but is financed from a contribution from the Usable Capital Receipt Reserve. 

Page 35



U
na
ud
ite
d

19

Deferred credits relate mainly to the sale of Council houses and reflect the amount of mortgage 
principal outstanding on sales, which will be transferred to capital receipts when paid. 

Grants and contributions: where grants and contributions are received that are identifiable to fixed 
assets with a finite useful life, the amounts are credited to the Government Grants Deferred Account 
once applied. The balance is then written down to revenue to offset depreciation charges made for the 
related assets in the relevant service revenue account, in line with the full SORP guidelines. 

2. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets, such as software licences, are only recognised on the balance sheet when they are 
purchased or where internally developed and they have a readily ascertainable market value. Intangible 
assets are included at historical cost and only revalued in line with FRS10. Intangible assets are 
amortised over five years. 

3. Charges to Revenue for Fixed Assets 

Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are charged the following amounts to 
record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year:- 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on tangible fixed 
assets used by the service and other losses where there are no accumulated gains in the 
Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off. 

 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service 

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover the above charges. Depreciation, impairment 
losses and amortisations are therefore not charged to the General Fund and are removed by 
adjustment in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. However, it is required to 
make an annual provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing 
requirement (equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis in accordance with Capital regulations). 

4. Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under statute   

Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under statute represents expenditure that may properly be 
capitalised, but which is spent on third party tangible fixed assets, for example housing association 
grants, capital expenditure on foundation schools and housing improvement grants. Such expenditure 
is taken to revenue in the year in which the expenditure is incurred. Where the Council has determined 
to meet the cost of this from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital 
Adjustment account reverses the amounts charged to the Income and Expenditure Account via the 
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so there is no impact on the level of Council tax. 

5. Leasing 

Finance Leases      

Assets are acquired under finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the 
asset transfer to the Council. These assets are recognised in the Council’s balance sheet together with 
the liability to pay future rentals.

The Council has three finance leases with the Ealing Family Housing Association for 102 dwellings and 
a number of leases for vehicles and plant.  

Page 36



U
na
ud
ite
d

20

Operating Leases 

Leases that do not meet the definition of finance leases are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals 
payable are charged to the relevant service revenue account on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease.

REVENUE

6.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure    

Revenue accounts of the Council are also maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the code 
of accounting practice and FRS18. Sums due to or from the Council during the year are included in the 
revenue account whether or not the cash has actually been received or paid in the year. A de minimis 
of £2,000 has been set for revenue. 

Customer and client receipts: Such receipts take the form of sales, fees, charges and rents. These 
are accrued and accounted for in the period to which they relate. There are a few instances where full 
accurate accrual is not realistic and the accounts reflect a broad view of the amounts received during 
the year. Estimations are based upon known prices/charges or agreements currently in force.  

Employee costs: Full costs are charged in the accounts for the period within which the employee 
worked. Accruals are made for salaries and wages earned but unpaid at the end of the financial year. 
These estimations are based upon agreed employment contracts. For some payments such as 
overtime and car allowances, where the difference between years is not significant, the aim is to ensure 
that twelve months costs are taken account of.  Where estimation is required it is based upon agreed 
time worked, rates of pay and employment contracts.   

Interest: Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of 
the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or 
determined by the contract. Interest accruals are included in short-term investments or borrowings 
together with any amounts payable in the next year in relation to the relevant instruments. 

Supplies and Services: The cost of supplies and services is accrued and accounted for in the period 
during which they were consumed or received. Accruals are made for all material sums unpaid at year-
end for goods and services received or works completed. In some instances the approach is to make 
sure there is a full year’s costs included in the accounts rather than seek spurious accuracy. A de 
minimis value of £2,000 has been set for invoices due to be paid but not processed at the creditors cut-
off date except for those relating to utility companies and grant funded expenditure. Where necessary, 
costs are estimated based upon agreed contracts, price lists and technical officer judgement.  

7. Long Term Contracts    

The Council has entered into a number of long term contracts that have commitments beyond the 
period of account. Material future commitments are outlined in a note to the accounts.  

8. PFI Contract

The Council enters into certain contracts for services under the Private Finance Initiative (PFI). These 
services include the provision of a property in order to provide the contracted service. In accounting for 
such contracts the Council considers: - 

 Firstly, whether the contract consists of separable elements. If this is the case then each element will 
be accounted for separately; and 

Page 37



U
na
ud
ite
d

21

 Secondly, for each element of the contract (or the whole contract if it is not separable) whether or not 
the Council has acquired an asset with a corresponding liability to pay the operator for it, or, 
alternatively, has a contract only for services. 

For elements of such contracts that include an asset, this is recorded within deferred liabilities. For 
elements that do not, no such asset liability is recorded in the balance sheet and the ongoing charge for 
the use of the property and related services is accounted for within the net cost of services. 

In carrying out the assessment of risks and rewards for elements of contracts that involve the Council, 
the substance of the transaction is assessed and whether the Council or the operator is exposed to the 
majority of the risks and rewards of ownership. In carrying out this assessment, the Council have 
applied SORP guidance and Treasury Task Force (TTF) Guidance Note No. 1 ‘Accounting for PFI 
Transactions’. 

Fixed assets recognised on the balance sheet are re-valued and depreciated in the same way as 
property, plant and equipment owned by the Council. 

Further details of the Councils PFI contract is disclosed in note 5 on page 35. 

9. Government Grants and Contributions  

Grants and subsidies have been credited to the appropriate revenue and capital accounts. Accruals 
have been made for sums known to be receivable for the year, where the receipt was outstanding at 
31st March 2010. The final claims for grants included in the accounts are subject to audit.  Government 
grants are only recognised in the Income and Expenditure account once conditions for their receipt 
have been complied with and there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received in 
accordance with SSAP 4.  

The Council is the “Accountable Body” for the Local Area Agreement Grant. Income and expenditure 
with respect to the use of LAAG is accounted for in the Net Cost of Services. 

10. Stocks and Work in Progress   

Stocks at the year-end are included at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Work in Progress on 
uncompleted jobs is valued at cost including an allocation of overheads. 

11. Costs of Support Services   

In line with CIPFA recommended practice and complying with the Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice, support service costs are recharged to front line services. The basis of allocation is as 
follows:-

Cost Basis of Allocation 
Central department costs (e.g. The Chief 
Executive’s Department) 

Staff numbers 

Administrative buildings Area occupied 
Computing and Telephony Estimated usage 

12. Corporate and Democratic Core 

Corporate and Democratic core services are identified and accounted for separately. These include 
democratic representation and management and corporate management. They receive recharges of 
support costs.  

Page 38



U
na
ud
ite
d

22

13. Non-Distributed Costs 

Some costs are not allocated to services and appear under the heading “Non Distributed Costs” in the 
Income and Expenditure Account. These include costs associated with the loss of work or function that 
cannot be reduced, impairment losses on assets under construction and surplus assets held for 
disposal, and revenue costs of holding surplus assets.   

14. Provisions and Reserves 

The Council is required to set aside money to cover future known or anticipated liabilities and each 
reserve or provision should be clearly identifiable as to its purpose and usage. 

Provisions

Provisions are established for any liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that have been incurred. 
Provisions are recognised when:- 

 There is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 
 It is probable that a cost will have to be met to settle the obligation. 

Provisions are charged to the appropriate revenue account. When a payment for expenditure against a 
provision is made, the expenditure is charged directly to the provision. All provisions are reviewed each 
year.

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 

No provision is made for debts that are secured or are with other Public Sector Bodies except in 
exceptional circumstances. Of all remaining debts, the Council makes a provision for bad debts based 
upon continuous reviews on likely recovery undertaken by service managers and supporting finance 
staff.

Reserves

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions or contingent liabilities are 
treated as reserves. Transfers to and from reserves are distinguished from service expenditure. 
Expenditure is not charged directly to any reserve.  

Revaluation Reserve Records the accumulated gains on fixed assets held by the 
authority arising from increases in value. This value is offset 
by that part of depreciation relating to the revaluation for each 
asset. This account replaced the Fixed Asset Restatement 
Account with effect from 1st April 2007.  It had a nil balance at 
1st April 2007 

Capital Adjustment Account Accumulates resources that have been set aside to finance 
capital expenditure offset by the write down of historical cost 
fixed assets (depreciation and impairments) or written off on 
disposal. This covers both capital assets and expenditure that 
is capital by statute (revenue expenditure funded from capital 
under statute). 

Usable Capital Receipts 
Reserve

Includes capital receipts that have not yet been used to 
finance capital expenditure or to repay debt 

Pension Reserve Represents the surplus or deficit arising from the valuation of 
pension assets and liabilities of Hillingdon’s interests in the 

Page 39



U
na
ud
ite
d

23

London Borough of Hillingdon pension scheme and the 
London Pension Fund Authority pension scheme 

Major Repairs Reserve A requirement of the HRA resource accounting and holds 
depreciation charged to the HRA in excess of the major 
repairs allowance 

Equal Pay Back Pay 
Reserve

Relates to the amount of back pay deferred from being 
charged to General Fund and Housing Revenue Account for 
unequal pay claims following direction under regulation 30A 
of the Capital Financing and Accounting Regulations 2003 

15. Retirement Benefits 

The Council participates in three defined benefit pension schemes, the London Borough of Hillingdon 
pension fund, the London Pension Fund Authority pension fund, and the Teachers Pension Scheme. 
The pensions costs included in the accounts in respect of these schemes have been determined in 
accordance with relevant Government regulations. They cover the contributions paid to the schemes in 
respect of employees concerned.  

The teachers’ scheme is unfunded and administered on behalf of the Department for Children, Schools 
and Families (DCSF) by Capita Hartshead. The pension cost charged to the accounts is the 
contribution rate set by the DCSF on the basis of a notional fund.  

The accounts fully conform to the Financial Reporting Standard No 17 (FRS17) relating to pension fund 
liabilities. Both the Income and Expenditure Account and the Balance Sheet reflect the effects of these 
requirements.

16. Financial Assets

Loans and receivables are initially measured at their fair value and carried at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits are made to the Income and Expenditure Account for interest receivable and are based 
on the interest rate applicable to the financial instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has 
made, this means that the amount presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable plus any accrued interest. The interest receivable for the year is credited to the Income and 
Expenditure Account. Where investments are classed as available for sale, the value of the investment 
will be shown in the balance sheet at fair value with any difference between fair value and book value 
being shown in the available for sale reserve. Income from these investments is credited to the Income 
and Expenditure Account. 

17. Financial Liabilities  

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual 
charges to the Income and Expenditure Account are made for interest payable and are based upon the 
carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of 
the borrowings that the Council has, this means the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the 
outstanding principal payable plus any accrued interest. The interest payable for the year is charged to 
the Income and Expenditure account. However, where a repurchase has taken place as part of a 
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the 
premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or 
modified loan. The write down of premium or discount is then charged to the Income and Expenditure 
Account spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective rate of interest. 

Page 40



U
na
ud
ite
d

24

18. Redemption of Debt   

The Council sets aside resources each year for the repayment of historical debt. Debt held by the 
Council is distinguishable into three types of loans: 

(a) Maturity loans - where the principal is repaid in full on the date the loan matures and 
interest is paid every 6 months. The accrued interest is shown as part of the carrying value of 
the loan on the balance sheet. 

(b) Equal Instalment of Principal (EIP) Loans - where an equal instalment of principal based 
on the life of the loan is repaid every six months. Interest is paid every six months based on the 
outstanding balance. The accrued interest is shown as part of the carrying value of the loan on 
the balance sheet. 

(c) LOBO (lender’s option, borrower’s option) loans - where the principal is borrowed at a 
fixed rate of interest for a specified period of time, after which the lender has the option to 
change the rate of interest and the borrower has the option to continue with the loan at the new 
rate or repay the principal before maturity without penalty. If the lender does not change the 
rate, the principal is repaid in full on the date the loan matures. In the interim, interest payments 
are made every six months. The accrued interest is shown as part of the carrying value of the 
loan on the balance sheet. 

In addition to the scheduled repayments the Council will also reschedule or redeem debt early as part 
of the overall management of the portfolio by utilising the Council’s ability to repay and/or replace debt 
based on prevailing market conditions.   

19. Minimum Revenue Provision 

The Council has to make an annual provision for the repayment of borrowing.  For all borrowing prior to 
1st April 2009 and borrowing that receives support via the Revenue Support Grant the Council applies 
the Capital Financing Requirement concept based upon figures from the balance sheet (4% of 
outstanding debt). For other borrowing, the council makes provision for the repayment of debt over the 
life of asset to which the borrowing is applied. 

20. Group Accounts 

The Council has to include within its statement of accounts interests in subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures in a set of group accounts. The Council has one subsidiary, Hillingdon Homes Ltd, which 
is responsible for the management of its housing stock. The Council’s group accounts are shown on 
pages 72 to 80. Hillingdon Homes’ income and expenditure, assets and liabilities have been 
consolidated on a line-by-line basis in accordance with FRS2. The operating income and expenditure of 
Hillingdon Homes has been included in the Local Authority Housing (HRA) service line of the Net Cost 
of services. 

21. Collection Fund 

Billing authorities in England are required by statute to maintain a separate fund for the collection and 
distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and national non-domestic rates (NNDR). The key 
features relevant to accounting for council tax in the core financial statements are: 

 In its capacity as a billing authority the council acts as agent; it collects and distributes Council  
Tax income on behalf of the major preceptors and itself. 

 While the Council Tax income for the year credited to the Collection Fund is the accrued income for 
the year, regulations determine when it should be released from the Collection Fund and 
transferred to the General Fund of the billing authority or paid out of the Collection Fund to major 
preceptors.

Page 41



U
na
ud
ite
d

25

 Up to 2008/09 the SORP required the Council Tax income included in the Income and Expenditure 
Account to be that specified under regulation. 

 From the year commencing 1 April 2009 the Council Tax income included in the Income and 
Expenditure Account for the year is to be the accrued income for the year. The difference between 
the income included in the Income and Expenditure Account and the amount specified by regulation 
to be credited to the Collection Fund is to be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and 
included as a reconciling item in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance. 

Since the collection of Council Tax and NNDR Income is in substance an agency arrangement:  

 Cash collected by the billing authority from Council Tax debtors belongs proportionately to the 
billing authority and the major preceptors. There will be therefore a debtor/creditor position between 
the billing authority and each major preceptor to be recognised since the net cash paid to each 
major preceptor in the year will not be its share of the cash collected from Council Taxpayers; and  

 Cash collected from NNDR taxpayers by billing authorities (net of the cost of collection allowance)  
belongs to the Government and the amount not yet paid to the Government at the Balance Sheet 
date shall be included in the Balance Sheet as a creditor; similarly, if cash paid to the Government 
exceeds the cash collected from NNDR taxpayers (net of the billing authority’s cost of collection 
allowance), the excess shall be included in the Balance Sheet as a debtor. 

22. VAT  

Income and Expenditure excludes any amounts relating to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to HM 
Revenue & Customs. VAT is included in the Income and Expenditure accounts whether of a capital or 
revenue nature only to the extent that it is irrecoverable.  

23. Contingent Assets/Liabilities 

Where the amounts are likely to be material, the nature of the contingent item is disclosed in the notes 
to the accounts. 

24. Foreign Currency Transactions    

Income and expenditure arising from transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into 
pounds sterling at the exchange rate in operation on the date that the transaction occurred. 

25. Events after Balance Sheet date 

Where, after balance sheet date, an event occurs, favourable or unfavourable, which provides evidence 
of conditions that existed at balance sheet date, the amounts recognised in the statement of accounts 
are adjusted. Otherwise no adjustment is made.  

26. Exceptional and Extraordinary items and Prior Year Adjustments   

Exceptional items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate or on the face of the 
Income and Expenditure Account if required to give a fair presentation of the accounts. 
Extraordinary items are disclosed and described on the face of the Income and Expenditure Account. 

Account is taken of material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting 
policies or from the correction of fundamental errors by restating the comparative figures for the 
preceding period. The cumulative effect of prior period adjustments is included within the Statement of 
Total Recognised Gains and Losses for the current period. 

Page 42



U
na
ud
ite
d

Income and  Expenditure  Account (page 27)

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (page 30)

Balance Sheet (page 31)

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with
third parties for revenue and capital purposes. The statement excludes any transactions of the pension
and trust funds. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement are included on pages 63 and 64.

Main Financial Statements
The various financial statements that follow are prepared on an accruals basis and follow best practice
recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain. Further details of these requirements are detailed
in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

These statements are published in accordance with Regulation 11 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
They summarise the overall financial position of the Council and in particular include the following:

This account shows the expenditure and the income relating to all the services provided by the Council
and how the net cost of these services has been financed by local taxpayers and government grants. It
does not include interests in related companies, these are included in the group accounts detailed on
page 72.

Cash Flow Statement (page 32)

This statement brings together all the recognised gains and losses of the authority during the period and
identifies those that have not been recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account. This shows the
aggregate movement in the Council's net worth during the year.

This sets out the assets and liabilities of the Council as at 31 March 2010, but excludes the assets and
liabilities of pension and trust funds. It does not include interests in related companies, these are included
in the group accounts detailed on page 72.

26Page 43



U
na
ud
ite
d

Net Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure

Notes £000's £000's £000's £000's

EXPENDITURE ON SERVICES

Central Services to the Public 31,079 24,266 6,813 5,760 
Cultural, Environmental  and Planning 58,395 18,308 40,087 42,281 
Education and Children's Services 420,625 264,523 156,102 55,473 
Highways, Roads and Transport Services 22,619 7,284 15,335 17,423 
Local Authority Housing (HRA) 52,643 54,480 (1,837) 38,347
Other Housing Services 153,889 148,719 5,170 9,374
Adult Social Care 106,025 28,734 77,291 65,987
Court and Probation Services 239 8 231 173 
Corporate and Democratic Core 7,179 3,264 3,915 8,307 
Non-Distributable Costs 255 515 (260) 6,388

NET COST OF SERVICES 852,948 550,101 302,847 249,513 

Loss on sale of fixed assets 609 0 609 582 
Precepts and levies 689 0 689 699 
Net (profit)/loss on trading undertakings 1 7,218 7,121 97 (191)
Interest payable and similar charges 28 7,609 0 7,609 16,774 
Contribution of housing capital receipts to 
Government pool 21 583 0 583 885 
Interest and investment income 28 0 2,018 (2,018) (6,399)
Other Income 0 31 (31) (494)
Pension interest cost and expected return on 
pensions assets 46 15,810 0 15,810 5,590 

NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 885,466 559,271 326,195 266,959 

FINANCED BY:

General government grants 4 27,435 (27,435) (21,511)
Demand on the Collection Fund 105,828 (105,828) (107,220)
Non-domestic rate income 67,242 (67,242) (71,330)

INCOME FROM GENERAL GRANTS & 
LOCAL TAXPAYERS (200,505) (200,061)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 125,690        66,898                               

The Income & Expenditure Account for the year ending 31 March 2009 has been restated to accommodate changes in
accounting for Council Tax introduced in the Statement of Recommended Practice in the current financial year.

Year Ending 31 March 2009

Income and Expenditure Account

The deficit for the year of £125,690k includes impairments of fixed assets totalling £148,177k following revaluation that
have been charged to the Income & Expenditure Account in accordance with recommended accounting practice. These
are reversed in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance so as to mitigate any impact on the council tax
payer laid out under statute.

Year Ending 31 March 2010

27Page 44



U
na
ud
ite
dNotes 2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Deficit for the year on the Income & Expenditure Account 125,690 66,898

Net additional amount required by statute or non-statutory proper practices to 
be credited to the General Fund balance for the year. (Page 29) (128,167) (69,149)

Increase in General Fund balance for the year (2,477) (2,251)

General Fund balance brought forward 37 (28,313) (26,062)

General Fund balance carried forward (30,790) (28,313)

Comprising

General Fund Balance held by schools 37 (11,890) (11,022)
General Fund Balance generally available for new expenditure 37 (18,900) (17,291)

(30,790) (28,313)

Statement of Movement on the General Fund 
Balance

The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council's actual financial performance for the year, measured in terms of
the resources consumed and generated over the last 12 months. However the council is required to raise council tax on a
different accounting basis, the main differences being:-

-   Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are consumed.
- The payment of a share of housing capital receipts to the Government scores as a loss in the Income and Expenditure
Account, but is met from the Useable Capital Receipts balance rather than council tax.

- Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners rather than as future
benefits are earned.

The General Fund Balance compares the Council's spending against the council tax that it raised for the year, taking into
account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves earmarked for future expenditure.

Th reconciliation below summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income & Expenditure Account and the
General Fund Balance. Further details are provided in the note of the Reconciliation of the Movement on the General Fund
on page 29.

-   Depreciation and Impairment charges are replaced with the Minimum Revenue Provision to provide for the repayment of
debt.

28Page 45



U
na
ud
ite
d

Note £000's £000's £000's £000's
Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required 
by statute to be excluded when determining the movement on the 
General Fund balance for the year

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 12 (324) (355)
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets 11 (165,233) (69,687)
Premiums and discounts 36 (54) (361)
Impairment/(Gains) of Financial Investments Adjustment 36 1,335 (4,948)
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 20 (17,905) (17,772)
Government grants deferred amortisation 20 49,659 20,876
Net loss on sale of fixed assets (609) (582)
Council Tax Income Adjustment (654) 1,133
Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS17 46 (27,594) (24,870)
Other Income 31 494

(161,348) (96,072)

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but 
required to be included by statute when determining the movement on 
the General Fund balance for the year

Minimum revenue provision for capital financing 20 3,721 3,543
Finance Lease Principal 20 979 1,739
Transfer from usable capital receipts to meet payments to the housing 
capital receipts pool

21 (583) (890)

Employer's contributions payable to the pension fund and retirement benefits 
payable direct to pensioners 46

20,959 18,982

Capital expenditure charged in year to the General Fund balance 20 2,666 3,955
27,742 27,330

Transfers to or from the General Fund balance that are required to be 
taken into account when determining the movement on the General 
Fund balance for the year

Housing Revenue Account balance 1,484 (478)
Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves 3,955 71

5,439 (407)

Net additional amount required to be credited to the General Fund 
balance for the year

(128,167) (69,149)

2009/10 2008/09

Reconciliation of the Movement on the General Fund

29Page 46



U
na
ud
ite
d

Statement Of Total Recognised Gains And Losses

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Transfer of the deficit on the Income & Expenditure Account 125,690 66,898

Loss/(Gain) arising on revaluation of fixed assets (13,977) 8,033
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on pension assets and liabilities 197,394 101,473
Available for sale reserve 0 (15)
Total Recognised (gains) and losses for the year 309,107 176,389

This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows the aggregate movement in 
its net worth. In addition to the deficit generated on the Income & Expenditure Account, it includes gains and losses relating 
to the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits.

30Page 47



U
na
ud
ite
d

At 31st March
2010

Note £000's £000's £000's £000's

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible Assets 12 1,161 1,443

Operational Assets 11

Council dwellings 694,875 698,685
Other land and buildings 456,319 559,466
Vehicles, plant and equipment 13,126 10,297
Community assets 14,137 14,926
Infrastructure assets 147,412 1,325,869 146,120 1,429,494

Non Operational Assets 11

Investment properties 6,443 10,993
Assets under construction 20,282 28,550
Surplus assets, held for disposal 12,726 39,451 7,390 46,933

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 27 8,270 2,075
LONG TERM DEBTORS 22 581 424

TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 1,375,332 1,480,369

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks & works in progress 23 128 133
Debtors and payments in advance 24 35,350 40,616
Short term investments 27 61,047 88,848
Cash in hand 50 13,762 110,287 18,433 148,030

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Temporary borrowing 27 (17,578) (2,054)
Creditors and receipts in advance 25 (101,768) (119,346) (109,736) (111,790)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,366,273 1,516,609

Provisions 42 (3,586) (4,026)
Deferred credits (143) (165)
Long term borrowing 27 (163,198) (194,526)
Grants and Contributions Unapplied (737) (2,159)
Government grants deferred account (129,746) (141,634)
Deferred liabilities 5/6 (3,266) (3,424)

47 (414,519) (210,490)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 651,078 960,185

FINANCED BY:
Revaluation Reserve 19 31,228 18,156
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 18 15 15
Capital adjustment account 20 992,352 1,123,064
Financial Instrument Adjustment Account 36 (4,028) (5,309)
Usable capital receipts account 21 5,028 1,009
Pension reserve 47 (414,519) (210,490)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 39 (791) (137)
Equal pay back pay account 42 (40) (234)
Fund balances and reserves 37 41,833 34,111

TOTAL NET WORTH 651,078 960,185

Christopher Neale
Director of Finance & Resources
21 September 2010

Balance Sheet

The assets and liabilities of the pension fund and various trust funds administered by the Council are excluded 
from the above balance sheet as they are not statutory services.
The balance sheet for 2008/09 has been restated to separate Grants unapplied from creditors. The Collection 
Fund alterations introduced in the 2009/10 SORP are also incorporated in the restated accounts to provide 
comparable information.

Liabilities related to defined benefit pension 
schemes

At 31st March
2009

31Page 48



U
na
ud
ite
d

Cash Flow Statement
Note

REVENUE ACTIVITIES £000's £000's £000's £000's
Cash Outflows

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 277,203 263,575
Housing benefit paid out 77,874 58,865
Payments to the capital receipts pool 290 1,343
Other operating cash payments 316,030 671,397 292,613 616,396

Cash Inflows
Rents (after rebates) (28,035) (27,656)
Council tax income (107,547) (93,074)
Non-domestic rate Receipts from Pool (67,242) (71,330)
Revenue Support Grant 52 (15,520) (9,930)
DWP grants for benefits 52 (150,080) (126,525)
Other government grants 52 (268,610) (257,398)
Cash received for goods & services (3,648) (3,719)
Other operating cash receipts (108,005) (130,230)

(748,687) (719,862)
Net Cash Inflow 49 (77,290) (103,466)
Revenue Activities

SERVICING OF FINANCE
Expenditure

Interest paid 7,326 9,757
Interest element of finance lease rental payments 1,090 606

Income
Interest received (1,596) (7,031)

Servicing of Finance Net Cash Outflows 6,820 3,332

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows

Purchase of fixed assets 55,308 51,172
Purchase of long term investments 0 0
Other capital cash payments 17,905 73,213 17,772 68,944

Cash Inflows
Sale of fixed assets (6,058) (17,336)
Capital grants received (33,865) (27,432)
Other capital cash payments/income (2,113) (1,846)

(42,036) (46,614)
Capital Activities Net Cash Outflow 31,177 22,330

(39,293) (77,804)

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES
Net Decrease in Short-Term Investments 53 (27,801) (4,955)
Net Decrease in Long-Term Investments 7,647 0
NNDR Receipts Adjustment 48,194 47,946
Council Tax Receipts Adjustment (425) 3,968

FINANCING
Cash Outflows

Repayments of amounts borrowed 143,870 34,920
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 979 1,947

Cash Inflows
Long term loans raised (60,000) (10,000)
Short term loans raised (68,500) 0

Increase in cash 50 4,671 (3,978)

The Cashflow statement has been adjusted to incorporate SORP 2009/10 changes regarding the Collection Fund

2009/10 2008/09

Net Cash Inflow Before Financing / Management of Liquid 
Resources

32Page 49



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
1.TRADING SERVICES

TRADING UNDERTAKINGS

Expenditure Income 2009/10 Expenditure Income 2008/09
(Surplus) (Surplus)
/Deficit /Deficit

 £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Fleet management 3,517 3,329 188 3,461 3,579 (118)
Passenger services 2,153 2,148 5 2,288 2,195 93
Improvement Projects 1,024 1,080 (56) 1,163 1,214 (51)
Harlington Road Depot 524 564 (40) 585 700 (115)

7,218 7,121 97 7,497 7,688 (191)

OTHER TRADING SERVICES

Industrial estates 329 229 100 395 212 183
Uxbridge market 101 233 (132) 45 219 (174)

430 462 (32) 440 431 9

2.EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

2009/10 2008/09

£000's £000's
External audit services carried out by the appointed auditor 378 396
Statutory inspection audit 20 27
Grant claims and returns 137 90

Total External Audit costs 535 513

The Council operates a number of services on a trading basis.  The financial results of the operations are as follows:

In addition the following trading services are included in the relevant service heading in the Income and Expenditure 
Account under best value guidance.

During 2009/10 the Council incurred the following fees relating to external audit and inspection.

33Page 50



U
na
ud
ite
d

3.DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT

Central Individual Total
Expenditure Schools Budget

£000's £000's £000's

14,392 159,495 173,887

1,757 0 1,757

Agreed budget distribution in 2009/10 16,149 159,495 175,644

Actual Central expenditure for the year 15,286 0 15,286

Actual ISB deployed to schools 0 159,495 159,495

Carry forward to 20010/11 863 0 863

4.GENERAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS

2009/10 2008/09
Total Total

£000's £000's
Revenue Support Grant 15,520 9,929
Area Based Grant 11,558 10,754
Business Growth Initiative Grant 
(LABGI) 356 828

27,434 21,511

Notes to Main Financial Statements

The Dedicated Schools Grant has been credited to Education and Children's Services in the Income and Expenditure Account.

The Council's expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department for Children, Schools and
Families (from 2010/11 the Department for Education) through the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and
can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget. The Schools Budget includes elements for a
restricted range of services provided on an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget (ISB), which is divided
into a budget share for each school.

Activities on the two elements are shown separately. 

Total Revenue Support issued by Government includes Non-Domestic Rate Income of £67,242k (£71,330k in 2008/09) which
is shown separately in the Income & Expenditure Account, giving a total of £82,762k (£81,259k in 2008/09).

Schools Budget Funded by Dedicated Schools 
Grant

Final DSG for 2009/10

Brought forward from 2008/09

34Page 51



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
5.LONG TERM CONTRACTS

Long Term Contracts

Start Expire
NORTHGATE INFORMATION 
SOLUTIONS (ICT)

Managed Services Contract
1,529,527 13/11/2006 13/05/2012

DALKIA ENERGY & 
TECHNICAL SERVICES

Facilities Management 
Services

1,271,985 01/11/2008 31/10/2018

MOUCHEL TRAFFIC 
SUPPORT LTD

Parking Enforcement
1,815,000 04/08/2008 03/08/2011

CARE UK COMMUNITY 
PARTNERSHIP

Block contract for Older People 
Services

2,543,016 31/03/2000 31/03/2012

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

Principal Interest Total
£000's £000's £000's

Within 1 year (2010/11) 719 1,032 1,751
2 - 5 years 3,424 3,581 7,005
6 - 10 years 5,829 2,927 8,756
11 - 14 years 5,422 704 6,126
Total 15,394 8,244 23,638

Contract DatesContract Value 
Per Annum

The Council has entered into a number of Long Term Contracts, committing itself to revenue expenditure over future years.
Contracts which have fixed annual sums over £1,000k and over 4 years in length are disclosed below:

Northgate Information Solutions - The Council has entered into a contract with Northgate for hosting and supporting the
Council's core ICT systems.

Supplier Expenditure Reason

The outstanding contract payments to be made over the remaining 14 years of the contract, assuming satisfactory
performance, totals £23,638k. The contract runs until September 2024. This has been recognised as a fixed asset in the
Council's asset register. It is shown within other land & buildings at a gross book value of £6,052k (representing net present
value of the contract in 1998), with accumulated depreciation totalling £2,857k. The outstanding liability of the capital value at
31 March 2010 is £3,196k, of this £262k is due within a year and therefore included in creditors and the remaining £2,934k is
shown as a deferred liability.

In accounting for this transaction the Council has to apply IFRIC 12 (Service Concession Arrangements), which states the
Council has an asset of the property with access to the benefits of the property and with the risks inherent to those benefits.
Following application of the required tests as to the extent to which the Council and the providers bear the potential variations
in surpluses and deficits, the school is recognised as a fixed asset in the Council's asset register.

Jarvis PLC has gone into administation, and cannot meet their obligations under the contract. The Council is currently
considering its position in relation to this development and is discussing options with relevant parties. There should be no day-
to-day impact on the facilities management service at the school in the short term.

Dalkia Energy & Technical Services - The Council has entered into a ten year Facilities Management contract with Dalkia for
the provision of cleaning, caretaking, and building maintenance for certain Council properties.
Mouchel Traffic Support LTD - The Council has contracted Mouchel LTD to provide Parking Enforcement; patroling and
enforcing the parking regulations on-street and in public off-street car parks throughout the London Borough of Hillingdon. 
Care UK Community Partnership - The Council has contracted Care UK to provide older people with residential and nursing
care.

In December 1998 the Council entered into a 25 year contract with a private sector partner, Jarvis (Barnhill) Limited, to build
and provide facilities management at the Barnhill Community High School under a private finance initiative (PFI) arrangement.
The school opened in September 1999. In 2009/10 the Council paid principal of £266k and interest of £1,079k. The Council is
due to pay the following amounts over the remaining 14 years of the contract:

35Page 52



U
na
ud
ite
d

6.FINANCE AND OPERATING LEASES

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment
Outstanding obligations on 31 March 2009/10 2008/09 2009/10 2008/09

£000's £000's £000's £000's
Within 1 year (2010/11) 379            371            24              275            
2 - 5 years 319            230            0 496            
More than 5 years 14 0 0 21              

712            601            24              792            

Number of Vehicles 60 49 11 29

Dwellings

Notes to Main Financial Statements

The Council had three 20 year finance leases with the Ealing Family Housing Association for 102 dwellings, which expired
during 2009/10. The finance lease payments for 2009/10 amounted to £198k. This was separated between write-down of
obligations of £187k and finance cost of £11k. Depreciation of £187k, equal to the write-down of obligation is charged to the
service.

Finance Lease Operating Lease

During 2009/10 the Council reclassified two vehicle leases, changing them from operating to finance leases. This resulted in a
net book value of £592k being brought onto the balance sheet at the start of the year. Payments were made in terms of Finance
leases of £566.9k and charged to the Income and Expenditure Account. £40.0k of this was finance costs (interest) and £526.9k
related to the write-down of obligations to the lessor. Depreciation of £526.9k, equal to the write-down of obligation, is charged
to the service.  The leases have been included in fixed assets at net book value.

Payments relating to operating leases cover the period of rental and are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account.
During 2009/10 payments of £98.5k were made for operating leases. (£250.5k in 2008/09)

36Page 53



U
na
ud
ite
d

7.OFFICER EMOLUMENTS

Total Due to 
Lump Sum

Total Due to 
Lump Sum

Total Due to 
Lump Sum

Total Due to 
Lump Sum

£50,000 - £54,999 68 (2) 69 (6) 94 (2) 68 0
£55,000 - £59,999 39 (1) 31 (4) 45 0 44 (1)
£60,000 - £64,999 16 (1) 15 (1) 39 (1) 35 0
£65,000 - £69,999 19 (2) 18 (3) 27 (2) 27 0
£70,000 - £74,999 16 (2) 9 (1) 17 (2) 15 0
£75,000 - £79,999 8 (2) 11 (2) 14 0 4 0
£80,000 - £84,999 6 0 8 0 2 0 5 0
£85,000 - £89,999 7 (1) 7 0 5 0 2 0
£90,000 - £94,999 5 0 2 (1) 0 0 4 0
£95,000 - £99,999 3 (1) 3 0 6 0 1 0

£100,000 - £104,999 2 0 1 0 1 0 1 0
£105,000 - £109,999 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0
£110,000 - £114,999 2 0 3 (1) 1 0 1 0
£115,000 - £119,999 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
£120,000 - £124,999 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0
£125,000 - £129,999 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0
£130,000 - £134,999 1 (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0
£135,000 - £139,999 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£140,000 - £144,999 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£145,000 - £149,999 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,000 - £154,999 1 (1) 0 0 0 0 0 0

195 (14) 179 (19) 253 (7) 208 (1)

The 2008-09 figures have been restated to accommodate legislative change in December 2009, (The Accounts and Audit
(Amendment No.2) (England) Regulations 2009 No.3322) to be enacted on 31 March 2010. 

Notes to Main Financial Statements

Remuneration Band

LBH EMPLOYEES (Excluding Senior 
Employees)

SCHOOL EMPLOYEES

2009/10 2008/09 2009/10 2008/09

The number of employees in 2009/10 whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions, was £50k or more, are detailed
below in bands of £5k. The bandings only include the remuneration of senior employees that have not been disclosed
separately. The number of employees included in the totals that exceeded the £50k threshold due to lump sum termination
payments are indicated in brackets.  These employees left the employment of the Council during the financial year.

37Page 54



U
na
ud
ite
d

2009/10
Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees:-

Post Holder Information Salary 
(Including

Fees & 
Allowances)

Expense
Allowances

Total
Remuneration

excluding
pension

contribution

Employer's
Pension

Contributions

Total
Remuneration

including
pension

contribution

£ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive - H 
Dunnachie

183,250 162 183,412 31,794 215,206

Deputy Chief Executive 140,559 54 140,613 24,387 165,000
Corporate Director Finance & 
Resources

142,914 619 143,533 24,796 168,329

Corporate Director Adult 
Social Care Health & Housing

136,017 0 136,017 23,599 159,616

Corporate Director Education 
& Children Services

139,467 528 139,995 24,198 164,193

Corporate Director Planning 
& Community Services

142,914 0 142,914 24,795 167,709

Corporate Director 
Environment & Consumer 
Protection

122,223 0 122,223 21,206 143,429

1,007,344 1,363 1,008,707 174,775 1,183,482

2008/09
Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees:-

Post Holder Information Salary 
(Including

Fees & 
Allowances)

Expense
Allowances

Total
Remuneration

excluding
pension

contribution

Employer's
Pension

Contributions

Total
Remuneration

including
pension

contribution

£ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive - H 
Dunnachie

179,432 0 179,432 27,991 207,423

Deputy Chief Executive (See 
note 1 below)

97,671 15 97,686 15,237 112,923

Corporate Director Finance & 
Resources

141,439 249 141,688 22,026 163,714

Corporate Director Adult 
Social Care Health & Housing

122,223 7 122,230 19,067 141,297

Corporate Director Education 
& Children Services

136,017 0 136,017 21,219 157,236

Corporate Director Planning 
& Community Services

139,467 0 139,467 21,757 161,224

Corporate Director 
Environment & Consumer 
Protection

118,776 561 119,337 18,529 137,866

935,025 832 935,857 145,826 1,081,683

Notes to Main Financial Statements

1 - The Deputy Chief Executive has been in post since 14 July 2008 and so the above figure is a part year salary.
The full year equivalent was £136,593

38Page 55



U
na
ud
ite
d

8.AGENCY SERVICES

9.MEMBER ALLOWANCES

10.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Government Grants

London Housing Consortium

The Pension Fund

Members and Chief Officers

This note concerns the disclosure of additional information on transactions between the Council and its related parties. The
purpose of the note is to demonstrate fairness and openness in the accounts. All councillors and relevant officers are required
to complete declarations to meet the requirements of FRS 8 - Transactions with Related Parties. Disclosures of Interest
have been made in respect of the following organisations, the payment amount will not necessarily be just in respect of grants
but will be a total of transactions between the Council and the organisation during the year.

The Council, in partnership with other councils and housing associations, participates in the London Housing Consortium
(LHC). The LHC provides specialist architectural services and bulk procurement arrangements for the public sector. 

The London Borough of Hillingdon pension fund is considered a related party. The employer's contribution to the pension fund
in 2009/10 was £18,881k  (£16,895k 2007/08). A precept of £392k was paid to the London Pension Fund Authority in 2009/10.

Notes to Main Financial Statements

The Council is required to disclose any material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the potential
to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows
readers to assess the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Council.

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council - it is responsible for providing the
statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes
the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (eg housing benefits). Details of grants from
government departments are set out in note 52 on page 64.

During 2009/10 the total allowances paid to Members was £1,589k (£1,508k 2008/09)

The Council provides agency services through the London Airport Health Control to British Airports Authority. The cost of this
service in 2009/10 was £2,600k (£2,707k in 2008/09) which is fully reimbursable.

39Page 56



U
na
ud
ite
d

Name Payment
£

GRUNDON WASTE MANAGEMENT LTD Cllr Janet Duncan 652,288

HILLINGDON CARERS Cllr John Major 420,304

HILLINGDON & EALING CITIZENS ADVICE Cllr George Cooper 476,958
Cllr Judith Cooper

HILLINGDON ASSOCIATION OF VOLUNTARY Cllr John Major 197,604
SERVICES

DASH Cllr Geoff Courtenay 174,846
Cllr Paul Harmsworth

GROUNDWORK THAMES VALLEY Cllr George Cooper 165,498
Cllr Judith Cooper

LOCATA HOUSING SERVICES Miss Beatrice Cingtho 95,555

HILLINGDON CROSSROADS Cllr John Major 89,065

HILLINGDON OUTDOOR ACTIVITIES CENTRE Cllr Catherine Dunn 64,820

HART ASSOCIATES LTD. Cllr Scott Seaman-Digby 49,103

HILLINGDON SHOP MOBILITY Cllr Lynn Allen 26,625
Cllr Peter Kemp

Cllr Ann Banks 19,136

W SHERRY & SONS Cllr Timothy Barker 14,413

LONDON YOUTH GAMES Cllr Michael Cox 11,200

RUISLIP NORTHWOOD OLD FOLKS ASSOCIATION Cllr Andrew Retter 11,163
Cllr Catherine Dann

Hillingdon Homes Ltd

Precepts/Levies
In 2009/10 the following precepts and levies are considered related party transactions:

Greater London Authority Precept £29,640k Environment Agency £194k
West London Waste Authority Levy £6,856k Lee Valley Regional Park Authority £297k

During 2009/10 Cllr Andrew Retter held a position of influence in West London Waste Authority, which received a levy from the
Council.

Notes to Main Financial Statements

In addition, the Council paid grants and services to voluntary organisations in which ten members had an interest.

Organisation

During 2009/10 payments totalling £38,720k were made to Hillingdon Homes Ltd, a subsidiary of the Council. 
Cllr Peter Kemp, Cllr Elizabeth Kemp, Cllr Andrew Retter, Cllr David Routledge and Cllr Anthony Way served on the board of
Hillingdon Homes Ltd during 2009/10.

YIEWSLEY & WEST DRAYTON COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION

40Page 57



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
11.MOVEMENT OF FIXED ASSETS 2009/10

Council Other Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Total
Operational Assets Dwellings & Buildings Plant & Assets Assets

Equipment
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Gross book value as at 1 April 2009 732,860 612,421 38,339 206,220 14,926 1,604,766 
Additions 10,734 19,489 6,291 6,447 574 43,535 
Disposals (2,654) (4,206) (48) 0 0 (6,908)
Reclassifications (151) 20,762 725 0 (1,313) 20,023 
Revaluations 482 1,095 0 0 25 1,602 
Impairments (4,334) (177,799) 0 0 (75) (182,208)
Gross book value as at 31 March 2010 736,937 471,762 45,307 212,667 14,137 1,480,810 

Depreciation
Accumulated at 1 April 2009 (34,175) (52,955) (28,042) (60,100) 0 (175,272)
Charge for 2009/10 (8,173) (8,020) (3,684) (5,155) 0 (25,032)
Disposals 233 336 7 0 0 576 
Reclassifications (5) 5 (462) 0 0 (462)
Revaluations 58 45,191 0 0 0 45,249 
Accumulated at 31 March 2010 (42,062) (15,443) (32,181) (65,255) 0 (154,941)

Balance Sheet amount 1 April 2009 698,685 559,466 10,297 146,120 14,926 1,429,494 
Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 694,875 456,319 13,126 147,412 14,137 1,325,869 

Nature of asset holding
Owned 694,875 453,124 12,414 147,412 14,137 1,321,962
Finance Lease 0 0 712 0 0 712
PFI 0 3,195 0 0 0 3,195
Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 694,875 456,319 13,126 147,412 14,137 1,325,869

Investment Assets Surplus Total
Non-Operational Assets Properties Under Assets

Construction
£000's £000's £000's £000's

Gross book value as at 1 April 2009 10,993 28,550 7,419 46,962 
Additions 0 11,711 19 11,730 
Disposals 0 0 (320) (320)
Reclassifications (4,550) (19,979) 4,505 (20,024)
Revaluations 0 0 1,139 1,139 
Impairments 0 0 (26) (26)
Gross book value as at 31 March 2010 6,443 20,282 12,736 39,461 

Depreciation
Accumulated at 1 April 2009 0 0 (29) (29)
Charge for 2009/10 0 0 (10) (10)
Disposals 0 0 0 0 
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 
Revaluations 0 0 29 29 
Accumulated at 31 March 2010 0 0 (10) (10)

Balance Sheet amount 1 April 2009 10,993 28,550 7,390 46,933
Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 6,443 20,282 12,726 39,451

Nature of asset holding
Owned 6,443 20,282 12,726 39,451 
Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 6,443 20,282 12,726 39,451

41Page 58



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

12.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2009/10 2008/09
Software £000's £000's
Opening Net Book Value 1,443 1,682
Additions 42 116
Amortisation (324) (355)
Closing Net Book Value 1,161 1,443

13.STATEMENT OF SOURCES OF FINANCE

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 195,307 181,613

Capital investment
Intangible Assets 42 116
Operational assets 43,073 33,673
Non-operational assets 11,730 18,574
Revenue Expenditure funded from Capital under statute 17,905 17,772
Sources of finance
Capital receipts (1,485) (3,439)
Government grants and other contributions (45,758) (43,759)
Revenue provision (7,371) (9,243)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 213,443 195,307

Explanation of movements in year
Increase in underlying need to borrow :
          - supported by Government financial assistance 5,741 0
          - unsupported by Government financial assistance 12,395 13,694 

Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 18,136 13,694

Capital expenditure of £72,112k was incurred in 2009/10 on Council assets and third party assets as revenue
expenditure funded from capital under statute. Expenditure on the Council's fixed assets is recognised as an addition
in the movement of fixed assets. The sources of finance detailed below were used to fund capital expenditure and the
principal element of finance lease payments incurred during the year.

Software licences costing £42k were purchased in 2009/10. The cost is being written down over five years on a
straight line basis.

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a measure of the Council's underlying need to borrow for capital 
purposes. It does not represent the Council's actual borrowing at any one time due to items such as reserves, 
provisions, balances and timing differences of cash inflows and outflows. 

42Page 59



U
na
ud
ite
d

14.DEPRECIATION

Infrastructure - 40 years

Vehicles, Plant & Equipment - 5 to 7 years

Other Land & Buildings - useful life varies depending on the condition, type and usage of the asset.

Surplus Assets - useful life varies depending on the condition, type and usage of the asset.

Personal Computers - 5 years

Intangible Assets - 5 years.

15.VALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS CARRIED AT CURRENT VALUE

Council Other Land Vehicles, Non-operational Total
Dwellings & Buildings Plant & Assets

 Equipment
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Value at historical cost 0 0 13,125 0 13,125

Valued at current value in:
2009/2010 694,875 456,320 0 39,450 1,190,645
2008/2009 698,685 559,466 0 46,933 1,305,084
2007/2008 766,345 551,987 0 28,095 1,346,427
2006/2007 727,919 559,941 0 18,893 1,306,753
2005/2006 693,123 533,858 0 42,910 1,269,891
2004/2005 872,444 529,765 0 13,647 1,415,856
2003/2004 781,672 322,139 0 24,569 1,128,380
2002/2003 767,470 318,658 0 25,523 1,111,651
2001/2002 644,816 322,880 0 26,648 994,344
2000/2001 566,498 369,131 0 21,364 956,993
1999/2000 533,369 365,254 0 26,171 924,794
1998/1999 433,942 324,789 0 22,906 781,637

16.COMMITMENTS UNDER CAPITAL CONTRACTS

Year 2009/10 2008/09
£000s £000s

2009/10 32,221                   
2010/11 16,970              6,413                     
2011/12 3,900                4,581                     

20,870              43,215                   

The Council has entered into capital contracts that have committed the Council to the following expenditure in future years :-

Notes to Main Financial Statements

Depreciation is charged on all fixed assets other than non-depreciable land, investment properties, assets under construction
and community assets.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method based on the following useful lives: 

Depreciation of Council dwellings is provided at the level of the major repairs allowance in line with CIPFA recommended
practice.

The freehold and leasehold properties which comprise the authority's property portfolio have been valued as at 1 April 2009
by the Estate and Valuation service of the authority. Revaluations are made on a rolling five year period. The only external
valuation included is of Council dwellings which were revalued as at 1st April 2005 by Drivers Jonas. A valuation certificate
has been given by the estates manager that the properties have been valued in accordance with the appraisal and valuation
manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, and with guidance notes issued by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy. Property inspections in accordance with the rolling valuation programme were carried out
between April 2009 and March 2010. Full details of the basis of valuation for each asset category is provided in statement of
accounting policies (page 17). 

43Page 60



U
na
ud
ite
d

17.INFORMATION ON ASSETS HELD

Number as at Number as at
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Council Dwellings 10,394 10,557

Operational Property
Cemeteries (Buildings only) 5 5
Crematoria (Buildings only) 1 1
Depots and workshops 11 11
Golf courses 4 4
Libraries 17 17
Nurseries and playgroups 8 14
Office buildings 8 9
Other land & buildings 189 183
Residential homes and day centres 29 36
Schools 44 51
Sports centres and swimming pools 9 9
Tenanted farms 9 9
Car Parks 23 22
Investment Properties 40 45

Operational Equipment
Vehicles 107 85
CCTV 163 160
Computer terminals 3,782 3,338
Heavy plant 4 4

Infrastructure Assets
Highways (kilometres) 667 666
Bridges 296 296

Community Assets
Allotments 35 35
Cemeteries and crematorium - Land only 9 9
Historic buildings 1 1
Parks & open spaces -  Area (Hectares) 1,091 1,091

Land awaiting development 6 8
Surplus Assets 10 19

18.AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RESERVE

2009/10 2008/09
£000s £000s

Balance as at 1st April 2009 15 0

Change in Fair Value in year 0 15

Balance as at 31st March 2010 15 15

Notes to Main Financial Statements

The Council holds a number of assets within Long Term Investments which are classified as Available For Sale. The fair
value of these assets are shown in the Balance Sheet with any movement in their fair value being held in the Available for
Sale Reserve.

The asset register has been updated for additions, reclassifications, sales and disposals during the year.

Fixed assets owned by the Council and reflected in the Balance Sheet are included in the following list. Fixed assets not 
included within the Council's asset register, have been excluded from the current analysis. 

44Page 61



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
19.REVALUATION RESERVE

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Balance at 1 April 18,156 26,153

Revaluation Increases
Council Dwellings 0 0
Other HRA Properties 127 0
Land & Buildings 12,330 15,279
Community Assets 25 211
Investment Properties 0 2,013
Surplus Assets 1,146 13,628 500 18,003

Revaluation decreases Written Out against prior
gains
Council Dwellings (145) (145) (25,935) (25,935)

Depreciation charges to revaluation reserve
Land & Buildings (226) 0
Community Assets (5) (231) 0 0

Revaluation Reserve Written Out on Disposal
Surplus Assets (180) (180) (65) (65)

Balance at 31 March 31,228 18,156

2009/10 2008/09

The balance on the Revaluation Reserve represents revaluation gains for fixed assets from their depreciated historic 
cost. The reserve replaced the Fixed Asset Restatement Account in 2007/08 and, therefore, the closing balance 
shows revaluation gains since 1st April 2007 only.

45Page 62



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

20.CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Balance at 1 April 1,123,064 1,182,303

Capital receipts applied for capital financing 1,485 19,797
Capital receipts applied to reduce 
indebtedness 0 (16,357)
Adjustment for finance lease principal 979 2,464 1,739 5,179

Capital financing - revenue 2,666 3,955
Write down of revenue expenditure funded
from capital under statute (17,905) (17,772)
Government grants written down 49,659 20,876

Minimum Revenue Provision (less
General Fund Depreciation)
General Fund MRP 3,721 3,543                 
less: Depreciation charged to General Fund (16,810) (16,680)
less: HRA Depreciation greater than MRA (570) (13,659) (1,350) (14,487)

Fixed Asset Movements
Disposals (6,174) (3,781)
Impairments (148,177) (52,012)
Revaluations Written Out 414 (153,937) (1,197) (56,990)

Balance at 31 March 992,352 1,123,064

21.USABLE CAPITAL RECEIPTS RESERVE
2009/10 2008/09

£000's £000's
Opening Balance 1,009 379
Capital receipts received in year 6,093 4,959

7,102 5,338
LESS:
Pooled capital receipts (583) (890)
Capital receipts used for financing (1,485) (3,439)
Other (6) 0

Closing Balance 5,028 1,009

The Usable Capital Receipts (UCR) reserve represents the capital receipts available to finance capital expenditure or to
repay debt in future years.

2009/10 2008/09

Services are charged depreciation which is then reversed via the Statement of Movement on General Fund Balances to
the Capital Adjustment Account in accordance with proper accounting practice in order to negate the impact on the
amount required to be raised from local taxation. In replacement, a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is set aside from
local taxation to meet the redemption of external debt. In 2009/10 MRP of £3,721k (£3,543k in 2008/09) had to be
financed from Council Tax. 

46Page 63



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
22.LONG TERM DEBTORS

31 March 2010 New Advances Repayments 1 April 2009
£000's £000's £000's £000's

Housing advances & associations 20 0 (2) 22
Sale of Council houses 144 0 (32) 176
Long term payments in advance 147 147 0 0
Other loans & advances 270 64 (20) 226

581 211 (54) 424

23.STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
At  31 March At 31 March

2010 2009
£000's £000's

Stocks:
Building maintenance/highways 126 262
Printing & stationery 0 7
Other stocks 2 6

128 275
Work In Progress:

Other rechargeable works 0 (142)
128 133

24.DEBTORS
At  31 March At 31 March

2010 2009
£000's £000's

Government  departments 13,077 17,973
Other public bodies 2,172 1,240
Hillingdon Homes Ltd 1,614 2,966
Housing rents 4,310 5,076
Council taxpayers 9,089 9,057
Sundry debtors 24,364 21,350
Car & other loans 44 176

54,670 57,838
Less:  Provision for doubtful debts (19,320) (17,222)

35,350 40,616

47Page 64



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
25.CREDITORS

At  31 March At 31 March
2010 2009

£000's £000's

Government departments 21,251 23,851
Non-domestic rates pool 22,564 26,801
Other public bodies 1,020 7,651
Hillingdon Homes Ltd 2,217 2,200
Sundry creditors 51,215 45,836
Council taxpayers 3,501 3,397

101,768 109,736

26.SUMMARY OF TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY

27.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BALANCES

31st March 
2010

31st March 
2009

31st March 
2010

31st March 
2009

31st March 
2010

31st March 
2009

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

166,600 197,949 16,000 21 182,600 197,970
(3,402) (3,423) 0 (3,402) (3,423)

0 0 1,578 2,033 1,578 2,033
163,198 194,526 17,578 2,054 180,776 196,580

163,198 194,526 17,578 2,054 180,776 196,580

8,195 2,000 64,326 93,000 72,521 95,000 
0 0 (4,400) (5,616) (4,400) (5,616)
0 0 334 980 334 980 
0 0 787 484 787 484 

8,195 2,000 61,047 88,848 69,242 90,848
75 75 0 0 75 75
0 0 13,762 18,433 13,762 18,433

8,270 2,075 74,809 107,281 83,079 109,356

The above financial liabilities do not include finance leases.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment
Accrued Interest 

Current

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Accrued notional Icelandic interest

Premium
Accrued interest

All trade payables and receivables are due for settlement within one year. Debtors and creditors falling within this definition are
disclosed elsewhere in the Balance Sheet.

Investments

Total investments

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

Cash in hand

Loans and receivables at nominal

Total

Borrowings

Total borrowings

Financial liabilities at nominal cost

Long-Term

The Council defines its treasury management activities as the management of the organisation's investments and cash flows,
its banking, money market and capital market transactions and the effective control of risks associated with those activities to
achieve optimum performance consistent with those risks.

The successful identification, monitoring and control of risks are the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury
management activities will be measured. The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support
towards the achievement of its business and service objectives.

The Council maintains a flexible policy regarding debt rescheduling and the market is continuously monitored for opportunities
to redeem or restructure debt.

The Council's policy is to invest its surplus funds prudently and the investment priorities are;- security of invested capital,
liquidity of the invested capital and an optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity. The speculative
procedure of borrowing purely in order to invest is unlawful.

The Council's underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by reference to the Capital Financing Requirement
which represents the cumulative capital expenditure of the local authority that has not been financed from internal resources

48Page 65



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT GAINS/LOSSES

Interest
Payable & 

Similar
Charges

Interest & 
Investment

Income

Movement in 
Available for 

Sale
2010 Total 2009 Total

£000s £000s £000 £000s £000s

Interest expense (6,871) 0 0 (6,871) (9,357)
Losses on derecognition (914) 0 0 (914) (339)
Gains on derecognition 851 0 0 851 176

(6,934) 0 0 (6,934) (9,520)

Loans & Receivables
Interest income 0 1,133 0 1,133 5,865
Notional Icelandic Interest 0 787 0 787 484
Impairment Adjustment 548 0 0 548 0
Impairment losses 0 0 0 0 (5,616)
Interest and investment income 548 1,920 2,468 733

Available for Sale
Gains on revaluation 0 0 5 5 21
Losses on revaluation 0 0 (5) (5) (6)

0 0 0 0 15

Net gain/(loss) for the year (6,386) 1,920 0 (4,466) (8,772)
PFI Interest (1,079) 0 (1,079) (1,123)
Other (144) 98 (46) (465)
Total Gains and Losses (7,609) 2,018 0 (5,591) (10,360)

The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account and STRGL in relation to financial instruments
are made up as follows:

Liabilities measured at amortised cost

Total

Interest payable and similar charges

Interest payable and similar charges

49Page 66



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

June 2010 -5% September 2010 -5% December 2010 - 5%
March 2011 - 5% June 2011 - 5% September 2011 - 5%
December 2011 - 5% March 2012 - 5% June 2012 - 5%
September 2012 - 5%

October 2011 - 22.17% October 2012 - 8.87% October 2013 - 8.87%
October 2014 - 8.87% October 2015 - 8.87% October 2016 - 8.87%
October 2017 - 8.87% October 2018 - 19.47%

Landsbanki

Landsbanki Islands hf is an Icelandic entity. Following steps taken by the Icelandic Government in early October 2008 its
domestic assets and liabilities were transferred to a new bank (new Landsbanki) with the management of the affairs of Old
Landsbanki being placed in the hands of a resolution committee. Old Landsbanki’s affairs are being administered under
Icelandic law. Previous advice has been based on the assumption that local authorities had priority status and would therefore
be paid ahead of any creditors that did not have priority status. This was based on legal advice obtained by local authorities
and on announcements made by the bank. The latest legal advice remains that that deposits have priority status under
Icelandic law, however the final decision about the priority status of local authorities will be made by the Icelandic courts. There
is no evidence to suggest that Landsbanki accepted deposits on different terms and therefore it is expected the courts will
come to the same conclusion. Allowing for court cases to be heard and for the appeals process to run its course, it is unlikely
there will be a settled position on priority status before the second quarter of 2011.

The Local Authority Accounting Panel considers on the basis of legal advice obtained by local authorities and advice provided
by the Local Government Association that it remains the most likely outcome claims will enjoy priority status. Based on this
assessment the Local Authority Accounting Panel recommends that the estimated recoverable amount to be included in the
balance sheet is based on the assumption that local authority deposits will indeed enjoy priority status. The estimate and profile
below is based on this assumption.

Advice received in 2009 recommended that claims should include interest up to 22 April 2009. In cases where the maturity date
was before 22 April 2009, interest between the maturity date and 22 April 2009 should be credited at a penalty rate of 22%.
This recommendation was based on legal advice at the time but noted that the Winding Up Board had yet to clarify the position
regarding penalty interest. No further information beyond the maturity date has been received and it therefore remains possible
that the final settlement of claims may include penalty interest at 22%. However the Local Authority Accounting Board now
considers this to be less likely and that the contractual rate be used as a known rate that falls between the extremes of the
range.

ICELANDIC IMPAIRMENTS

Heritable Bank is a UK registered bank under Scots law. The company was placed in administration on 7 October 2008. The
latest available information in the LAAP 82 bulletin update, now shows a best case estimate return of between 79 and 85 pence
in the pound. The strategy of winding up the bank by 2012 is expected to produce a return at the top end of this range; a
strategy of winding up the bank before 2012 would lead to lower returns. On this basis the Local Authority Accounting Panel
considers that a recovery at the top end of the estimate is the most likely outcome and this therefore forms the best estimate.
The schedule below is based on expected total dividends of 84.98% of the claim.

Heritable Bank

In October 2008 the Council had unpaid deposits with Heritable Bank (£15,000k) and Landsbanki Islands (£5,000k). During
2009/10 three dividends were received from the administrators of Heritable bank totalling £5,278k and representing 35% of the
claim. Authorities are required under FRS16 to make best estimates of any impairment of Financial Assets. Based on the
latest information collated by CIPFA and published in the LAAP 82 bulletin update no.2, it is anticipated that the Council will
recover approximately 84.98% of Heritable and 94.86% of Landsbanki deposits. Therefore a total impairment of £2,500k is
expected. The latest estimates are an improvement from 2008/09 where expected rates of recovery were 80% for Heritable
and 83% for Landsbanki and a total impairment of £3,850k.

Such impairments are calculated using a discounted cash flow calculation with interest credited back each year until the
relevant banks' books are closed. Since the original impairment estimate further information has become available and a
reassessment of the recoverable amount has been calculated and accounted for in 2009/10. A reduction in the impairment of
£548k is included in the Income and Expenditure Account under Interest Payable and Similar Charges and has been reversed
out to the Financial Instrument Adjustment Account (FIAA) in accordance with statutory regulation. The balance in the FIAA
was further reduced by £787k following the posting of notional interest credits to the Income and Expenditure account in
accordance with accounting practices.

50Page 67



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
29.FAIR VALUE OF LIABILITIES CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

Fair Value 2009/10

Carrying
amount

Fair value
Carrying
amount

Fair value

£000's £000's £000's £000's
PWLB (Maturity Fixed) 92,029 89,526 147,588 146,163
PWLB (EIP Fixed) 15,118 15,056 0 0
PWLB (EIP Variable) 15,006 15,006 0 0
Market 48,620 44,816 48,992 50,832
Temporary 10,003 10,003 0 0
Financial liabilities 180,776 174,407 196,580 196,995

Financial Liabilities 2009/10

 - Method

 - Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

 - Market

 - Temporary

30.FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

Carrying
amount

Fair value
Carrying
amount

Fair value

£'000s £'000s £000's £000's
Short Term 61,047 61,047 88,744 88,744
Long Term 8,195 8,195 2,104 2,164
Available for Sale 75 75 75 75
Financial Assets 69,317 69,317 90,923 90,983

Financial Assets 2009/10

To ascertain fair values, financial assets have been divided into four categories:

 - Maturities within 12 months 

Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, assuming that the
transaction was negotiated between parties knowledgeable about the market in which they are dealing and willing to
buy/sell at an appropriate price, with no other motive in their negotiations other than to secure a fair price. In most cases,
this amount will be the transaction price, e.g. the amount of a loan made or the price paid for a bond.

The fair value of an instrument is determined by calculating the Net Present Value of future cashflows that are scheduled
to take place over the remaining life of the loan. This provides an estimate of the value of payments in the future in today's
terms.

The new borrowing rate has been used as the discount factor for all PWLB borrowing. The new borrowing rate will
calculate the notional interest gain/loss that will accrue if the authority keeps the loan until maturity.

Requests were made directly for market loan fair values. In the case where this information is not provided or not available
from the counterparty, the fair value was calculated based on the nearest equivalent SWAP rates at the balance sheet
date, sourced from Bloomberg. The SWAP rates are based on the Mid Rate for that day. It is assumed these provide a
more accurate proxy than using PWLB rates as they are based on market rates and extend beyond the PWLB’s 50-year
limit.

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

The overnight LIBOR rate has been used as the discount factor as it reflects an equivalent rate payable on temporary
market borrowing at the Balance Sheet date for the remaining period of the loan.

Following SORP guidance where instruments mature within 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed to approximate
fair value.

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

51Page 68



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
 - Impaired Investments

 - Available for Sale investments

 - Long Term Investments

31.CREDIT RISK A

Fitch
Rating at 
time of 
Deposit

Fitch Rating 
31 March 

2010

1-3
Months

3-6
Months

6-12
Months

Over
12 Months

Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Banks
UK AA   F1+  1 AA-  F1+  1 2,229        0 0 0 2,229        

AA-  F1+  1 AA-  F1+  1 15,905      0 0 0 15,905      

Iceland
A  F1  1

In default 
Credit Rating 
Withdrawn 744 733 1436 4074 6,987        

A  F1  2
In default 

Credit Rating 
Withdrawn 0 0 0 4121 4,121        

18,878      733           1,436        8,195        29,242      

Debt Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility

AAA AAA
40,000      0 0 0 40,000      

58,878 733 1,436 8,195 69,242      

The Council manages risk by developing a counterparty list with stringent safeguards and restrictions. These
include the type of institutions that comprise the counterparty list, the maximum sum which can be deposited
with each institution, the maximum length of time sums can be invested and also limits to avoid any over-
exposure to one particular group. A range of knowledge and information is used to judge risk before compiling
the counterparty list and making investment decisions and these are derived from such sources as the financial
press, treasury advisers, rating agencies and market tracking etc. Investments are diversified across institutions
to ensure an even spread of risk throughout the counterparty list. Information relating to the counterparties is
constantly monitored and action taken should any institution fail to meet the minimum criteria.

When assessing an impairment, identifying or estimating the recoverable amount or fair value is a key task.
Following CIPFA guidance (LAAP Bulletin 82 update no. 2) an impairment has been calculated. By applying this
to the amortised value of the investment the resulting balance is assumed therefore to be the fair value.

Quoted market prices as at the 31 March 2010 have been applied as the fair value for available for sale assets.
These assets are held on the balance sheet at their market price.

The information above provides both current and time of deposit credit ratings of institutions and durations of
outstanding investments held by the council. The disclosures above are given at their amortised value. 

Outstanding investments as at 31 March 2010
Maturity of investments

The fair value is normally calculated based on the equivalent SWAP rate, however as at 31 March 2010 the 
Council did not hold any long term investments.

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk of failure by a third party to meet its contractual obligations under an
investment, loan or other commitment, especially one due to deterioration in its creditworthiness, which causes
the Council an unexpected burden on its capital or revenue resources. As a holder of public funds, the Council
recognises its prime responsibility is always to safeguard the principal of any sums which it invests. The
Council's investment priorities are security of invested capital, liquidity of invested capital and optimum yield
which is commensurate with security and liquidity and in that order.

52Page 69



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

Credit Rating Definitions

Long Term Short Term
AAA Highest credit quality F1 Highest credit quality
AA Very high credit quality F2 Good credit quality
A High credit quality F3 Fair credit quality

BBB Good credit quality B Speculative
BB Speculative C High default risk
B Highly speculative RD Defaulted on some financial commitments

CCC Default possibility D Defaulted on all financial commitments
CC Default imminent
D Defaulted

Support
1 Extremely high probability of external support
2 High probability of external support
3 Moderate probability of support
4 Limited probability of support
5 Possible support but cannot be relied upon

32.CREDIT RISK B

PWLB Market Other Total PWLB Market Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Nominal Value 124,600 48,000   10,000   182,600   149,600 48,000    370         197,970     
Premium (3,402) 0 0 (3,402) (3,423) 0 0 (3,423)
Interest 955        620        3            1,578       1,411      618         4             2,033         
Amortised Value 122,153 48,620   10,003   180,776   147,588 48,618    374         196,580     

The table below relates to Refinancing risk. Further details of this can be found in Note 34 on page 54.

17,578 2,054
Between 1 and less than 2 years 3,000 3,023
Between 2 and less than 5 years 12,000 6,072
Between 5 and less than 10 years 42,000 17,139
Between 10 and less than 20 years 28,000 20,115
Between 20 and less than 30 years 0 25,000
Between 30 and less than 40 years 0 20,000
Between 40 and less than 50 years 30,198 55,177
Over 50 years 48,000 48,000
Total 180,776 196,580

33.LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash will not be available when it is required. This can jeopardise the ability of the Council to
carry out its functions or disrupt those functions being carried out in the most cost effective manner. The Council will
therefore have sufficient standby facilities to ensure that there is always sufficient liquidity to deal with unexpected
occurrences. It will also seek to ensure that its cash flow forecasting gives as accurate a picture as possible to the ebbs
and flows in income and expenditure and the resulting residual daily cash balances available for investment.

On 31 March 2009

Less than 1 year

Loans
On 31 March 2010

The credit ratings provided show three indicators; the long term rating, short term rating and support rating.

 The Policy on borrowing is to spread exposure between PWLB and market sources. This enables the Council to avail 
itself of rescheduling facilities offered by the PWLB and also to obtain potentially favourable rates offered by the market.

53Page 70



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
34.REFINANCING RISK

35.MARKET RISK

Financial Assets

In order to minimise debt costs the Council delayed taking its long term borrowing requirement for 2009/10. However in
order to meet cash flow commitments temporary borrowing was required of which £10,000k was outstanding at year end. 

The Council had a weighted average balance of loans during 2009/10 of £174,387k and across these loans the average
rate paid was 3.94%. A movement of 1% in the average rate payable would have exposed the Council to a £1,745k
movement in loan interest costs.

The Council had an average balance of investments (excluding unpaid Icelandic deposits) for 2009/10 of £65,105k. Within
this figure a rolling balance of approximately £30,000k was required for day-to-day cash flow needs with the remainder
being attributable to capital expenditure requirements. Throughout the year deposits were placed in instant access
accounts and in fixed term deposits with varying maturity periods. This approach aimed to match investment maturities with
expected expenditure and to spread interest rate risk. The term remaining on all deposits at year end was less than one
year and therefore classified as variable. The average rate of return achieved on investments throughout the year was
1.74%. If there were a movement of 1% in the rate received on average investment balances the Council would be
exposed to a £651k movement on investment income.

The policy on debt redemption is to maintain a fairly stable fall out of debt required to be refinanced each year. To achieve
this, the target has been set so that the maximum debt to fall out naturally in any year is around 10%. This spreads the risk
of interest rate exposure so all debt is not subject to renewal at the same time.

In addition to debt that falls out naturally in any year, the Council can choose to redeem debt early as part of its overall debt
management policy. This assists in restructuring the Council's debt portfolio and although in the short term a premium
charge may be incurred, longer-term finance costs may be significantly reduced.

£48,000k of debt is held in "Lenders Option Borrowers Option" (LOBO) market loans. These have been set to provide
varying periods of fixed rate ranges with subsequent options for the lender to change this rate on agreed dates. A LOBO
which falls within a year of an interest change date is classified as variable. Over the next three years loans totalling
£10,000k, £9,000k and £8,000k respectively are scheduled for rate change options. 

Included within the management of market risk is interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that unexpected changes in
interest rates expose the Council to greater costs or a shortfall in income than had been budgeted. The Council will seek
to minimise this risk by seeking expert advice on forecasts of interest rates from treasury management consultants and
agreeing with them its strategy for the coming year for investment and debt portfolios. Fixed and variable limits are
published in the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement. This strategy is periodically reviewed during the year
and adapted to reflect changing economic circumstances in the light of actual movements in interest rates. 

The majority of borrowing made by the Council is sourced from the PWLB. (As at 31 March 2010 £109,600k was at fixed
rates and £15,000k at variable rates). Borrowing at fixed rates enables the Council to enjoy stability of costs in future years
and helps improve budgetary processes. Fixed rates protect the Council from interest rate increases but in contrast
exposes it to opportunity costs should rates fall. Borrowing at variable rates currently allows the Council to source debt at
levels which are considerably lower than fixed rate debt. In order to mitigate the risks associated with variable debt the
Council has limited it's exposure to a proportion of it's working balance and as such any rise in debt costs will be offset by
increased investment income. Sourcing debt from the PWLB allows the Council to reschedule or prematurely redeem debt
and the portfolio is continually monitored to take advantage of opportunities that may present themselves periodically to
reduce overall costs.

Refinancing risk is the risk that when loans or other forms of capital financing mature, they cannot be refinanced where
necessary on terms that reflect the assumptions made in formulating revenue and capital budgets. As a result of this the
Council aims to have no more than 10% of loans maturing in any one year.

Financial Liabilities

54Page 71



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
36.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Opening Balance (5,309) (105)

Recognition of Impairment 0 (5,616)
Recognition of Premiums (914) (386)
Amortisation of Premiums 88 130
Recognition of Discounts 851 0
Amortisation of Discounts (79) 0
Impairment Adjustment 548 0
Notional Icelandic Interest 787 668

Closing Balance (4,028) (5,309)

37.FUND BALANCES AND RESERVES

At 31st March At 31st March
2010 2009

£000's £000's

General Fund :     - Working balance 18,900 17,291
- Schools delegated funds 11,890 11,022

Earmarked Reserves - Parking fund 754 906
- New Road & Streetworks Act fund 190 190
- Elections 212 141
- Insurance Risk Management 33 0
- Imported Food Service 220 0
- Schools Earmarked Reserves 1,809 0
- Grant Funded Reserves 1,780 0

Housing Revenue Account 6,045 4,561
41,833 34,111

Specific Reserves

The Financial Instrument Adjustment Account is an account to allow for differences in statutory requirements and proper
accounting practices for borrowings and investments. Amounts are released from this account each year and charged to the
Income and Expenditure Account. The effect is to reduce the impact to the Council Tax payer in any one year.

Schools delegated funds - Schools are able to carry forward unspent balances of delegated budgets. These balances are
committed to be spent by the schools concerned and are not available to the Council for general use.
Parking fund - This represents surpluses set aside from on-street parking income to fund traffic management and transport
initiatives, as defined by statute.
New Roads & Streetworks Act fund - Income raised under Section 74 of the New Roads & Streetworks Act is required by
statute to be ring fenced for maintaining the highways. Income not spent within the year is set aside in the New Roads and
Streetworks Act fund.
Elections - Council elections occur every four years. An amount is set aside each year from the Council's budget to meet the
cost of elections. 
Insurance Risk Management - Exceptional income related to insurance transactions set aside to finance risk reduction
measures with the aim of reducing future insurance costs. 
Imported Food Service - To meet the fluctuations of income from the Imported Food Service (for example during times of
reduced economic activity), in order to mitigate any potential impacts on the Council's General fund. 
Schools Earmarked Reserves - Funds set aside to meet insurance, sickness cover and other schools related expenditure.
Grant Funded Reserves - Grant income set aside to fund future expenditure.

55Page 72



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

39.ACCOUNTING FOR THE COLLECTION FUND BALANCE

At 31st March At 31st March
2009 2008

£000's £000's

Fund Balances & Reserves 791 137
Creditor in respect of GLA share 218 38

1,009 175

40.EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

41.Section 75 AGREEMENT FOR LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES

The Collection Fund balance at 1 April 2009 had a deficit of £175k. An in-year defecit of £834k resulted in a remaining
deficit balance at 31 March 2010 of £1,009k, which has been split on the basis that surpluses and deficits are shared with
the Greater London Authority (78.22% to Hillingdon, 21.78% to GLA).

On the 21st April 2010 the London Borough of Hillingdon and Hillingdon Homes Limited signed an agreement to transfer
all services carried out by Hillingdon Homes Limited to London Borough of Hillingdon on the 1st October 2010. All assets
and liabilities of Hillingdon Homes Ltd will transfer to the London Borough of Hillingdon and all staff of Hillingdon Homes
Limited will be transferred under Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE) on the 1st
October 2010. Hillingdon Homes' accounts are currently consolidated with those of the Council in the Group Accounts,
which indicates the extent of the assets and liabilities to be assumed.

A Section 75 agreement is in operation between London Borough of Hillingdon and Hillingdon Primary Care Trust in
respect of Learning Disability Services and was effective from 1st April 2008. This is not operating as a Pooled Budget in
that it clearly identifies the financial liabilities of the two partners on an individual client basis. The object of the agreement
is to enable the effective commissioning of services for this client group thereby providing a seamless service to the
individual. For 2009-10 this service provided support to approximately 660 clients at a gross cost of £34m which included
approximately 105 PCT clients for which the council received £10.4m.

56Page 73



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
42.PROVISIONS

At 31 March At 31 March
2009 2008

£000's £000's
Adult Services Insurance 173 210
Highways Insurance 1,269 1,217
Housing Insurance 126 104
Schools Insurance 243 252
Trees Insurance 513 758
Other Insurance 395 406
Total Insurance Provision 2,719 2,947
Equal pay - Back Pay Provision 40 234
Section 177 Mental Health Act 427 460
Dilapidation Provision 356 385
Jarvis Accommodation Services Provision 44 0
Total 3,586 4,026

Insurance

Equal Pay - Back Pay Provision

Section 117 Mental Health Act Provision

Dilapidation Provision

Jarvis Accommodation Services Provision

The Council has external insurance for major risks such as buildings, liability indemnity and motor vehicles. The policy has an
excess clause that requires the Council to meet the first part of each claim before the insurance company becomes liable to
make payments. The excess level for liabilities was £100k in 2009/10 (£100k in 2008/09). The Council self funds liability
claims which fall under the insurance policy excess. The insurance fund provision is to provide for outstanding liability claims
against the Council as at 31 March 2010. 

Following the House of Lords ruling in May 2002 that local authorities have no power to charge for care provided under
Section 117 of Mental Health Act 1983 the Council has made a provision of £427k (£461k in 2008/09) for the reimbursement
of charges. The amount and timing of payments will be determined by the number of claims.

A provision of £44k (nil in 2008/09) relates to utility bills for Barnhill School. This liability should have been met by the
facilities management provider, Jarvis Accommodation Services Limited. The company has recently gone into administration
and as the utility supplier's contract is with the Council, the authority is ultimately liable for these costs. This provision has
been set aside to meet the amount outstanding in the event that the liability is not settled by the administrators.

In April 2003 the Council entered into a contract to lease homes for use by the Council as temporary accommodation. The
contract requires the payment of dilapidation costs and a provision of £356k (£385k in 2008/09) has been made to finance
these costs.

Following a court ruling most Councils are facing legal action on the issue of equal pay. Hillingdon is in a strong position to
defend claims as it harmonised its grading structure for officer and manual workers and introduced a common job evaluation
scheme on 1 July 2003. During 2009/10 the Council embarked on a negotiated settlement process which is due to conclude
in 2010/11. The Council made a provision in 2006/07 of £234k of which £194k is being drawn down in 2009/10 to represent
the amount of the successfully negotiated settlements. Legislation has been passed to negate the impact of this provision on
the Council's balances therefore this expenditure has been reversed out in the Movement on General Fund Balances. The
provision in the balance sheet is matched with a balance on the Equal Pay Back Pay Account.

57Page 74



U
na
ud
ite
d

43.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

44.ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS EMPLOYED

At 31 March At 31 March
2010 2009

£000's £000's
General fund 12,134 330,248
HRA 638,944 629,937
Total 651,078 960,185

45.TRUST FUNDS

At 31 March At 31 March
2009 2008
£ £

3,898 3,885
9,566 9,201

13,464 13,086

Notes to Main Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for a number of small trust funds which are not consolidated in the accounts. The Council
administers the trusts and bequest funds in accordance with the wishes of the benefactors and disbursements from
funds are made in pursuance of the objectives of each fund. Surplus monies are invested and the funds receive
income mainly from interest and dividends on investments.

There is one potential insurance clawback and one significant legal action pending against the Council arising from the
exercise, by the Council, of its statutory functions.

During 1992/93 the Council's then insurers, Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI), ceased accepting new business.
During 1993/94 a scheme of arrangement was set up to ensure an orderly settlement of outstanding claims. Under
this arrangement the Council may be required to repay MMI part of any claim met since 1 October 1993. This would
only occur if MMI could not meet all claims against it, which is not expected to be the case. Nevertheless at 31 March
2010, the sum potentially subject to 'clawback' was £2,355k (£2,356k as at 31 March 2009). Further claims totalling
£93k were outstanding (£43k in 2008/09).

Persimmon Homes - In March 2007, Persimmon Homes purchased land at Hillingdon House Farm from the Council
for £19,250k. A claim has been received for misrepresentation in relation to a DEFRA licence for an abbattoir which
Persimmon Homes state has resulted in a loss to them in excess of £1,000k. No claim has yet been received but the
Council will be defending any such claim as it believes there is no liability.

The figures for 2008/09 have been restated to provide a more accurate analysis. The reduction in Net Assets
Employed in 2009/10 for the General Fund is largely due to the £204,029 increase in the Pension Scheme Liability.

Education trusts - providing academic prizes
Library trusts - purchase of library books
Total

58Page 75



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

46.PENSION SCHEMES

Defined Benefit Pension schemes

Defined Contribution Pension schemes

Transaction relating to retirement benefits

With regard to the Teachers' Pensions Scheme there were no contributions remaining payable at the year end. The
Teachers' Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme. Although the scheme is unfunded a notional fund is used as a
basis for calculating the employers' contribution rate paid by local education authorities. However, it is not possible for the
authority to identify a share of the underlying liabilities in the scheme attributable to its own employees. For the purposes
of this statement of accounts it is therefore accounted on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme. The authority
is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early retirement outside of the terms of the teachers'
scheme. There were no lump sums awarded in 2009/10 and £276k was paid in respect of on-going payments (£205k in
2008/09).

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by employees,
rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge required against council tax is based
on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Statement of Movement in the
General Fund Balance. The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and
Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance during the year:

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the authority offers retirement
benefits that include retirement pensions, dependent pensions, death grants and lump sum payments. Although these
benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the authority has a commitment to make the payments that
need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The authority participates in two funds of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), Contributions are made by the
Council and employees at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets.  The two funds are:

- London Borough of Hillingdon Fund of the LGPS for employees, administered locally by the authority.
- London Pension Fund of the LGPS, which is a closed arrangement for former employees administered by the London
Pension Fund authority.

Teachers employed by the authority are members of the Teachers' Pension Scheme. This fund is administered by the
Department for Children, Schools and Families (Department for Education from 12 May 2010) and provides teachers with
defined benefits upon their retirement. The authority contributes towards the pensions by making payments to the fund
based on a percentage of members' pensionable salaries. The employer's contribution rate was 14.1% in 2009/10 (14.1%
in 2008/09). The total contribution to the fund by the authority in 2009/10 was £12,546k (£11,924k in 2008/09). £1,058k
of the 2009/10 amount was oustanding at 31 March 2010 (£989k from 2008/09 at 31 March 2009).

The adequacy of the funds' contributions and investments to resource future liabilities is reviewed tri-annually by actuaries
appointed by the Council; the next review is on the 31 March 2010. The contribution rates are then set to meet the overall
liabilities of the fund under Pension Fund Regulations. During 2009/10 employer's common contribution rate was 16.8%,
and employees contributed at variable rates between 5.8% and 7.5% of pensionable salary.

59Page 76



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements

Total

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Net cost of services
Current service costs 11,765 13,329 0 0 11,765 
Past service costs (319) 4,771 0 0 (319)
Settlements and curtailments 658 1,187 0 0 658 
Assets/(Liabilities) assumed in a business combination (320) (7) 0 0 (320)
Total Net Cost Of Services 11,784 19,280 0 0 11,784 

Net Operating Expenditure
Interest costs 40,251 41,306 351 380 40,602 
Expected return on assets in the scheme (24,664) (35,889) (128) (207) (24,792)
Total Net Operating Expenditure 15,587 5,417 223 173 15,810 

Movement on pension reserve 27,371 24,697 223 173 27,594 

Employer's contributions payable to scheme 18,881 16,895 0 0 18,881 
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 2,069 2,077 9 10 2,078 

20,950 18,972 9 10 20,959 

47.PENSION SCHEMES BALANCE SHEET DISCLOSURES

Reconciliation of present value of scheme liabilities

Total

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Opening Benefit Obligation 584,318 597,833 5,400 5,857 589,718 
Current Service Cost 11,765 13,329 0 0 11,765 
Interest Cost 40,251 41,306 351 380 40,602 
Contributions by Members 7,077 6,760 0 0 7,077 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 316,988 (53,816) 1,035 (134) 318,023
Past Service Costs/(Gains) (319) 4,771 0 0 (319)
Losses/(Gains) on Curtailments 658 1,000 0 0 658 
Liabilities Extinguished on Settlements 0 (2,488) 0 0 0 
Liabilities Assumed in a Business Combination 2,386 29 0 0 2,386 
Exchange Differences 0 0 0 0 0 
Estimated Unfunded Benefits Paid (2,069) (2,077) (9) (10) (2,078)
Estimated Benefits Paid (23,921) (22,329) (619) (693) (24,540)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 937,134 584,318 6,158 5,400 943,292 

The adverse movement from actuarial losses in 2009/10 was the result of higher inflation assumptions and the fall in the 
discount rate as set out on page 62.

Amounts to be met from Government Grants and 
Local Taxation:

In addition to the recognised gains and losses included in the Income and Expenditure Account, actuarial losses of £197,394k
in 2009/10 (£101,473k in 2008/09) were included in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses. The cumulative
amount of actuarial losses recognised in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses since 2004/05 is £302,127k.

London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension 

Fund

London Pension Fund 
Authority Pension 

Fund

London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension 

Fund

London Pension 
Authority Pension 

Fund

The Council expects to make payments of £21,819k in respect of contributions to the scheme during the financial year 2010/11.

Actual amount charged against council tax for 
pensions in the year:

60Page 77



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

Total

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Opening Fair Value of Employer Assets 375,718 495,968 3,510 4,593 379,228 
Expected Return on Assets 24,664 35,889 128 207 24,792 
Contributions by Members 7,077 6,760 0 0 7,077 
Contributions by the Employer 18,881 16,895 0 0 18,881 
Contributions in respect of Unfunded Benefits 2,069 2,077 9 10 2,078 
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) 120,380 (154,826) 249 (597) 120,629 
Assets Distributed on Settlements 0 (2,675) 0 0 0 
Assets Acquired in a Business Combination 2,706 36 0 0 2,706 
Exchange Differences 0 0 0 0 0 
Estimated Unfunded Benefits Paid (2,069) (2,077) 0 0 (2,069)
Estimated Benefits Paid (23,921) (22,329) (628) (703) (24,549)
Closing Fair Value of Employer Assets 525,505 375,718 3,268 3,510 528,773 

Scheme history

2009/10 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07 2005/06

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Present value of liabilities:
LBH (937,134) (584,318) (597,833) (639,114) (637,931)
LPFA (6,158) (5,400) (5,857) (6,770) (7,290)

Fair Value of Assets:
LBH 525,505 375,718 495,968 535,831 502,015
LPFA 3,268 3,510 4,593 5,334 5,813

Surplus / (Deficit) in the scheme:
LBH (411,629) (208,600) (101,865) (103,283) (135,916)
LPFA (2,890) (1,890) (1,264) (1,436) (1,477)
Total (414,519) (210,490) (103,129) (104,719) (137,393)

However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the authority remains viable: the
deficit on the LBH scheme will be made good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as
assessed by the scheme actuary, in addition to ongoing investment returns. 

London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension 

Fund

London Pension 
Fund Authority 
Pension Fund

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets
according to the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption
yields as at the Balance Sheet date. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-term real rates on return
experienced in the respective markets.

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The total
liability of £943,292k is offset by the scheme assets of £528,773k to give the net pension liability of £414,519k as disclosed
on the balance sheet.

61Page 78



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
48.PENSION SCHEMES BASIS OF ESTIMATION

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009

Financial Assumptions: (% p.a.)

Inflation/Pension Increase Rate 3.8% 3.1% 3.9% 3.1%
Salary Increase Rate 5.3% 4.6% 5.4% 4.6%
Expected Return on Assets 7.1% 6.5% 5.1% 4.4%
Discount Rate 5.5% 6.9% 5.5% 6.9%

Cashflow Matching 4.5% 4.2%
Equities 7.8% 7.0% 7.3% 7.0%
Target Return Portfolio 5.0% 0.0%
Bonds 5.0% 5.4%
Property 5.8% 4.9%
Cash 4.8% 4.0% 3.0% 4.0%

Mortality Assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
- Men 20.8 19.6 21 21
- Women 24.1 22.5 23.4 23.4

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
- Men 22.3 20.7 22 22
- Women 25.7 23.6 24.2 24.2

50% 50% 50% 68%

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009

Categories of assets held:
Cashflow Matching 0% 0% 38% 91%
Equities 74% 77% 11% 8%
Target Return Portfolio 0% 0% 54% 0%
Bonds 17% 12% 0% 0%
Property 7% 8% 0% 0%
Cash 2% 3% (3%) 1%

London Borough of London Pension Fund 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, an estimate of the pensions that will
be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels etc. Both the LBH and LPFA
scheme liabilities have been assessed by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the
LBH scheme being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2007.

London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension 

Fund

London Pension Fund 
Authority Pension Fund

Expected Return on Assets by Category:

Take-up of option to convert annual pension 
to tax free lump sum

The assets held by the schemes consist of the following categories, by proportion of total assets held:

62Page 79



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
History of experience gains and losses

2009/10 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07 2005/06

LBH 32.0% (41.2%) (15.2%) 0.2% 14.5%
LPFA 7.6% (17.0%) (7.9%) 0.0% 3.9%
Experience gains and losses on liabilities:
LBH 54.2% 0.0% 2.2% 0.0% (0.0%)
LPFA 31.7% (0.3%) (14.3%) 0.1% (0.0%)

49.RECONCILIATION OF REVENUE CASH FLOW

Year ended 31st March 2010 Year ended 31st March 2009
Note £000's £000's £000's £000's

General fund net surplus (3,223) (2,251)
HRA deficit (1,484) 478
Collection Fund (831) (1,133)

Total surplus (5,538) (2,906)

Add items not resulting in cashflow
Minimum Revenue Provision (3,721) (3,543)
Voluntary Revenue Provision (979) (1,739)
Contributions from reserves 3,209 71
Provisions set aside in year 440 520
Other non cash items (8,604) 8,758

(9,655) 4,067
Movements in working capital
Increase in creditors 51 7,968 (22,594)
Decrease in stocks & work in progress 51 (5) (14)
Decrease in debtors 51 (5,266) (16,314)
Decrease in long term debtors 157 (220)

2,854 (39,142)
Items Classified elsewhere on Cashflow 
Statement

Capital expenditure financed from revenue (10,652) (11,580)
Lease Payments (1,090) (606)
Capital Receipts in respect of the pool 290 1,343
Deduct interest received 1,596 7,031
Interest paid (7,326) (9,757)
NNDR Receipts (48,194) (47,948)
Council Tax Receipts 425 (3,968)

(64,951) (65,485)

Revenue activities cash inflow (77,290) (103,466)

50.MOVEMENT IN LIQUID RESOURCES

31st  March Movement 31st  March Movement
2010 2009/10 2009 2008/09

£000's £000's £000's £000's
Cash in hand 13,762 (4,671) 18,433 3,978

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2009/10 can be analysed into the following
categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at 31 March 2010.

Difference between expected and actual 
return on assets:

63Page 80



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Main Financial Statements
51.MOVEMENT IN OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

31st  March 31st  March Movement Movement
2010 2009 2009/10 2008/09

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Debtors 35,350 40,616 (5,266) (16,314)
Creditors (101,768) (109,736) 7,968 (22,594)
Stocks and work in progress 128 133 (5) (14)

(66,290) (68,987) 2,697 (38,922)

52.ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS

31st March 31st March 
2010 2009

£000's £000's

Rent allowances 77,271 59,876
Council tax & housing benefits 37,502 34,991
Mandatory student awards 0 8
Schools standards fund 20,324 17,649
Homelessness 5,557 6,440
NNDR cost of collection 624 594
Refugee children 6,984 7,265
Adult asylum seekers 1,546 2,681
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 173,887 165,330
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 15,520 9,930
Area Based Grant 11,558 10,754
Other grants 83,437 78,334

434,210 393,852

53.RECONCILIATION OF NET CASHFLOW TO THE MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Net Debt as at 1st April 2009 89,299 113,621
105,967 89,299

16,668 (24,322)

Represented by:
Repayments of amount borrowed (31,328) (35,299)
New loans raised 15,524 10,000

(15,804) (25,299)

Decrease in short term deposits 27,801 4,955
Increase in cash 4,671 (3,978)

16,668 (24,322)

54.LEVIES

These amounts have been included under the various service headings under "Expenditure on Services".
The precepts and levies line in the Income and Expenditure account excludes those payments made directly from services.

Net Debt as at 31st March  2010

The analysis of Government Grants for 08/09 has been restated to include the Dedicated Schools Grant (£165,330k) and
the Housing Rent Rebate Allowance (£29,370k).

64Page 81



U
na
ud
ite
d

The Housing Revenue Account  (page 66) 

The Group financial statements include the Group income and expenditure account, balance sheet, cash flow statement
and the statement of total movement in reserves.

This fund is not included within the Council's Balance Sheet, but is maintained separately. The Council acts as the
administrator for the London Borough of Hillingdon Fund of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Other Financial Statements

Pension Fund Accounts (page 81)

The Collection Fund Account (page 69)

Group Accounts (page 72)

There is a statutory duty to account separately for local authority housing provision. The HRA Income and Expenditure
Account shows in detail the Income and Expenditure on HRA services included in the whole authority Income and
Expenditure Account. It includes the major elements of Council housing revenue expenditure on maintenance,
administration, subsidy and capital financing costs and major income sources such as rents and other income.

This account reflects the statutory requirement to maintain a separate Collection Fund which shows the transactions of the
billing authority in relation to National Non-Domestic Rates and Council Tax, and illustrates the way in which these have
been distributed to preceptors and the general fund. The Collection fund is consolidated with the other accounts of the
authority.

65Page 82



U
na
ud
ite
d

HRA - Income And Expenditure Account
 Year ended  Year ended 

Notes 31st March 2010 31st March 2009
£000's £000's

Income
Gross dwelling rents 47,756 46,760
Gross non dwelling rents 1,817 1,804
Charges for services and facilities 3,260 3,198
Contributions towards expenditure 1,647 1,893

54,480 53,655
Expenditure

Contribution to housing repairs 11,423 11,105
Supervision and management 17,190 16,192
Rents, rates,taxes & other charges 381 753
Increase / (Decrease) in provision for bad debts 237 534
Transfer of assumed surplus to DCLG 4 10,573 10,434
Debt management costs 156 55
Depreciation of fixed assets 8,556 8,974

48,516 48,047

(5,964) (5,608)

HRA Services share of Corporate and Democratic Core 190 186

Net Cost of HRA services (5,774) (5,422)

Impairment on HRA fixed assets 4,128 44,010
Gain on sale of HRA fixed assets (2,406) (26)
Interest payable and similar charges 2,380 2,952
HRA investment income (75) (63)

(1,747) 41,451

Statement of Movement on the HRA Balance
2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

(1,747) 41,451

2,406 26
81 0

8 84 (86)
2,203 3,473

Depreciation and Impairment on Fixed Assets (4,698) (45,360)
187 974

Decrease in HRA balance for the year (1,484) 478

HRA Balance Brought forward (4,561) (5,039)

HRA Balance carried forward (6,045) (4,561)

Deficit / (Surplus) for the year on HRA services

Premium on early redemption of HRA debt

Net Cost of HRA Services per Authority Income & 
Expenditure

HRA Voluntary Revenue Provision

Deficit / (Surplus) for the year on HRA services

Additional amount required by statute or non-statutory proper 
practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund balance for 
the year.

Capital Expenditure funded by the HRA

Gain on the sale of HRA Fixed Assets

HRA share of contributions to or from the Pension Reserve

66Page 83



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Housing Revenue Account
1.     HOUSING STOCK

Total at Total at
31st March 2010 31st March 2009

1 Bed Properties 3,656 3,664
2 Bed Properties 3,654 3,734
3 Bed Properties 2,865 2,882
4 plus Bed Properties 219 218
Hostel Dwellings 0 59
Total 10,394 10,557

2.      VALUE OF HRA ASSETS

Net Book Value at Net Book Value at 
31st March 2010 31st March 2009

Operational Assets £000's £000's
Council dwellings 694,875 698,685
Other land & buildings 12,937 12,233
Vehicle, plant & equipment 342 462

Non-Operational Assets 70 70

Total 708,224 711,450

3.      CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Total at Total at
31st March 2010 31st March 2009

£000's £000's

Revenue contribution 2,095 3,473
Major repairs allowance 7,986 7,624
Supported capital expenditure (revenue) 0 0
Supported capital expenditure (capital) 0 0
Capital receipts 28 306
Other contributions 625 459

10,734 11,862

The Council was responsible at 31 March 2010 for managing dwellings and hostels.
The stock was as follows:

Capital receipts from the sale of HRA properties during 2009/10 totalled £4,876k of which £583k was paid to Central
Government under Pooling arrangements.

The vacant possession value of dwellings within the authority's HRA as at 31 March 2010 was £1,878m, this differs from
the balance sheet value of £695m which is based on the economic use value of social housing. The difference of £1,183m
between these two figures shows the economic cost to the Government of providing housing at below open market rates.

For 2009/10 depreciation of £8,173k in respect of Council dwellings, £263k in respect of other land and buildings and
£120k in respect of vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment was charged to the HRA.

Capital Expenditure on HRA council dwellings and other assets during 2009/10 totalled £10,734k.This was financed by:

67Page 84



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Housing Revenue Account

4.      HOUSING SUBSIDY

2009/10 2008/09
Expenditure £000's £000's

Management 6,663 6,399
Maintenance 12,216 11,605
Allowance for major repairs 7,986 7,624
Charges to capital 1,853 2,105
ALMO allowance 4,744 4,744
Other expenditure 517 1,091

Income
Rent (44,538) (43,985)
Interest on receipts (14) (17)

Subsidy payable to DCLG (10,573) (10,434)

5.      RENT ARREARS

6.   BAD DEBT PROVISION

7.   MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Balance as at 1 April 0 0
Depreciation transferred to reserve 8,556 8,974
Amount used to finance capital expenditure (7,986) (7,624)
Transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account (570) (1,350)

0 0

The £570k transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account financed capital expenditure on dwellings.

8.   CONTRIBUTIONS TO PENSION RESERVE

At 31 March 2010 the gross HRA rent arrears amounted to £3,851k of which £3,707k relates to dwellings and £144k to
commercial rent.

The government determines HRA subsidy which is based on notional HRA income and expenditure. HRA subsidy is either
paid to or collected by central government. When income is greater than expenditure, government collects payments
(negative subsidy) from local authorities. The Council paid negative subsidy to government in both 2008/09 and 2009/10
which was calculated as follows:

The cost of employer's pension contributions in the HRA Income and Expenditure is reported in line with FRS 17, which
requires the current service cost rather than the actual employer's contribution be recognised. The £84k adjustment to the
Pension Reserve adjusts the cost of service to reflect the statutory requirement to include the full cost of pension
contributions in calculating the balance on the HRA.

HRA resource accounting requires the maintenance of a Major Repairs Reserve (MRR) and holds depreciation charged to
the HRA in excess of the major repairs allowance. The movements on this reserve are shown below.

The provision for bad debts on all HRA debts as at 31 March 2010 was £2,757k. Of this £2,650k relates to dwellings and
£107k to non-dwellings.

68Page 85



U
na
ud
ite
d

Collection Fund Account

Notes

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Income

Council tax 3 118,522 118,818
Transfers from general fund: 

Council tax benefits 3 21,171 19,297
Income collectable from business ratepayers 6 301,509 286,727
Contribution towards previous years' estimated 
deficit

4 1,224 1,154

442,426 425,996

Expenditure

Precepts & demands:
London Borough of Hillingdon 3 107,437 106,988
Greater London Authority 3 29,908 137,345 29,784 136,772

Business rates:
Cost of collection 6 624 594
Payment to national pool 6 300,885 286,134

Provision for doubtful debts
Council Tax Write-offs 7 992 1,339
Council Tax Provisions 7 3,414 (288)

443,260 424,551

(Surplus)/Deficit for the Year 834 (1,445)

COLLECTION FUND BALANCE

Fund deficit at beginning of year 175 1,620
(Surplus)/Deficit for the year 834 (1,445)
Fund deficit at end of  year: 1,009 175

Analysis of year end deficit:
     Council tax 5 1,009 175
     Previous years' community charges 0 0

1,009 175

Christopher Neale
Director of Finance & Resources
21 September 2010

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
Year ended Year ended

69Page 86



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Collection Fund Account
1.     The Council Tax System

2.     Accounting Policies

3.     Income from Council Tax

Band Estimated number Discounts & Net estimated Ratio Band D Band D
of Properties Exemptions number of Equivalent Equivalent

Properties 2009/10 2008/09

A 645 (124) 521 6/9 347 333
B 5,149 (989) 4,160 7/9 3,236 3,208
C 20,836 (3,055) 17,781 8/9 15,805 15,474
D 42,587 (3,605) 38,982 9/9 38,982 38,916
E 16,979 (1,220) 15,759 11/9 19,261 19,227
F 8,892 (576) 8,316 13/9 12,012 12,023
G 4,254 (236) 4,018 15/9 6,697 6,752
H 357 (16) 341 18/9 682 664

Total 97,022 96,597

Adjustment for non-collection (1,261) (1,257)
MOD contribution 774 792

Council tax base 96,535 96,132

Council Tax Rate for Band D (£) £1,423 £1,423

Demand on the Collection Fund (£000's) £137,345 £136,772

The Council Tax is the means of raising income from local residents to pay for Council services. The Council Tax is levied on
domestic properties and the charge is based on the valuation band assessed for each dwelling. The Inland Revenue has
appointed a Listing Officer for the borough who is responsible for property valuations, valuation registers and appeals.

The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account is prepared on an accruals basis and complies with appropriate
regulations and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The transactions of the Collection Fund are wholly
prescribed by legislation.

The Council's taxbase, which is used in the tax calculation, is based on the number of dwellings in each band on the listing
produced by the Listing Officer. This is adjusted for exemptions, discounts, disabled banding changes and appeals. The taxbase
estimate for 2009/10 was 96,535 (96,132 in 2008/09) as calculated below.

The Demand on the Collection Fund of £137,345k (£136,772k in 2008/09) represents the anticipated Council Tax income yield
for the year. The actual income yield to the Collection Fund for the year was £139,693k (£138,115k in 2008/09)

70Page 87



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Collection Fund Account

Precept/Demand Share of 31 March 2010
Surplus

2009/10 2008/09

£000's £000's £000's £000's
London Borough of Hillingdon 107,437 (1,609) 105,828 107,217
Greater London Authority 29,908 (448) 29,460 29,848
Total 137,345 (2,057) 135,288 137,065

5.     CONTRIBUTIONS TO COLLECTION FUND SURPLUS OR DEFICIT

6.     INCOME FROM NON-DOMESTIC RATES 

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

NNDR Income Collectable from ratepayers 301,509 286,727
Cost of Collection Allowance (624) (594)
Amount Paid to Central Government Pool 300,885 286,133

NNDR redistributed to Hillingdon Council (67,242) (71,330)

7.     WRITE-OFFS

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Council tax 992 1,339
NNDR 1,437 10,322
Total 2,429 11,661

Contributions are made from the Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account to a provision for bad debts. During 
2009/10 £3,414k (£288k in 2008/09) was contributed to the Council Tax bad debt provision.

The amounts related to irrecoverable debts written off in year are shown below:

4.     PRECEPTS AND DEMANDS ON THE COLLECTION FUND

The deficit of £1,009k relating to the Council tax will be charged in subsequent financial years to the council and the
GLA in proportion to the value of the respective demands on the Collection Fund.

Under the arrangements for Uniform Business Rates, the Council collects non-domestic rates in the Borough based on
rateable values which are assessed by the District Valuer, multiplied by a uniform rate which is set by the Government.

The total amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is paid to a central pool managed by the Government, which
in turn is redistributed to local authorities as a standard amount per head of relevant population. The total non-domestic
rateable value at 31 March 2010 was £621,669k. The National Non-Domestic multiplier for the year was 48.50p and
48.10p for small businesses.

The NNDR redestributed to the London Borough of Hillingdon is shown on the face of the Council's Income and
Expenditure account.

The Demand on the Collection Fund is split between the London Borough of Hillingdon and the Greater London
Authority (GLA). The in year deficit of £834k and the contribution towards previous year's deficit of £1,224k are also split
accordingly.

The split between the Council and the GLA is shown below:

71Page 88



U
na
ud
ite
d

Group Accounts
1.    INTRODUCTION

2.    SHARE HOLDINGS

Hillingdon Homes Ltd (wholly owned subsidiary)

The composition of the board and the voting rights is as follows: 

Members Share of Voting Rights

London Borough of Hillingdon 5 1/3
Tenants 5 1/3 (max)
Independent 5 1/3

15 100%

Council members on the board of Hillingdon Homes during 2009/10 are detailed in Note 10 on pages 39-40.

Policy Decisions concerning the LBH commitment:

3.     BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The summarised group financial statements presented on the following pages show the consolidated financial position of
the authority and its interest in Hillingdon Homes.  There are no significant effects due to group consolidation.

The Council has been required since 2005/06 to produce a full set of Group Accounts under the proper accounting
standards set out in the SORP. The group financial statements required include the group income and expenditure
account, balance sheet, cashflow statement, statement of recognised gains and losses and statement of total movement
in reserves, which are shown on the following pages.

The acquisition accounting basis was used for the purposes of consolidation as the Council has control over Hillingdon
Homes Ltd, with the date of acquisition being 30 April 2003. As the service was externalised at fair value, it did not result in
Goodwill being generated.

Hillingdon Homes' financial year runs from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010, therefore no adjustments are required regarding
the accounting year. Hillingdon Homes' statement of accounts were approved by the board on 28 July 2010 and audited
by their appointed auditors KPMG. Copies of Hillingdon Homes Ltd 2009/10 statement of accounts can be obtained from
Hillingdon Homes Finance Department, Ruislip Housing Office, 130 High Street, Ruislip, HA4 8LP.

The London Borough of Hillingdon has a 100% interest in Hillingdon Homes (HH) Ltd, a company set up on the 30 April
2003 limited by guarantee which began trading on 1 May 2003. Hillingdon Homes is the only company consolidated in the
group accounts.

Hillingdon Homes was set up to manage and maintain the housing stock of LBH and to manage the investment
programme for the modernisation of the housing stock. This programme (Decent Homes Standards) was successfully
completed in 2008. Following consultation with tenants and their stakeholders Hillingdon Homes will be dissolved and its
operational activities brought back within the Council from 1 October 2010.

On the 21 April 2010 the London Borough of Hillingdon and Hillingdon Homes Limited signed an agreement to transfer all
services carried out by Hillingdon Homes Limited to the London Borough of Hillingdon on the 1 October 2010. All assets
and liabilities of Hillingdon Homes Ltd will transfer to the London Borough of Hillingdon and all staff of Hillingdon Homes
Limited will be transferred under Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE) on the 1
October 2010.

Hillingdon Homes Ltd is considered a subsidiary of the Council and as such its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities
are consolidated on a line-by-line basis to comply with FRS2. 

72Page 89



U
na
ud
ite
d

Group Accounts
4.     ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i.

ii.

iii.

5.     FRS17 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Hillingdon Homes Ltd is a scheduled body of the Hillingdon Local Government Pension Fund. The full FRS17 obligation
and related deficit in respect of the pension scheme, and both the current and past service costs for Hillingdon Homes'
employees, passed to Hillingdon Homes when it started trading in May 2003. When Hillingdon Homes cease trading the
full FRS17 obligation and related deficit/surplus will pass back to the Council as an integral part of the general business
transfer. As at 31 March 2010 the net pension deficit in respect of Hillingdon Homes totalled £21,494k, which is included in
the Group Balance Sheet.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Since 2005/6 Group Accounts have been produced in line with the requirements of the SORP: this has lead to the
following adjustments being made to the subsidiary's accounts:

Profit/loss on disposal of assets: These are credited or debited to the group income and expenditure account.
For 2009/10 the loss totalled £609k which was included in the net operating expenditure below the net cost of
services. They are then netted out in reconciliation of the deficit on the Income & Expenditure so as to ensure it
does not impact on the amount to be raised from rents.

Retirement Benefits: The employees of Hillingdon Homes are members of the London Borough of Hillingdon
occupational pension scheme, which is a defined benefits scheme. Accounting policies consistent with those of
the Council have been adopted for consolidation.

Measurement: Increases in the valuations of fixed assets held by Hillingdon Homes and impairments not
charged to the group income and expenditure account are written off to the revaluation reserve.

73Page 90



U
na
ud
ite
d

Group Income and Expenditure Account
Year ended 31 March 2010 Year ended

31 March 2009
Expenditure Income Net Net

Expenditure Expenditure
EXPENDITURE ON SERVICES £000's £000's £000's £000's

Central Services to the Public 31,079 24,266 6,813 5,760
Cultural, Environmental  and Planning services 58,395 18,308 40,087 42,281
Education and Children's Services 420,625 264,523 156,102 55,473
Highways, Roads and Transport services 22,619 7,284 15,335 17,423
Local Authority Housing (HRA) 52,424 55,184 (2,760) 39,312
Other Housing Services 153,889 148,719 5,170 9,374
Adult Social Care 106,025 28,734 77,291 65,987
Court and Probation Services 239 8 231 173
Corporate and Democratic Core 7,179 3,264 3,915 8,307
Non-Distributable Costs 255 515 (260) 6,388

NET COST OF SERVICES 852,729 550,805 301,924 250,478

Loss on sale of fixed assets 609 0 609 576
Precepts and levies 689 0 689 699
Net loss on trading undertakings 7,218 7,121 97 (191)
Interest payable and similar charges 7,609 0 7,609 16,774
Contribution of housing capital receipts to 
Government pool

583 0 583 885

Interest and investment income 0 2,043 (2,043) (6,636)
Other Income 0 31 (31) (494)

16,410 0 16,410 5,590

Taxation of group 5 0 5 0

NET OPERATING EXPENDITURE 885,852 560,000 325,852 267,681

FINANCED BY:
General Government Grants 0 27,435 (27,435) (21,511)
Demand on the Collection Fund 0 105,828 (105,828) (107,220)
Non-domestic rate income 0 67,242 (67,242) (71,330)

INCOME FROM GENERAL GRANTS & LOCAL 
TAXPAYERS (200,505) (200,061)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR 125,347 67,620

Pension interest cost and expected return on pensions 
assets

74Page 91



U
na
ud
ite
d

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Deficit on the authority's single entity Income & Expenditure Account for the 
year 125,690 66,898

Add: Deficit/(Surplus) arising from other entities included in the group 
accounts analysed into the amounts attributable to:

   - Subsidiary (343) 722

Group Accounts deficit for the year 125,347 67,620

Statement Of Total Recognised Gains And Losses

2009/10 2008/09
£000's £000's

Net deficit for the year 125,347 67,620

Loss/(Gain) arising on revaluation of fixed assets (13,977) 8,032
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on pension assets and liabilities 211,166 107,928
Available for Sale Reserve 0 (15)

Total Recognised gains and losses for the year 322,536 183,565

Reconciliation of Single Entity Surplus or Deficit for 
the Year to the Group Surplus or Deficit

This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Group for the year and shows the aggregate increase in its
net worth. In addition to the deficit generated on the Income & Expenditure Account, it includes gains and losses relating to
the revaluation of fixed assets and re-measurement of the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits.

75Page 92



U
na
ud
ite
d

Group Balance Sheet
At 31st March 2010 At 31st March 2009

Notes £000's £000's £000's £000's
FIXED ASSETS

Intangible Assets 1,161 1,443

Operational Assets 2
Council dwellings 694,875 698,685
Other land and buildings 456,319 559,466
Vehicles, plant and equipment 13,289 10,395
Community assets 14,137 14,926
Infrastructure assets 147,412 1,326,032 146,120 1,429,592 

Non Operational Assets 2
Investment Properties 6,443 10,993
Assets under construction 20,282 28,550
Surplus Assets, held for disposal 12,726 39,451 7,390 46,933 

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 8,270 2,075
LONG TERM DEBTORS 581 424

TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 1,375,495 1,480,467

CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks & works in progress 128 133
Debtors and payments in advance 3 34,218 38,204
Short term investments 61,047 88,848
Cash in hand 19,114 114,507 22,280 149,465 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Temporary borrowing (17,578) (2,054)
Creditors and receipts in advance 4 (104,403) (121,981) (110,183) (112,237)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,368,021 1,517,695

Provisions 5 (3,840) (4,342)
Deferred credits (143) (165)
Long term borrowing (163,198) (194,526)
Grants & Contributions Unapplied (737) (2,159)
Government grants deferred account (129,746) (141,634)
Deferred liabilities (3,266) (3,424)
Liability related to defined benefit pension schemes (436,013) (217,831)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS LIABILITIES 631,078 953,614

Revaluation Reserve 31,228 18,156
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 15 15
Capital Adjustment Account 992,352 1,123,064
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (4,028) (5,309)
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 5,028 1,009
Pension Reserve (436,013) (217,831)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (791) (137)
Equal Pay Back Pay Account (40) (234)
Fund Balances and Reserves 6 43,327 34,881
TOTAL NET WORTH 631,078 953,614 

Christopher Neale
Director of Finance & Resources
21 September 2010

 The assets and liabilities of the pension fund and various trust funds administered by the Council are excluded from the 
above balance sheet as they are not statutory services.

76Page 93



U
na
ud
ite
d

Group Cash Flow Statement
Note

£000's £000's £000's £000's
REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Expenditure

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 277,203 263,575
Housing Benefit paid out 77,874 58,865
Payment to the capital receipts pool 290 1,343
Other operating cash payments 314,404 669,771 293,987 617,770

Income
Rents (after rebates) (28,035) (27,656)
Council Tax Income (107,547) (93,074)
Non-Domestic Rates Receipts from Pool (67,242) (71,330)
Revenue Support Grant (15,520) (9,930)
DWP grants for benefits (150,080) (126,525)
Other government grants (268,610) (257,398)
Cash received for goods & services (3,648) (3,719)
Other operating cash receipts (108,005) (748,687) (130,230) (719,862)

Revenue Activities Net Cash (Inflow) / Outflow 1 (78,916) (102,092)

SERVICING OF FINANCE
Expenditure

Interest paid 7,326 9,757
Interest element finance lease rental payments 1,090 606

Income
Interest received (1,621) (7,213)

Servicing of Finance Net Cash Outflows 6,795 3,150
Taxation 5 0
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash Outflows

Purchase of fixed assets 55,449 51,266
Purchase of long term investments 0 0
Other capital cash payments 17,905 73,354 17,772 69,038

Cash Inflows
Sale of fixed assets (6,058) (17,342)
Capital grants received (33,865) (27,432)
Other capital cash payments/income (2,113) (42,036) (1,846) (46,620)

Capital
Net cash outflow 31,318 22,418

(40,798) (76,525)

Net increase in short term investments (27,801) (4,955)
Net increase in long term investments 7,647 0
NNDR Adjustment 48,194 47,946
Council Tax Adjustment (425) 3,968

FINANCING
Cash Outflows

Repayments of amounts borrowed 143,870 34,920
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 979 144,849 1,947 36,867

Cash Inflows
Long term loans raised (60,000) (10,000)
Short term loans raised (68,500) (128,500) 0

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,166 (2,698)

Year ended 31 March 2010 Year ended 31 March 2009

Net Cash Inflow Before Financing/Management of Liquid 
Resources

77Page 94



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Group Accounts
1. RECONCILIATION OF REVENUE CASHFLOW

£000's £000's £000's £000's

General fund net surplus (3,223) (2,251)
HRA Deficit (1,484) 478
Hillingdon Homes Ltd (343) 6,234
Collection Fund (831) (5,881) (1,133) 3,328
Total Surplus
Add items not resulting in cashflow
Minimum revenue provision (3,721) (3,543)
Voluntary Revenue Provision (979) (1,739)
Contributions from reserves 3,209 71
Provisions set aside in year 502 470
Other non cash items (8,925) (9,914) 4,646 (95)
Movements in working capital
Increase in creditors 5,780 (22,949)
Decrease in stocks & work in progress (5) (14)
Decrease in debtors (3,986) (14,983)
Decrease in long term debtors 157 1,946 (250) (38,196)
Items Classified elsewhere on Cashflow Statement
Capital expenditure financed from revenue (10,793) (11,674)
Lease Payments (1,090) (2,345)
Capital Receipts in Respect of the Pool 290 1,349
Deduct interest received 1,621 7,213
Interest paid (7,326) (9,756)
NNDR Receipts (48,194) (47,948)
Council Tax Receipts 425 (65,067) (3,968) (67,129)
Revenue activities net cash flow (78,916) (102,092)

2.     MOVEMENT OF FIXED ASSETS 2009/10

Operational Assets LBH LBH LBH HH LBH LBH Group
Council Other Land Vehicles & Vehicles & Infrastructure Community Total

Dwellings & Buildings Equipment Equipment Assets Assets

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Gross book value as at 1 April 2009 732,860 612,421 38,339 346 206,220 14,926 1,605,112
Additions 10,734 19,489 6,291 141 6,447 574 43,676
Disposals (2,654) (4,206) (48) 0 0 0 (6,908)
Reclassifications (151) 20,762 725 0 0 (1,313) 20,023
Revaluations 482 1,095 0 0 0 25 1,602
Impairments (4,334) (177,799) 0 0 0 (75) (182,208)
Gross book value as at 31 March 2010 736,937 471,762 45,307 487 212,667 14,137 1,481,297

Depreciation
Accumulated at 1 April 2009 (34,175) (52,955) (28,042) (248) (60,100) 0 (175,520)
Charge for 2008/09 (8,173) (8,020) (3,684) (76) (5,155) 0 (25,108)
Disposals 233 336 7 0 0 0 576
Reclassifications (5) 5 (462) 0 0 0 (462)
Revaluations 58 45,191 0 0 0 0 45,249
Accumulated at 31 March 2010 (42,062) (15,443) (32,181) (324) (65,255) 0 (155,265)

Balance Sheet amount 1 April 2009 698,685 559,466 10,297 98 146,120 14,926 1,429,592

Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 694,875 456,319 13,126 163 147,412 14,137 1,326,032

Nature of asset holding
Owned 694,875 453,124 12,414 163 147,412 14,137 1,322,125
Finance Lease 0 0 712 0 0 0 712
PFI 0 3,195 0 0 0 0 3,195
Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 694,875 456,319 13,126 163 147,412 14,137 1,326,032

Year ended 31st 
March 2010

Year ended 31st 
March 2009

78Page 95



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Group Balance Sheet
Non-Operational Assets LBH LBH LBH Group

Investment Assets Surplus Total
Properties Under Assets

Construction

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Gross book value as at 1 April 2009 10,993 28,550 7,419 46,962
Additions 0 11,711 19 11,730
Disposals 0 0 (320) (320)
Reclassifications (4,550) (19,979) 4,505 (20,024)
Revaluations 0 0 1,139 1,139
Impairments 0 0 (26) (26)
Gross book value as at 31 March 2010 6,443 20,282 12,736 39,461

Depreciation
Accumulated at 1 April 2009 0 0 (29) (29)
Charge for 2009/10 0 0 (10) (10)
Disposals 0 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 0 0 0
Revaluations 0 0 29 29
Accumulated at 31 March 2010 0 0 (10) (10)

Balance Sheet amount 1 April 2009 10,993 28,550 7,390 46,933

Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 6,443 20,282 12,726 39,451

Nature of asset holding
Owned 6,443 20,282 12,726 39,451
Balance Sheet amount 31 March 2010 6,443 20,282 12,726 39,451

3.      DEBTORS

At 31 March At 31 March
2010 2009

£000's £000's

Government departments 13,077 17,973
Other public bodies 2,172 1,240
Housing rents 4,310 5,076
Council taxpayers 9,089 9,057
Sundry debtors 24,846 21,904
Car & other loans 44 176

53,538 55,426

Less:  Provision for doubtful debts (19,320) (17,222)
34,218 38,204

79Page 96



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes to Group Balance Sheet
4.      CREDITORS

At 31 March At 31 March
2010 2009

£000's £000's

Government departments 21,251 23,851
Other public bodies 22,564 26,801
Sundry creditors 1,020 7,651
Non-domestic ratepayers 56,067 48,483
Council taxpayers & Collection Fund Deficit 3,501 3,397

104,403 110,183

5.    PROVISIONS

6.     FUND BALANCES AND RESERVES

At 31 March At 31 March
2010 2009

£000's £000's

General Fund :     - Working balance 18,900 17,291
- Schools delegated funds 11,890 11,022

Earmarked Reserves - Parking fund 754 906
- New Road & Streetworks Act fund 190 190
- Elections 212 141
- Insurance Risk Management 33 0
- Imported Food Service 220 0
- Schools Earmarked Reserves 1,809 0
- Grant Funded Reserves 1,780 0

Housing Revenue Account 6,045 4,561
Hillingdon Homes 1,494 770

43,327 34,881

In addition to the Council's provisions detailed in Note 42, page 57, Hillingdon Homes Ltd has provided for insurance liabilities 
of £254k.

80Page 97



U
na
ud
ite
d

Pension Fund Accounts
Notes Year Ended Year Ended

FUND ACCOUNT 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Contributions 3 29,758 27,202

Transfers In 4 4,057 3,983

Less: Benefits 5 (27,130) (25,689)

Less: Leavers 6 (4,566) (2,924)

Less: Administrative Expenses 7 (699) (743)

Net Additions from dealings with members 1,420 1,829

Investment Income 8 11,066 15,239

Changes in market value of investments 9 136,635 (139,342)

Taxation (Irrecoverable Withholding Tax) (171) (196)

Investment Management Expenses 11 (2,090) (2,145)

Net Return on Investments 145,440 (126,444)

Net Increase/Decrease in the fund during the year 146,860 (124,615)

Net Assets at start of year 417,430 542,045
Net Assets at end of year 564,290 417,430

NET ASSETS STATEMENT
31 March 2010 31 March 2009

Investment Assets 9 563,820 419,824

Investment Liabilities 10 (1,611) (2,575)

Current Assets 12 2,540 2,105

Current Liabilities 13 (459) (1,924)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 564,290 417,430

Christopher Neale
Director of Finance & Resources
21 September 2010

The Pension Fund Accounts summarise the transactions of the scheme and shows the net assets at the disposal of members.
They do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the scheme year. 
The actuarial position of the scheme, which does take account of such obligations, is shown in the actuarial statement included
in the Annual Report and these accounts should be read in conjuction with this.

81Page 98



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts
1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Requirements to obtain Audited 
Accounts and a Statement from the Auditor) Regulations 1996, and with the guidelines set out in the Financial Reports of
Pension Schemes Statement of Recommended Practice (Revised May 2007).

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Accounts Preparation - The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the recommendations of the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and comply with both the Local Authority Accounting and Pension Statement of 
Recommended Practice.

b)  Accruals concept - Income and expenditure are recorded on an accruals basis, except for transfer values which are 
accounted on a cash basis.

c)  Valuation of assets - Equities and fixed income are valued at bid prices - where bid price is not available, the mid price is 
used. For pooled funds, if bid prices are provided by the fund administrators then these are used, if not usually the Net Asset 
Value is used. Private Equity is valued using the latest audited valuation from the Limited Partner/General Partner. This is
adjusted for any capital calls/distributions that have taken place since the date of the statement. 

d) Foreign currency translation of assets and liabilities are converted into sterling at the closing middle rates of exchange in 
the net assets statement. Overseas income is converted at rates of exchange ruling when remitted.

e) Acquisition costs of investments  occur as brokerage commission when investments are purchased.  They are recorded in 
the cost figure on an accruals basis.

f) Investment management expenses are recorded at cost when the fund managers/custodian invoice the Council on a 
quarterly basis.  Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis.

g) Administration expenses recharged to the pension fund are monitored throughout the year in accordance with the budget 
and are charged to the pension fund at the end of the financial year.

h) Interest on property developments - property is held in unit trusts for the pension fund, the return received is calculated in 
accordance with the unit price at the balance sheet date.

i) Contributions - Contributions are accounted for in the period in which they fall due. Normal contributions received during the
year have been in accordance with the rates and adjustments certificate.

j) Benefits - are accounted for in the period in which they fall due.  All benefits are calculated in accordance with the statutory
regulations in force at the relevant benefit date.

k) Transfers - Transfers are accounted for on a cash basis, as the amount payable or receivable by the scheme is not 
determined until payment is actually made and accepted by the recipient.

l) Investment Income - Dividends from quoted securities are accrued when the securities are quoted ex-dividend.  Interest on 
cash deposits are accrued on daily basis.

FUND OPERATION AND MEMBERSHIP

This defined benefit scheme is administered under the provisions of the Local Government Pension Scheme Administration 
Regulations 2008 and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Contributions and Membership) Regulations 2007 
to provide benefits for employees and former employees. The benefits include retirement allowances and pensions payable 
to former employees and to dependents. The scheme is administered locally by the Council through its pension fund, but the 
fund is a separate entity from the Council and its accounts and balance sheet are separate financial statements.

The fund is financed by contributions from the Council and its employees and by income from the fund's investments.  The 
pension fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future. The contributions 
from the Council and other participating employers are set through the triennial actuarial valuation at a rate sufficient to meet 
the long-term liabilities of the fund.

82Page 99



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts
Employers who contribute to the fund in addition to London Borough of Hillingdon are:

Admitted Bodies:
Greenwich Leisure Heathrow Travel Care
Dalkia Energy & Technical Services Yes Dining
Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice Integrated Cleaning Management Ltd/Mitie
Look Ahead Housing and Care

Scheduled Bodies:
Harefield Academy Stockley Academy
Hillingdon Homes Uxbridge College
London Housing Consortium

Cllr G Cooper Cllr Paul Harmsworth
Cllr P Corthorne (Chairman) Cllr M Markham
Cllr M Cox
Mr John Holroyd (Pensioner/Deferred Scheme Representative) (Non Voting)
Mr Nicholas Manthorpe (Active Scheme Representative) (Non Voting)
Mr J Thomas (UNISON)  (Non Voting)

3. CONTRIBUTIONS

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Employers
Normal 16,944 15,240
Deficit Funding 4,504 4,051
Employees
Normal 8,173 7,783
Additional Contributions 137 128

29,758 27,202

4. TRANSFERS IN

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Group transfers in from other schemes 0 35
Individual transfers in from other schemes 4,057 3,948

4,057 3,983

5. BENEFITS

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Pensions 22,025 20,623
Commutations and lump sum retirement 
benefits

4,602 4,645

Lump sum death benefits 503 421
27,130 25,689

The pension fund investments are managed by seven fund managers: UBS Global Asset Management, Goldman Sachs Asset
Management, SSgA, Capital International, Alliance Bernstein, Adam Street Partners and LGT Capital Partners. The
performance of the fund managers is monitored by the Pensions Committee which consisted of the following members in
2009/10:

As at 31 March 2010 there were 6,235 employees contributing to the fund, with 4,991 in receipt of benefit and 4,772 entitled to
deferred benefits.

Deficit Funding:- At the last actuarial valuation (31 March 2007) the fund was 92% funded, with the remaining 8% deficit to be
recovered over a period of 25 years with a common contribution rate of 17.8%.

83Page 100



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts
6. LEAVERS

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Refunds of Contributions 7 4
State Scheme Premiums 2 1
Individual transfers out to other schemes 4,557 2,919

4,566 2,924

7. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Administration and processing 573 650
Audit Fee 40 38
Actuarial fees 86 55

699 743

8. INVESTMENT INCOME

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Interest from fixed interest securities 712 2,069
Dividends from equities 7,188 12,458
Income from index-linked securities 300 297
Income from pooled investment vehicles 1,515 2,254
Interest on cash deposits 42 487
Other (for example from stock lending or 
underwriting)

1,309 (2,326)

11,066 15,239

9.     INVESTMENT ASSETS

Value at 1 April 
2009

Purchases at 
cost and 
derivative
payments

Sales
proceeds and 

derivative
receipts

Change in 
market value

Value at 31 
March 2010

Fixed interest securities 35,874 10,954 (50,503) 3,675 0
Equities 202,383 119,998 (193,455) 81,613 210,539
Index-linked securities 16,029 5,364 (3,503) 548 18,438
Pooled investment vehicles 144,774 164,182 (42,950) 50,799 316,805

399,060 300,498 (290,411) 136,635 545,782
Other Investment balances 3,072 1,410
Fund Managers' Cash 17,692 16,628
Total Net Assets 419,824 563,820

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market value of
investments held at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sales of investments.

Transaction costs are included in the cost of purchases and sale proceeds. These include costs charged directly to the scheme
such as fees, commissions, stamp duty and other fees. Transaction costs incurred during the year amounted to £644k (£648k in
2008/09). In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on investments within pooled
investment vehicles.

84Page 101



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts
9. INVESTMENT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Fixed Interest Securities
UK Public Sector quoted 0 12,879
UK Corporate quoted 0 9,055
Overseas Public Sector quoted 0 2,176
Overseas Corporate quoted 0 11,764

0 35,874
 Equities
UK quoted 154,142 103,495
Overseas quoted 56,397 98,888

210,539 202,383
Index Linked Securities
UK public sector quoted 18,438 15,645
UK corporate quoted 0 384

18,438 16,029
Pooled Investment Vehicles
UK Managed funds - other 194,355 15,000
UK Unit Trusts  - other 0 61,317
UK Unit Trusts  - property 41,612 30,181
Overseas Managed Funds - other 0 263
Overseas Unit Trusts - other 52,863 12,721
Private Equity 27,975 25,292

316,805 144,774
Other Investment balances
Forward Foreign Exchange Unrealised Loss (336) 1
Amount due from Brokers 512 873
Outstanding dividend entitlements and 
recoverable withholding tax 1,234 2,198

1,410 3,072
Cash deposits
Sterling 16,628 17,692

16,628 17,692

AVC Investments

10. INVESTMENT LIABILITIES

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Amount Outstanding to Brokers 1,599 2,575
Dutch Tax Reclaim Fee 12 0

1,611 2,575

11. INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Administration, management and custody 1,984 2,064
Performance measurement services 4 4
Other advisory fee 102 77

2,090 2,145

Additional voluntary contributions paid by scheme members are not included in the accounts as these are managed
independently of the fund by Prudential plc.

85Page 102



U
na
ud
ite
d

Notes To Pension Fund Accounts
12. CURRENT ASSETS

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Employers'  contributions due 187 152
Employees' contributions due 74 65
Debtor: London Borough of Hillingdon 61 0
Cash balances 2,218 1,888

2,540 2,105

13. CURRENT LIABILITIES

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
£000's £000's

Accrued Expenses 419 663
Creditor: London Borough of Hillingdon 40 1,261

459 1,924

14.     ACTUARIAL POSITION

Investment Return 6.10%
Earnings Growth 4.70%

Price Inflation 3.20%

15.     RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

16.     SECURITIES LENDING ARRANGEMENTS

17.     STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES (SIP)

On the 12th December 2006 the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund Committee agreed to engage Northern Trust
Global Investments Limited to carry out Securities Lending. As at 31 March 2010, securities worth £26,425k were on loan by
Northern Trust from our portfolio and collateral worth £27,879k was held within the pool including Hillingdon. In the same period,
a net income of £163k was received. 

The SIP is reviewed annually and a current version is available on the Pensions Fund pages of the Council's web site:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk

The Fund's actuary, Hymans Robertson, carried out the latest triennial actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31 March 2007. On
the basis of the assumptions adopted, the valuation showed that the value of the fund represented 92% of the fund's accrued
liabilities at the valuation date. The market value of the fund's assets at the valuation date, 31 March 2007, was £577,000k.
The value of the deficit at that date was £50,000k.

The revised employers' contribution rates were effective from 1 April 2008 and were set to recover the deficiency over a period
of 25 years.  The total common contribution rate is 17.8% for the period of 1st April 2008 to 31 March 2011.

The contribution rates were calculated using the projected unit method and the main actuarial assumptions used were:

It is required under Financial Reporting Standard 8 "Related Party Disclosures" that material transactions with related parties
which are not disclosed elsewhere should be included in a note to the financial statements.

The London Borough of Hillingdon is a related party to the pension fund. The revenue contributions the Council has made into
the pension fund are set out in note (3) to the Pension Fund accounts. The Council provides administration services for the
pension fund.  In 2009/10 a charge of £573k (£650k in 2008/2009) was made for these services.

No senior officers had any interest with any related parties in relation to the pension fund. From the Pension Committee, Cllr
George Cooper declared an interest as a trustee of the Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice.

86Page 103



U
na
ud
ite
d

87

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Annual Governance Statement 2009/10 

1. Scope of Responsibility 

The London Borough of Hillingdon is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and 
used economically, efficiently and effectively. The London Borough of Hillingdon also has a duty under the 
Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the London Borough of Hillingdon is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, and 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The London Borough of Hillingdon is following a code of corporate governance, which is consistent with the 
principles of the CIPFA / SOLACE Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. This 
statement explains how the authority has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of 
Regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit 
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control. 

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the authority is 
directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. 
It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a 
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can 
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control 
is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the London 
Borough of Hillingdon’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised 
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at the London Borough of Hillingdon for the year ended 31 
March 2010 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.

3. The Governance Framework  

The London Borough of Hillingdon has brought together the underlying set of statutory obligations, 
management systems and principles of good governance to establish a formal governance framework. The 
key elements outlined below demonstrate how Hillingdon maintains effective internal controls and an effective 
governance system. 

3.1. The London Borough of Hillingdon’s Constitution, which sets out how the authority operates, how 
decisions are made, and the procedures that are followed to ensure that they are efficient, transparent 
and accountable to local people. The constitution is regularly reviewed at full Council meetings and also 
more comprehensively on an annual basis at each AGM.

3.2. Part 2 of the constitution outlines the roles and responsibilities of the Executive, Non-executive, Mayor, 
Overview and Scrutiny committees, Standards committee and officer functions. The governance 
arrangements for Hillingdon comprise:

Page 104



U
na
ud
ite
d

88

 A structure of the Leader of the council, a Cabinet and Policy Overview and Scrutiny committees  
 A Corporate Management Team 
 An Operational Management Group 
 Senior Management Teams 
 The Audit Committee, led by an independent chairman 
 Standards Committee, led by an independent chairman  

3.3. Part 2, article 7 of the Constitution sets out the ‘Cabinet Scheme of Delegations’. This governs the 
allocation of responsibilities and the discharge of executive functions by the Leader, the Cabinet and 
individual Cabinet members. In May 2010, the constitution was updated to reflect new leadership 
arrangements and to update delegations to the Leader and individual cabinet members allowing the 
decision-making process in Hillingdon to be more responsive to service needs and residents' aspirations. 
New delegations have also provided for better financial control in the current economic climate, in 
particular around the use of consultants, agency and temporary workers and contracts.

3.4. Part 3 of the Constitution sets out the ‘Scheme of Delegations to Officers’. This governs the 
responsibility allocated to officers of the London Borough of Hillingdon to perform the authority’s activities 
on behalf of the executive. In May 2010, it was updated to provide additional delegated authority to 
officers, in particular on planning delegations to speed up and improve decision-making.

3.5. Part 5 of the Constitution sets out a formal ‘Code of Conduct’ governing the behaviour and actions of all 
elected council members. Based on national guidelines, the code ensures that councillors conduct 
themselves appropriately to fulfil their duties and that any allegations of misconduct are investigated. 
There is also a separate Officers code, which applies to all employees and is part of their contract of 
employment. The authority has reviewed the code, updated guidance and communicated these 
requirements to officers. 

3.6. A members training programme has been implemented to embed high standards of conduct and 
behaviour. All complaints against members of the council are handled by the Monitoring Officer and 
Standards Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007, the Standards Committee (in England) Regulations 2008 and guidance 
issued by the Standards Board for England. Following the elections in May 2010, a comprehensive 
induction and training programme took place for newly elected Councillors along with specific training on 
risk, scrutiny, planning and licensing rules. 

3.7. A Code of Corporate Governance setting out the London Borough of Hillingdon’s governance 
structure, decision making process and areas of responsibility. Originally adopted in 2002, the code has 
been updated to accurately reflect the authority’s governance structure and corporate responsibilities. 
The revised code is founded on the fundamental principles of openness, integrity and accountability and 
sets out the policies, systems and procedures in place to achieve this.    

3.8. A Members ‘Register of Interests’ that records the interests of elected members of the London 
Borough of Hillingdon. There is a separate register that members and officers are required to complete if 
they have an interest in a contract, which the authority has entered into.   

3.9. A Member / Officer Protocol to govern and regulate the relationship between the London Borough of 
Hillingdon’s elected members and appointed officers. This has been developed in consultation with the 
political leadership, all council members and officers.

3.10. A formal whistle-blowing policy, which is based on the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998. The policy 
allows council staff and contractors working for the authority to raise complaints regarding any behaviour 
or activity within the authority, ranging from unlawful conduct to possible fraud or corruption. The 
Monitoring Officer has overall responsibility for maintaining and operating the policy, along with reporting 
on outcomes to the Standards Committee.  

3.11. The Council Plan ‘Fast Forward to 2010’, sets out the vision for the London Borough of Hillingdon and 
the key priorities for improving services for local residents, partners, businesses and visitors. This is a 
strategic planning document that records achievement against statutory and local targets and sets out 

Page 105



U
na
ud
ite
d

89

plans to improve our services. 2010 is the final year of the plan and a new plan reflecting the new 
administration’s priorities will be produced for 2010/11 onwards.  

3.12. The Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) 2008-2018 sets out the Local Strategic Partnership aims 
and ambitions for the London Borough of Hillingdon over the next 10 years. The SCS is due to be 
reviewed and updated during 2011 to ensure it continues to reflect the changing circumstances of the 
borough.

3.13. A Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) that outlines the current and future health and wellbeing 
needs of the population over the short-term (three to five year) and informs strategic and service 
planning and commissioning strategies. The JSNA was reviewed and updated in 2009 to reflect changes 
in data. The refreshed JSNA was agreed at the PCT board in December 2009 and at the Hillingdon 
Partners Executive in February 2010, and is available from the London Borough of Hillingdon website. 

3.14. The Local Strategic Partnership ‘Hillingdon Partners’ and its theme groups have overall responsibility 
for delivering the commitments made in the SCS through the Local Area Agreement 2008-2011 (LAA), 
which sets out the “delivery plan” for achieving many of the SCS priorities. 

3.15. The London Borough of Hillingdon has a ‘Partnership Governance Framework & Toolkit’ in place, 
which sets out clear procedures for managing the broad range of council partnerships and gathering 
assurance on their systems of governance, accountability, risk, probity and audit. The framework allows 
consistent approaches to be applied for reviewing existing partnerships as well as considering new 
partnership arrangements. A partnerships register is in place to record information about each 
partnership and is updated annually, the last update being conducted in March 2010.

3.16. An independent Audit Committee that operates to oversee the financial reporting, provide an 
independent scrutiny of the financial and non-financial systems, and provide assurance on the 
effectiveness of risk management procedures and the control environment. The Audit Committee has 
been set up with terms of reference consistent with CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for 
Local Authorities 2005’.

3.17. The Performance Management Framework is used to capture and report performance against Council 
Plan and SCS priorities, and LAA targets. Performance is monitored on a regular basis via Senior 
Management Teams and reported quarterly to the Operational Management Group, Corporate 
Management Team and Cabinet. A comprehensive report is provided to the LSP Executive on 
performance against the LAA targets. The LSP has introduced the Performance and Coordinating Group 
of data/performance leads across partnership to ensure that data sharing, performance management 
and needs analysis is consistent across the LSP.      

3.18. A Data Quality Strategy is in place to establish a consistent standard across the authority and provides 
officers with a good basis on the issues surrounding data quality and its importance. In 2009/10 the 
strategy was updated to include a Data Quality Partnership Protocol to further embed data quality across 
the LSP. A series of workshops are being delivered regularly to further embed the importance of Data 
Quality, information, security and data protection across the authority. 

3.19. The Hillingdon Information Assurance Group (HIAG) has produced a series of policies to conform to 
the ISO 27000 standard. In 2009/10 a review of HIAG has been undertaken to ensure policies work 
together across all business requirements. The group also oversees constant connection to the 
GSI network, which is refreshed annually.  

3.20. The London Borough of Hillingdon operates a system to monitor legislative changes and ensure that the 
authority is fully compliant with laws and regulations.

3.21. The Hillingdon Improvement Programme (HIP) is the council-wide transformational programme 
delivering a range of performance, organisational, culture and process improvements. The programme is 
led by the Leader of the Council and the Deputy Chief Executive is the programme director. Cabinet 
members and directors are also responsible for specific parts of HIP. In 2009/10 a key HIP work-stream 
put in place was the Business Improvement Delivery (BID) programme to transform the way the 

Page 106



U
na
ud
ite
d

90

council operates and deliver the council's savings targets of £19 million for 2011-12 and more than £50 
million over the next four years.

3.22. The London Borough of Hillingdon has established effective risk management systems, including:

A corporate risk management strategy outlining the risk framework, roles, responsibilities and 
processes for capturing and reporting key corporate risks. Team, service and corporate risk registers 
enable the identification, quantification and treatment of risks against the authority’s objectives. 
Group risk registers are regularly updated, reviewed by each Senior Management Team and the 
most significant risks are elevated to the Corporate Risk Register.  

A Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG) reviews the corporate risk register on a quarterly 
basis and advises the Corporate Management Team and Cabinet on the significant risks. Twice 
annually, the risk reporting arrangements are reviewed and updated, if appropriate, by the Audit 
Committee.  Where appropriate, the Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) embraces the potential 
financial impact of significant risks. 

A clearly defined process for the management of partnership risks is outlined in the 
‘Partnerships Governance Framework and Toolkit’. The LSP has its own risk register, which is 
reviewed at the Performance & Co-ordinating Group (PCG) and reported to the LSP Executive. 

A programme of risk management training for both council members and officers to ensure the 
consistent practice of identifying and escalating risk. The authority is making good progress with 
introducing e-learning training for staff and newly elected members covering the basics of risk 
management.   

3.23. The London Borough of Hillingdon has an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy approved by members 
and communicated to all staff. It is underpinned by and refers to the full range of policies and procedures 
supporting corporate governance arrangements such as Codes of Conduct, Standing Orders, Register of 
interests and whistle-blowing. The authority has continued to deliver a series of fraud awareness training 
sessions for managers in 2009/10. 

3.24. The Committee Standing Orders (Part 4B), Procurement & Contract Standing Orders (Part 4H) & 
Scheme of Delegation to Officers (Part 3) are incorporated in the Constitution and reviewed annually. 
The Scheme of delegation specific to each directorate is available on the Hillingdon’s internal web pages. 
In 2009/10 these schemes have been reviewed and updated accordingly. Committee Standing Orders 
and Procurement Standing Orders were also updated in May 2010.

3.25. The London Borough of Hillingdon operates a sound system of service, financial and annual budget 
planning. This includes budget monitoring and a Medium Term Financial Forecast (MTFF) process and 
runs from the preceding summer to February with a robust challenge process involving members, the 
Director of Finance & Resources and Corporate Directors. Monthly reports on key financial health 
indicators are produced and communicated through the finance management team.

3.26. The London Borough of Hillingdon operates a training and development programme for elected members 
and senior officers. This is as follows: 

 A Member Development Service that supports Councillors to access a range of training and 
development information. This includes a personal development toolkit given out to all members and 
a knowledge library. The toolkit supports personal development of each Member and suggests 
competencies which will help Members identify their learning and development needs and if a need is 
identified the appropriate training is then organised. The service also covers the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members and guidance on standards and ethics. This service has been 
enhanced since the Council elections in May 2010.   

 Officers and senior managers are able to access and complete a wide range of learning and 
development opportunities through the internal Learning & Development pages on ‘Horizon’. This 
includes induction programmes, e-learning packages, NVQ qualifications and a range of other staff 

Page 107



U
na
ud
ite
d

91

development courses. In addition, the council offers Institute of Leadership and Management (ILM) 
accredited management awards and has established the Hillingdon Academy to develop the council’s 
future leaders. The Council also offers staff the opportunity to achieve professional qualifications and 
meet their continuing professional development (CPD) requirements. 

 The Performance and Development Appraisal (PADA) process is completed by all officers and 
senior managers. This records employee’s key objectives and tasks, sets targets for when these 
must be delivered and identifies staff learning and development needs. There are competency 
frameworks for staff, managers, senior officers and Directors, with descriptors outlining the 
performance that is expected at each level. Performance reviews are completed on a bi-annual basis 
against the relevant competency framework and PADA guidance is available to support both staff 
and managers through the process. 

3.27. The Consultation Strategy establishes the London Borough of Hillingdon’s approach for building a 
strong relationship with residents, visitors and business throughout the borough. The strategy sets out 
the commitment to engage, consult and respond to the views and priorities of all communities. At the 
highest level, the strategy supports and informs corporate intelligence and policy, and decision making 
including commissioning and procurement of services.

3.28. Residents can get involved in how the Council is run by attending full Council meetings and Council 
‘Question Time’ events, registering as a ‘Street Champion’, providing evidence to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees, and exercising their right to petition. The authority also conducts an Annual Resident’s 
Survey to ask residents for their views on key council services. In 2009/10 a total of 265 petitions were 
submitted by residents - 107 Cabinet Member petitions and 158 Planning and Committee petitions.

4. Review of Effectiveness  

The London Borough of Hillingdon has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness 
is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, and 
also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

Overall the review of effectiveness concluded that the internal control systems have been in place for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2010 and, except for the internal control issues detailed in section 5, 
management and control systems are operating effectively in accordance with good practice.  

This review took into consideration the arm’s length management organisation, Hillingdon Homes Ltd, which 
reported no significant control issues for the year ended 31 March 2010. On the 18 February 2010 the decision 
was made to transfer control of housing management to the authority. The plans, which were endorsed by 
tenants and lease holders following a consultation, are expected to be completed by 1 October 2010. 

The review has been informed by a range of management information and improvement action, including:

4.1. A comprehensive annual programme of scrutiny and review by the Policy Overview and scrutiny 
Committees and the Audit Committee.

4.2. The role and responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer, detailed in the Code of Corporate 
Governance, as a key member of the leadership team actively involved in all material business decisions 
to safeguard public money and sound financial management on behalf of the authority.  

4.3. The work of the external auditors as reported in their annual audit letter.

4.4. The work of Internal Audit service, which develops its annual work plan after an assessment of risk. The 
Head of Audit reported regularly during the year to both the Corporate Management Team and the Audit 
Committee and has provided a satisfactory level of assurance on the internal control environment in 
2009/10.

Page 108



U
na
ud
ite
d

92

4.5. Internal control assurance statements were received from all Service Directors and Heads of Service 
covering the financial year 2009/10. Statements provide confirmation that the control environment is 
operating effectively to safeguard the delivery of services and that any significant control issues have 
been raised and are being dealt with appropriately.

4.6. The London Borough of Hillingdon has continued to maintain effective financial management throughout 
the financial year, with unallocated reserves increasing to £17.7 million as at 31 March 2010. The Audit 
Committee reviewed the Council's updated balances and reserves statement at its meeting in March 
2010.

4.7. The London Borough of Hillingdon has a clear commitment to a capable, fit for purpose and sustainable 
procurement function. Corporate Procurement, working with individual Directorate Teams, set priorities in 
the Procurement Delivery Plan. On a monthly basis Contract Review Boards are held with Directorate 
Senior Management Teams to manage delivery of the plan, ensure priorities are correct and report 
outcomes of procurement activity. 

4.8. The Council has made good progress in improving services that residents say are their priorities. During 
the 2009 Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) the London Borough of Hillingdon was recognised as 
‘performing well’. 

4.9. The work of managers is vital, particularly through their implementation of performance management to 
ensure that each area achieves its targets in service delivery, financial control, and good governance. 
Approximately 97% of council plan targets have been completed or are on target to be completed within 
the timescales identified. 

4.10. Throughout 2009/10 the London Borough of Hillingdon has made substantial progress to implement new 
procedures and protocols and strengthen existing governance arrangements. This includes:

 A review of the Council’s Constitution  
 Implementation of a Data Quality Partnership Protocol 
 Development of a risk management e-learning package 
 A series of fraud awareness training sessions for managers 
 A review of the gifts and hospitality policy 

5. Significant Governance Issues 

The London Borough of Hillingdon has implemented a range of improvement actions to strengthen 
governance arrangements and control systems. Substantial progress has been made throughout the year to 
review and resolve the internal control issues reported in the Annual Governance Statement 2008/09 and the 
authority is satisfied that the following items have been resolved:         

 Fleet Management compliance 
 Software problems within the HR system  
 Procurement processes within Hillingdon Grid for Learning

Following a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control the following governance issues have 
been identified in 2009/10:

5.1. Some schools received Limited Assurance audit reports in-year but all had successfully achieved 
Financial Management Standards in Schools (FMSiS) by the year-end. To strengthen general support to 
schools the Education Finance team will be restructured early in 2010/11. 

5.2. Whilst the council has a wider energy management strategy, there is not yet a specific strategy in place 
to measure and reduce water usage within the council. A strategy will be developed in 2010/11. 

Page 109



U
na
ud
ite
d

93

The London Borough of Hillingdon will over the coming year take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements. The authority is satisfied that these steps will address the need for 
improvements that were identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of the next annual review.

In addition, the authority will monitor the delivery of significant projects or programmes in 2010/11 to ensure 
effective governance and risk management systems are maintained. This will include:   

 Transferring the control of housing management back to authority; and
 Delivery of the council’s transformation programme Business Improvement Delivery (BID).   

Hugh Dunnachie    
Chief Executive   Signature……………………………  Date………………… 

Cllr Ray Puddifoot
Leader of the Council  Signature……………………………  Date………………… 

Page 110



U
na
ud
ite
d

94

Glossary of Terms 

ACCRUAL - A sum included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to an accounting 
period for goods received or work done, but for which payment has not been received/made by the end of the 
period.

ACTUARIAL VALUATION - A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present value of benefits to be paid, 
and an estimate of required future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a pension fund. 

ACTUARY - An independent professional who advises on the financial position of the pension fund. 

AGENCY SERVICES - The provision of services by one body (the agent) on behalf of another that is legally 
responsible for providing the service. The Council provides services to British Airports Authority. 

AMORTISED COST – The initial measurement will be at fair value, normally the amount of the originating 
transaction such as the receipt or loan advance less transaction costs. The effective interest rate is then 
calculated to the amount in the balance sheet at initial measurement. The result in the balance sheet carrying 
amount (the amortised cost) and a profile of interest charges that might be different from the amounts 
specified in the contract as being for interest and principal.    

ASSET - Something that will be used by the authority over a long period of time and has a lasting value (e.g. 
land, buildings, and roads). See also COMMUNITY ASSETS, FIXED ASSET, INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS, 
NON-OPERATIONAL and OPERATIONAL ASSETS.

BAD DEBT PROVISION - An amount set-aside in the accounts towards potentially irrecoverable debts. This 
amount is netted against Debtors in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

BALANCES - Unallocated reserves held to resource unpredictable expenditure demands. 

BUDGET - A statement of the authority's plans for services expressed in money shown over one or a number 
of years. 

CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT - The Capital Adjustment Account represents the balance of capital 
resources set aside to finance capital expenditure awaiting the consumption of those resources (i.e. 
depreciation or impairment). 

CAPITAL CHARGE - A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the 
provision of services. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE - Spending on assets (e.g. land, buildings, roads etc.) that adds to and not merely 
maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.  

CAPITAL RECEIPTS - The proceeds from the sale of land, buildings or other assets. Capital receipts can be 
used to pay for new capital expenditure, within rules set down by the Government, or to repay outstanding 
loans.

CIPFA - The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy is the professional accounting body that 
specialises in the public services. 

COMMUNITY ASSETS - Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 
determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of community assets are 
parks and historic buildings. 

CONTINGENCY – Money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, or 
shortfalls in income. 

Page 111



U
na
ud
ite
d

95

CONTINGENT ASSET - A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the Council’s 
control.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY - A contingent liability is either: 
a) a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or  
b) past events where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required or the amount of 
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

CORPORATE AND DEMOCRATIC CORE - The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities that 
local authorities engage in specifically because they are elected, multi purpose authorities with a responsibility 
for making choices in the use of taxpayers’ money. The cost of the activities are thus over and above those 
which would be incurred by a series of independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing the same 
services. There is therefore no logical basis for apportioning these costs to services. 

COUNCIL TAX - The local tax based on relative market values of residential property, which helps to fund 
local services. 

CREDITOR – Amounts owed by the authority for goods and services received where payment has not been 
made at the date of the balance sheet. 

CURRENT ASSET - An asset held, which will be consumed or cease to have value within the next financial 
year; examples are stocks and debtors. 

CURRENT LIABILITY - An amount which will become payable or could be called in within the next accounting 
period; examples are creditors and cash overdrawn. 

CURRENT SERVICE COST - The increase in the present value of Pension Fund Liabilities expected to arise 
from current year service. 

DEBTOR – Amounts owed to the authority for goods and services provided but not received at the date of the 
balance sheet. 

DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT - A specific grant for the funding of schools and which is ring fenced to the 
Schools Budget. 

DEPRECIATION - The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic 
life of a fixed asset, whether arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other 
changes.

DIRECT REVENUE FINANCING (revenue contributions to capital) - Resources provided from the 
authority’s revenue budget to finance the cost of capital projects. 

DISTRICT AUDITOR - An auditor employed directly by the Audit Commission to audit the accounts of local 
authorities.

EARMARKED RESERVES –Amounts set aside for a specific purpose or a particular service or type of 
expenditure.

EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATE – The rate of interest that will discount the estimated cash flows that take place 
over the life of the instrument.   

EMOLUMENTS - All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of expenses 
allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other benefits 
received other than in cash. Pension contributions payable by either employer or employee are excluded. 

Page 112



U
na
ud
ite
d

96

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS - Material items that fall within the ordinary activities of the Council that need to be 
disclosed in order to present the accounts fairly. 

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS - Material items, possessing a high degree of 
abnormality, which derive from events or transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority 
and which are not expected to recur. 

FAIR VALUE - the price at which an asset could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction less, where 
applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of the asset. 

FEES AND CHARGES - Income raised by charging users of services.  

FINANCE LEASE - A method of paying for capital expenditure where a rent is paid for an asset during its 
useful life. Finance Leases are treated as capital. See OPERATING LEASE.

FINANCIAL YEAR - The period covered by a set of financial accounts - the local authority financial year 
commences 1 April and finishes 31 March the following year. 

FIXED ASSET - An asset that has value beyond one financial year. 

GENERAL RESERVE – the amount remaining unspent on revenue account after taking account of all 
expenditure and income for the year.  The General Reserve is required to enable the Council to meet potential 
business risks in the future so that services will not be affected financially should unexpected events occur. 

GOING CONCERN - The concept that an entity will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, 
in particular that the revenue accounts and balance sheet assumes no intention to curtail significantly the scale 
of operations. 

GOVERNMENT GRANTS – Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, 
whether local, national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an authority in return for 
past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the authority. 

GROSS EXPENDITURE - The total cost of providing the Council’s services before taking into account income 
from government grants and fees and charges for services. 

IMPAIRMENT - A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below its previously assessed value in the balance 
sheet.

INCOME - Amounts due that has been or is expected to be received. 

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS - Fixed assets that have no alternative use and are intended to be held in 
perpetuity. Examples of infrastructure assets are highways and footpaths. 

INVESTMENTS – Short-term investments are those maturing within one year if the balance sheet date, any 
investments maturing more than one year after the balance sheet date are treated as long-term investments. 

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES – Financial assets (excluding derivatives) that have fixed or determinate 
payments and that are not quoted in any in any active market. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised 
cost. The income and expenditure account is charged with interest receivable, impairment losses and any gain 
or loss on “de-recognition”. Movements in fair value during the life of the asset are not recognised.     

LIABILITIES - Money owed to individuals or organisations that will be paid at some time in the future. 

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION - (MRP) - The minimum amount, which must be charged each year to an 
authority's revenue account to set aside funds to repay the principal sum of borrowing for capital purposes. 

Page 113



U
na
ud
ite
d

97

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATE (NNDR) – A levy on businesses based on a national rate in the pound 
multiplied by the ratable value of the premises occupied. NNDR is redistributed among all local authorities and 
police authorities on the basis of population. 

NET BOOK VALUE - The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical 
cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 

NET EXPENDITURE – Gross expenditure less specific service income but before deduction of revenue 
support grant. 

NET CURRENT REPLACEMENT COST - The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing 
condition and in its existing use, i.e. the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset, adjusted to 
reflect the current condition of the existing asset. 

NET REALISABLE VALUE - The open market value of the asset in its existing use (open market value in the 
case of non-operational assets), or sale proceeds for stocks and stores less the expenses to be incurred in 
realising the asset. 

NON-DISTRIBUTABLE COST - These include overheads for which no user now benefits and should not be 
apportioned to services.  Examples are spare computer capacity and empty offices.  These also include 
pension costs in relation to scheme members’ past service. 

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS - Fixed assets held by a local authority but not directly occupied, used or 
consumed in the delivery of services. Examples of non-operational assets are investment properties, assets 
under construction and assets that are surplus to requirements, pending sale or redevelopment. 

OPERATIONAL ASSETS – Fixed Assets held, occupied, used or contracted to be used on behalf of the 
authority or consumed by an authority in the direct delivery of the services for which it has a responsibility, 
whether statutory or discretionary or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority. 

OPERATING LEASE – A lease under which the asset can never become the property of the lessee.  

OUTTURN - Actual income and expenditure for a financial year. 

PAST SERVICE COST - The increase in present value of Pension Fund liabilities arising in the current year 
from previous years’ service. 

PENSION FUND - The Fund for staff in the Local Government Pension Scheme, maintained on an actuarial 
basis, which makes pension payments on retirement of participants; it is financed by contributions from the 
employer and employees and from investment income. 

PENSION INTEREST COSTS - The expected increase in present value of Pension Fund liabilities because 
benefits are due one year sooner. 

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS -Those events, both favorable and 
unfavorable, which occur between the balance sheet date and the date on which the Director of Finance signs 
the Statement of Accounts. 

PRECEPT -  The charge made by one authority on another to finance its net expenditure. 

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS - Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in 
accounting policies or to correct fundamental errors. 

PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE (PFI) – A central government initiative that aims to increase the level of 
funding available for public services by attracting private involvement. The Council has one such scheme 
relating to the provision of Barnhill School. The school has been developed and its ancillary services are 
provided by a private-company with which the Council has a long-term contract.  

Page 114



U
na
ud
ite
d

98

PROVISION FOR DISCOUNT AND PREMIUMS ON LOAN REDEMPTION – A provision to spread over an 
appropriate period discounts received and premiums paid when loans from the Public Works Loan Board are 
prematurely repaid. 

PROVISION - An amount, set-aside in the accounts, for liabilities that have to be met but where timing is 
uncertain.

PRUDENCE - The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised only when realised in the form of 
cash or other assets and full and proper allowance is made for all known and foreseeable losses and liabilities. 

PUBLIC WORKS LOAN BOARD (PWLB) - A government agency that provides long term and medium term 
loans to local authorities at interest rates only slightly higher than those at which the government itself can 
borrow.

RELATED PARTY - the relationship between a senior officer or elected member or their families with another 
body that has, or might develop, a business relationship with the Council. 

RESERVES - Money set aside by the authorities to meet particular expenditure in future years, which do not 
fall within the definition of provisions. 

REVALUATION RESERVE – a new account opened on 1st April 2007 that records all accumulated gains from 
fixed assets held by the authority offset by that part of depreciation relating to the revaluation.  

REVENUE EXPENDITURE - The day-to-day running costs incurred by an authority in providing services, for 
example payment of salaries to employees or purchase of materials. 

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE – A charge arising from capital 
expenditure but where there is no tangible asset. An example is grants given for private property improvement. 
The Council is permitted to borrow for such expenditure 

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT - A grant paid by central government to aid local authority services in general, 
as opposed to specific grants, which may only be used for a specific purpose. 

SPECIFIC GRANTS - These are grants paid by various government departments outside the main formula.  
They include ring-fenced grants and specific formula grants. 

STOCKS - The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation for future use. 

TAXBASE - The number of Band D equivalent properties in a local authority’s area.  An authority’s tax base is 
taken into account when it calculates its council tax, and when central government calculates entitlement to 
Formula Grant. 

TRANSFER VALUE - A payment one superannuation fund makes to another when a member changes 
employment. 

TRUST FUNDS – Money held in trust by the Council for a specified purpose. 

USEFUL LIFE - The period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 

VIREMENT – The permission to spend more on one budget head when this is 
matched by a corresponding reduction on some other budget head, i.e. an authorised switch of resources 
between budget heads. 

WORKS IN PROGRESS - The cost of work done on an uncompleted project at the balance sheet date.

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

INDICATIVE STAGE USE OF RESOURCES REPORT 
 

Contact Officer: Nancy Le Roux 
Telephone: 01895 250353 

 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
This indicative stage report by Paul Hutt, Senior Audit Manager Deloitte, details Deloitte’s 
assessment of the Council’s performance under the Use of Resources assessment, which 
formed part of the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA).  Deloitte have recognised the 
significant improvements made by the council and have increased the overall score to 3 out of 4.    
 
On 26 May 2010 it was confirmed by the Audit Commission that following the abolition of the 
CAA that all audit work on the Use of Resources assessment would cease with immediate effect.   
This report, therefore, provides valuable feedback on progress since last year’s assessment 4 
and highlights several areas of focus for future improvement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Committee is asked to note the report. 
 
 
CONTEXT 
 
During 2008 the revised Use of Resources assessment, under the CAA regime was introduced 
and 2009 was the first full year of this assessment and the council scored a 2 overall.  The 
assessment focuses on three key themes: 
 

• Managing Finances 
• Governing the Business 
• Managing Resources 
 

On 26 May 2010 it was confirmed by the Audit Commission that following an announcement by 
the government that the CAA was to be abolished.  As a result all local authorities were 
instructed to stop all work on Use of Resources assessments.  However, by the date of the 
announcement, Hillingdon had substantially completed their assessment submission for 2010 
and Deloitte had completed their interim review of that assessment.  This report, therefore, 
provides Audit Committee with the results of that review and the significant improvements since 
the last assessment. 
 
Whilst the Use of Resources assessment has been abolished, the Key Lines of Enquiry 
(KLOEs) of the assessment are the basis of a very useful improvement plan, identifying main of 
the key areas on which the council should focus future improvement plans.  As a result work on 
these areas will continue and the Deloitte report findings will be fully incorporated into Council 
improvement plans.   

Agenda Item 6

Page 117



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

INTERIM REPORT FINDINGS 
 
The interim scores for the 3 areas are as follows: 
 
Theme KLOE 2009/10 

Indicative 
Score 

2008/09 
Indicative 
Score 

Managing Finances Financial Planning 3 3 
 Value for Money 3 2 
 Financial Reporting 3 3 
Theme Score  3 3 
    
Governing the Business Procurement & Commissioning 2 2 
 Data quality 3 2 
 Governance 3 2 
 Risk Management 3 2 
Theme Score  3 2 
    
Managing Resources Natural resources 2 2 
 Asset Management 3 2 
 Workforce 3 n/a 
Theme Score  3 2 

Overall Score  3 2 
 
The overall score for the council has improved from a 2 last year to a 3 this year and as reported 
by Deloitte the significant improvement in the KLOE scores is a noteworthy achievement.  
Officers recognised the relevance of the KLOEs to the councils overall improvement and have 
developed processes and services using these KLOEs as a guide.  Of particular note is the 
sustained performance in financial management, with the value for money KLOE increasing to a 
score of 3; considerable improvements have been made across the whole range of the 
governing the business KLOEs, with only one KLOE now scoring 2; and in the managing 
resources theme, workforce planning was assessed for the first time and the award of a score of 
3 gives credit to the very strong performance in this area.  
 
The report makes recommendations for further improvements in 4 key areas: 
 

• The use of benchmarking should be enhanced to assist in understanding of costs and our 
use of information; 

• A council-wide procurement strategy should be developed  and published; 
• Processes to evaluate the effectiveness of toolkits should be developed; and  
• The Counter Fraud and Corruption strategy should be updated. 

 
Officers fully accept these recommendations and will address these issues by incorporating into 
future development plans. 
 

Page 118



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Then scale of fees for the assessment work for 2009/10 was agreed at £66,000 for Use of 
Resources and a further £20,000 for the Organisational Assessment element of the CAA.  We 
recognise that Deloitte have substantially completed the use of resources work and will agree a 
revised fee for the 2009/10 assessment, however, as the Organisation Assessment work has 
not been completed, the council expects this element not to be charged. 
 
Going forward, the 2010/11 scale of fees were agreed as £56,500 and £20,000 respectively, 
which should deliver savings to the council although there is no clarity as yet on whether any 
further assessment will replace CAA. 
 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
St

ag
e 

   
   

 
U

se
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 R

ep
or

t 

Ju
ne

 2
01

0 

D
ra

ft
 R

ep
or

t 

Page 121



C
on

te
nt

s

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

1

1.
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
4

2.
M

an
ag

in
g 

fin
an

ce
s 

5

3.
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
10

4.
M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
21

5.
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

25

A
pp

en
di

x 
1:

 In
te

rim
 s

co
re

s 
26

A
pp

en
di

x 
2:

 U
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

9/
10

 s
co

rin
g 

27

Page 122



E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

W
e 

ha
ve

 p
le

as
ur

e 
in

 s
et

tin
g 

ou
t i

n 
th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t o

ur
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
 (

“t
he

 C
ou

nc
il”

) 
on

 th
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
st

ag
e 

us
e 

of
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0.
  T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 s

um
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 h

av
e 

ar
is

en
 fr

om
 o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.

O
n 

26
 M

ay
 2

01
0,

 it
 w

as
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 th

at
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

an
 a

nn
ou

nc
em

en
t b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t t
ha

t C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 A

re
a

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

“C
A

A
”)

 w
as

 to
 b

e 
ab

ol
is

he
d,

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
on

 U
se

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 (
“U

oR
”)

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
t l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
as

 to
 s

to
p 

w
ith

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ef

fe
ct

.  
W

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

fu
lle

st
 e

xt
en

t p
os

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

st
ag

e 
su

bm
is

si
on

 in
 A

pr
il 

20
10

, h
ow

ev
er

 w
ill

 n
ot

 
no

w
 b

e 
m

ak
in

g 
a 

fin
al

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
10

.  
O

ur
 U

oR
 r

ep
or

t a
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e 
in

 2
00

8/
09

 in
cl

ud
ed

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, b
ut

 a
ls

o 
‘e

vi
de

nc
e 

ga
ps

’, 
w

he
re

 o
ur

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t h
ad

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
to

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 u
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 h
ig

he
r 

sc
or

es
 to

 b
e 

re
ac

he
d.

  T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 d
oe

s 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 ‘e
vi

de
nc

e 
ga

ps
’, 

as
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

us
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

ad
di

tio
na

l e
vi

de
nc

e.

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

T
he

 U
oR

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t c

on
si

de
re

d 
ho

w
 w

el
l o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 w
er

e 
m

an
ag

in
g 

an
d 

us
in

g 
th

ei
r 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 a

nd
 b

et
te

r 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
 T

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pr
is

ed
 th

re
e 

th
em

es
:

 
M

an
ag

in
g 

fin
an

ce
s,

 fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

so
un

d 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y;

 
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

, f
oc

us
in

g 
on

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
go

od
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
; a

nd

 
M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s,
 fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
ho

w
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
an

ag
es

 it
s 

na
tu

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
es

, a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
.

T
he

 U
oR

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
m

ed
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
A

A
 fr

om
 2

00
9 

an
d 

fe
d 

in
to

 o
th

er
 r

el
ev

an
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
fr

am
ew

or
ks

.  
A

s 
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

ab
ov

e,
 C

A
A

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ab

ol
is

he
d 

by
 th

e 
ne

w
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t, 
an

d 
no

 fu
rt

he
r 

w
or

k 
w

ill
 

be
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 o
n 

U
oR

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
t l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

  

1

Page 123



E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
S

co
p

e
A

n 
an

nu
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t o
f l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ap

po
in

te
d 

au
di

to
rs

 w
as

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f a

n 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 
U

oR
.  

T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

st
ag

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
as

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t d

ur
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
sc

or
es

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 b
y 

th
ei

r 
de

ad
lin

e 
of

 2
1 

A
pr

il 
20

10
.  

W
ith

in
 th

e 
re

po
rt

, w
e 

ha
ve

 o
ut

lin
ed

: 

 
A

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 o
ur

 fi
nd

in
gs

 in
 r

ea
ch

in
g 

th
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
sc

or
es

 r
ep

or
te

d;
 a

nd
  

 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

20
09

/1
0 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
ab

ol
iti

on
 o

f C
A

A
, n

o 
m

od
er

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sc
or

es
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

st
ag

e 
U

oR
 

w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 th
is

 y
ea

r.
  T

he
 s

co
re

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t w

ill
 n

ot
, a

s 
fa

r 
as

 w
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e,
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f a
ny

 ju
dg

em
en

t o
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

go
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d.

In
d

ic
at

iv
e 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

T
he

 U
oR

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
m

ad
e 

un
de

r 
th

re
e 

ov
er

al
l a

re
as

: M
an

ag
in

g 
fin

an
ce

s,
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

, a
nd

 
M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
  W

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
th

em
es

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 li

ne
s 

of
 e

nq
ui

ry
 (

“K
Lo

E
s”

).

W
e 

as
se

ss
 e

ac
h 

K
Lo

E
 b

y 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
w

ha
t a

ud
ito

rs
 w

ou
ld

 e
xp

ec
t t

o 
se

e 
at

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 o
r 

w
el

l. 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 s
om

e 
ar

ea
s 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

be
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
t t

he
 fi

na
l s

ub
m

is
si

on
 s

ta
ge

, f
or

 
ex

am
pl

e,
 th

os
e 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
st

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 
 In

 th
os

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 w
e 

ro
lle

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
sc

or
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
in

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
ye

ar
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 n
o 

ev
id

en
ce

 
th

at
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

ha
d 

de
te

rio
ra

te
d 

fr
om

 p
rio

r 
ye

ar
.

W
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
ll 

th
re

e 
th

em
es

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
at

 le
ve

l 3
 a

t t
hi

s 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

st
ag

e 
of

 o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

.  
T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
ve

ry
 fa

vo
ur

ab
ly

 to
 p

rio
r 

ye
ar

, w
he

n 
th

e 
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
nd

 M
an

ag
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

th
em

es
 w

er
e 

sc
or

ed
 

at
 le

ve
l 2

.  
T

hi
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

sc
or

es
 is

 a
 n

ot
ew

or
th

y 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t, 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 c

on
gr

at
ul

at
ed

.

F
or

 a
 b

re
ak

do
w

n 
of

 th
e 

sc
or

e 
by

 in
di

vi
du

al
 K

Lo
E

 p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1.

 D
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 s

co
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
t A

pp
en

di
x 

2.

2

Page 124



E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t

T
hr

ou
gh

ou
t t

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 w

e 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
.  

T
he

se
 s

te
m

 fr
om

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l c

an
 d

el
iv

er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
 e

ith
er

 b
y 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
its

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 o

r 
by

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
va

ila
bl

e.

T
he

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f o

ur
 w

or
k 

ar
e:

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

K
L

O
E

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 e

nh
an

ce
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
K

Lo
E

 1
.2

 –
 U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 c
os

ts
 

K
Lo

E
 2

.2
 –

 U
se

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 fi

na
lis

e 
an

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n-
w

id
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 it

 is
 p

ub
lic

is
ed

.  
K

Lo
E

 2
.1

 –
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

us
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 in

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
w

ay
s 

K
Lo

E
 2

.1
 –

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 e
xp

lo
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 a

 
w

id
er

 r
an

ge
 o

f s
up

pl
ie

rs
, s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 w

ith
 th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
K

Lo
E

 2
.1

 –
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 it

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

w
id

er
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
 in

 a
ll 

of
 it

s 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 
K

Lo
E

 2
.1

 –
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t
T

he
 ‘A

nn
ua

l Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 fo

r 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s’
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

qu
es

tio
n 

on
 h

ow
 M

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

us
ed

 th
ei

r 
P

er
so

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

oo
lk

it,
 s

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ca

n 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
us

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

es
e 

T
oo

lk
its

 

K
Lo

E
 2

.3
 –

 G
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
he

 C
ou

nt
er

 F
ra

ud
 a

nd
 C

or
ru

pt
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

 o
n 

an
 a

nn
ua

l b
as

is
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

nt
ai

n 
a 

st
ro

ng
 m

es
sa

ge
 a

ga
in

st
 

‘ti
pp

in
g 

of
f’’

 

K
Lo

E
 2

.4
 –

 R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

in
 th

e 
bo

dy
 o

f t
he

 r
ep

or
t i

n 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ec
tio

ns
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 K

Lo
E

.

3

Page 125



1.
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n
T

he
 “

U
oR

” 
as

se
ss

m
en

t c
on

si
de

rs
 h

ow
 w

el
l o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
re

 m
an

ag
in

g 
an

d 
us

in
g 

th
ei

r 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 a

nd
 b

et
te

r 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
 T

he
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t c
om

pr
is

es
 th

re
e 

th
em

es
 a

nd
 te

n 
K

Lo
E

s.

T
h

em
e 

1
M

an
ag

in
g

 F
in

an
ce

s 
- 

H
o

w
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

ly
 d

o
es

 t
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

 m
an

ag
e 

it
s 

fi
n

an
ce

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 v
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

?

1.
1

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
pl

an
 it

s 
fin

an
ce

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
cu

re
 s

ou
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l h
ea

lth
? 

1.
2

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
ha

ve
 a

 s
ou

nd
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f i

ts
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
ve

 e
ffi

ci
en

ci
es

 in
 it

s 
ac

tiv
iti

es
?

K
Lo

E

1.
3

Is
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
tim

el
y,

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
do

es
 it

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l u
se

rs
, s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e?

 

T
h

em
e 

2
G

o
ve

rn
in

g
 t

h
e 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

- 
H

o
w

 w
el

l d
o

es
 t

h
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 g

o
ve

rn
 it

se
lf

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

 a
n

d
 d

el
iv

er
 b

et
te

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

es
 f

o
r 

lo
ca

l p
eo

p
le

?

2.
1

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
co

m
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 p

ro
cu

re
 q

ua
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 s

up
pl

ie
s,

 ta
ilo

re
d 

to
 lo

ca
l n

ee
ds

, t
o 

de
liv

er
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
nd

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

? 

2.
2

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
pr

od
uc

e 
re

le
va

nt
 a

nd
 r

el
ia

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

m
an

ag
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

?

2.
3

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 v
al

ue
s 

of
 g

oo
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
? 

K
Lo

E

2.
4

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
m

an
ag

e 
its

 r
is

ks
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
so

un
d 

sy
st

em
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

? 

T
h

em
e 

3 
M

an
ag

in
g

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 -
 H

o
w

 w
el

l d
o

es
 t

h
e 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 m

an
ag

e 
it

s 
n

at
u

ra
l r

es
o

u
rc

es
, p

h
ys

ic
al

 a
ss

et
s,

 a
n

d
 p

eo
p

le
 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d

 f
u

tu
re

 n
ee

d
s 

an
d

 t
o

 d
el

iv
er

 v
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

?

3.
1

Is
 th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
m

ak
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

? 

3.
2

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
m

an
ag

e 
its

 a
ss

et
s 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 h

el
p 

de
liv

er
 it

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
ne

ed
s?

 

K
Lo

E

3.
3

D
oe

s 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
pl

an
, o

rg
an

is
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

its
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f i

ts
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s?

O
ur

 fi
nd

in
gs

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 e

ac
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
 K

Lo
E

 fo
llo

w
 in

 s
ec

tio
ns

 2
 to

 4
 o

f t
hi

s 
re

po
rt

.

4

Page 126



2.
M

an
ag

in
g 

fi
na

nc
es

 
In

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 ‘M

an
ag

in
g 

F
in

an
ce

s’
 th

e 
ke

y 
qu

es
tio

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

is
 h

ow
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
m

an
ag

es
 it

s 
fin

an
ce

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

.  
T

hi
s 

qu
es

tio
n 

is
 a

ns
w

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
re

e 
K

Lo
E

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 fu
rt

he
r 

br
ok

en
 d

ow
n 

in
to

 m
or

e 
fo

cu
se

d 
ar

ea
s,

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

 s
ec

tio
ns

 2
.1

 to
 

2.
3 

be
lo

w
.  

T
he

 s
co

re
s 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 K
Lo

E
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 th
em

e,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

20
08

/0
9 

fin
al

 s
co

re
 fo

r 
co

m
pa

ris
on

, a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
.  

S
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

fo
r 

a 
fu

ll 
lis

tin
g 

of
 s

co
re

s.
  D

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

 s
co

rin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

t A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

ar
ea

 
K

L
o

E
20

09
/1

0
In

d
ic

at
iv

e
K

L
o

E
 s

co
re

 

20
09

/1
0

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

T
h

em
e 

sc
o

re

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

K
L

o
E

 s
co

re
 

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

T
h

em
e 

sc
o

re

1.
1 

P
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 h

ea
lth

 
3

3

1.
2 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

3
2

M
an

ag
in

g
fin

an
ce

s

1.
3 

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

3

3

3

3

2.
1)

  
K

L
o

E
 1

.1
: 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 h
ea

lt
h

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 a
sk

s 
fo

r 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

n 
w

he
th

er
 “

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
its

 fi
na

nc
es

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 it

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 s
ou

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 h
ea

lth
”.

 T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 h
as

 fi
ve

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 I
nt

eg
ra

te
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
la

nn
in

g;
 

 M
ed

iu
m

 to
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g;

 
 M

an
ag

in
g 

sp
en

di
ng

; 
 E

ng
ag

es
 w

ith
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s;

 a
nd

 
 F

in
an

ci
al

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e.
 

W
e 

sc
or

ed
 th

is
 K

Lo
E

 a
s 

a 
‘3

’ o
ve

ra
ll 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 s

et
 in

 2
00

8/
09

 w
hi

ls
t d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 in
 2

00
9/

10
. 

5

Page 127



2.
M

an
ag

in
g 

fi
na

nc
es

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s

2.
1.

1 
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
n

in
g

: 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ro

bu
st

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
ni

ng
, a

nd
 c

le
ar

ly
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
ou

tp
ut

 o
f t

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 b

ud
ge

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ye

ar
 o

n 
ye

ar
, w

hi
le

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
at

 a
 le

ve
l w

hi
ch

 h
as

 s
ee

n 
re

si
de

nt
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 w
ith

 th
e 

Ic
el

an
di

c 
ba

nk
s 

bu
t r

es
po

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 
ba

nk
in

g 
cr

is
is

 b
y 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
an

d 
up

da
tin

g 
its

 T
re

as
ur

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 la
te

st
 g

ui
da

nc
e.

 

2.
1.

2 
M

ed
iu

m
 t

o
 lo

n
g

 t
er

m
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
n

in
g

: 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
em

be
dd

ed
 a

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 F
or

ec
as

t (
“M

T
F

F
”)

 
w

hi
ch

 li
nk

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 in

to
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 d

ic
ta

te
d 

by
 th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(“
S

C
S

”)
. T

he
 b

ud
ge

t 
se

tti
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
vo

lv
es

 c
on

si
de

ra
bl

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

t a
 s

er
vi

ce
 b

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
le

ve
l, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 a
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 a
na

ly
si

s.
  T

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 

fe
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l b

ud
ge

t t
hr

ou
gh

 s
et

tin
g 

bu
dg

et
s 

fo
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
co

nt
in

ge
nc

y 
su

m
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
is

ks
 a

re
 

co
ve

re
d.

U
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 b
ot

h 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

H
ill

in
gd

on
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

ar
e 

re
gu

la
rly

 c
ha

lle
ng

ed
, w

ith
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 r
ed

ire
ct

ed
 to

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
as

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 T
he

 m
os

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 w
hi

le
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 r
es

id
en

t
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
le

ve
ls

.  
W

he
n 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ar
e 

de
riv

ed
 in

 o
ne

 a
re

a 
of

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
in

ve
st

ed
 in

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s.
  A

s 
su

ch
, o

ve
ra

ll 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 h
as

 n
ot

 d
ec

re
as

ed
, b

ut
 d

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 in
 p

rio
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

is
 g

en
er

at
in

g 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 in
 th

os
e 

ar
ea

s.
 

2.
1.

3 
M

an
ag

in
g

 s
p

en
d

in
g

: 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
a 

tr
ac

k 
re

co
rd

 o
f d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s,
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

up
 r

es
er

ve
s,

 w
hi

ls
t m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
le

ve
ls

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
od

uc
es

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 D
ig

es
t w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 k
ey

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
st

at
is

tic
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
C

ou
nc

il 
ta

x.
 In

 2
00

8/
09

, w
hi

le
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 d

eb
ts

 fo
r 

m
at

er
ia

l i
nc

om
e 

st
re

am
s 

w
as

 m
on

ito
re

d,
 n

ot
 a

ll 
ha

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
se

t, 
an

d 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

ra
te

s 
di

d 
no

t a
pp

ea
r 

to
 h

av
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 fo
r 

th
os

e 
w

hi
ch

 d
id

 h
av

e 
ta

rg
et

s.
 T

he
 2

00
9/

10
 fi

na
nc

ia
l d

ig
es

t s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
no

w
 h

av
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

se
t f

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 r

ev
en

ue
. I

n 
ge

ne
ra

l, 
ta

rg
et

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

se
t h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
ac

tu
al

s 
an

d 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
w

er
e 

m
et

. 

6

Page 128



2.
 M

an
ag

in
g 

fi
na

nc
es

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
2.

1.
4 

E
n

g
ag

es
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
s:

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

es
 w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f w

ay
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
is

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
st

ro
ng

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 in
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 s
ur

ve
y.

  T
he

 S
C

S
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
de

liv
er

s 
its

 g
oa

ls
 a

nd
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 P

ar
tn

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
re

 e
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 L

A
A

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 ta
rg

et
s 

to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
tr

on
g.

 W
ar

d 
bu

dg
et

s,
 a

 s
ch

em
e 

w
he

re
 M

em
be

rs
 u

se
 in

di
vi

du
al

 fu
nd

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

w
ar

ds
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rn

s,
 h

av
e 

al
so

 
be

en
 u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 2
00

9/
10

. I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

es
e 

so
ur

ce
s 

is
 fe

d 
ba

ck
 th

ro
ug

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s,

 in
to

 b
ud

ge
ts

, t
he

 M
T

F
F

 a
nd

H
ill

in
gd

on
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

S
C

S
. 

2.
1.

5 
F

in
an

ci
al

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

n
d

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

: 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ee
ts

 it
s 

bu
dg

et
s 

an
d 

ha
s 

a 
bu

ild
 u

p 
of

 u
na

llo
ca

te
d 

re
se

rv
es

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ef
oc

us
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

 T
hi

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
as

 it
 h

as
 e

na
bl

ed
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 h
ol

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 a

t t
he

 s
am

e 
le

ve
l f

or
 s

uc
ce

ss
iv

e 
ye

ar
s.

T
he

 L
ea

de
r 

is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 s
en

io
r 

of
fic

er
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

tr
on

g 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
, w

ho
se

 o
ve

r-
ar

ch
in

g 
pr

io
rit

y 
is

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

w
ha

t r
es

id
en

ts
 

ne
ed

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

or
k 

w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

in
 2

00
8/

09
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 S

C
S

, w
ith

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 
M

T
F

F
 w

hi
ch

 ti
es

 d
ire

ct
ly

 in
to

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 (
th

e 
20

09
/1

0 
S

C
S

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

fin
al

is
ed

 u
nt

il 
Ju

ne
 2

01
0)

.  

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

to
ol

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 fo
cu

se
d,

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s 

an
d 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
a 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 a

nd
 e

xt
er

na
l r

ep
or

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
eq

ue
st

in
g 

th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f s

en
io

r 
of

fic
er

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 q
ue

st
io

n 
th

em
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 s
pe

ci
fic

 is
su

es
. 

2.
2)

 
K

L
o

E
 1

.2
: 

U
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g
 c

o
st

s 
an

d
 a

ch
ie

vi
n

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 fo
cu

se
s 

up
on

 w
he

th
er

 “
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
ha

s 
a 

so
un

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 it

s 
co

st
s 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
ve

s 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 it
s 

ac
tiv

iti
es

”.
 T

hi
s 

K
Lo

E
 h

as
 th

re
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 c

os
ts

; 
 D

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g;

 a
nd

 
 M

ak
in

g 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s.
 

7

Page 129



2.
 M

an
ag

in
g 

fi
na

nc
es

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
W

e 
sc

or
ed

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

s 
a 

‘3
’ o

ve
ra

ll 
as

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
hi

ls
t a

ls
o 

de
m

on
st

ra
tin

g 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r 
ou

tc
om

es
.  

A
 fu

rt
he

r 
ye

ar
 o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 (

al
th

ou
gh

 th
es

e 
ar

e 
as

 y
et

 
un

au
di

te
d)

. A
 r

ob
us

t u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f c
os

ts
 a

cr
os

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

dr
iv

er
s 

of
 th

os
e 

co
st

s,
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

w
hi

ch
 h

el
pe

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
id

en
tif

y 
fu

rt
he

r 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s.
  I

ss
ue

s 
in

 2
00

8/
09

 w
er

e 
ce

nt
re

d 
ar

ou
nd

 a
 la

ck
 o

f d
em

on
st

ra
bl

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g.

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s 

2.
2.

1 
U

n
d

er
st

an
d

in
g

 c
o

st
s:

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
a 

go
od

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f i
ts

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 w

ha
t i

s 
dr

iv
in

g 
th

os
e 

co
st

s,
 a

nd
 h

as
 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
in

 it
s 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 2
00

9/
10

.  
In

 2
00

8/
09

 w
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 £
45

m
 o

f s
av

in
gs

 m
ad

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 fo

ur
 

ye
ar

s.
  T

hi
s 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
de

d 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

£7
.5

m
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 2
00

9/
10

.

W
hi

ls
t t

he
se

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 a

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t, 
w

e 
no

te
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 s
til

l h
ig

he
r 

co
st

 th
an

 o
th

er
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 k
ey

 a
re

as
.  

T
hi

s 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ei

th
er

 s
pe

ci
al

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
(s

uc
h 

as
 H

ea
th

ro
w

 b
ei

ng
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h)

 w
ith

in
 H

ill
in

gd
on

 w
hi

ch
 m

ak
e 

un
it 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 it
em

s 
hi

gh
 (

du
e 

to
 e

ith
er

 a
re

as
 o

f p
rio

rit
y 

sp
en

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
or

 o
th

er
 e

xt
er

na
l f

ac
to

rs
),

 o
r 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

sa
vi

ng
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
dr

iv
en

 o
ut

 o
f c

os
ts

.  
It 

is
 li

ke
ly

 th
at

 a
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 b
ot

h 
po

in
ts

 a
pp

ly
.  

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

lik
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

se
en

 fu
rt

he
r 

ev
id

en
ce

 
ar

ou
nd

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
t t

he
 d

is
po

sa
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s.

 

2.
2.

2 
D

ec
is

io
n

 m
ak

in
g

:
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 it
 h

as
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f c

os
ts

 in
 d

iff
er

en
t a

re
as

, a
nd

 a
n 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 w
ha

t m
ak

es
 th

em
 d

iff
er

en
t o

n 
a 

un
it 

co
st

 b
as

is
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
w

e 
ha

ve
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 

(a
du

lt 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g)
.  

W
hi

le
 w

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 w
ho

le
-o

f-
lif

e 
co

st
in

g 
an

d 
sc

en
ar

io
 a

na
ly

si
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
m

at
te

r 
of

 c
ou

rs
e 

in
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 m
ak

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t d

ec
is

io
ns

, w
e 

w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
hi

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

st
ag

e 
su

bm
is

si
on

.  
T

he
se

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

re
 

ke
y 

to
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l p
la

nn
in

g,
 a

nd
 w

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 a

re
 d

oc
um

en
te

d 
cl

ea
rly

.

2.
2.

3 
M

ak
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

:
P

la
nn

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

ch
ie

ve
d,

 b
ut

 o
ve

ra
ll 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
hi

gh
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 a

re
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
co

nt
ex

t 
is

su
es

 w
hi

ch
 in

cr
ea

se
 c

os
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
va

rio
us

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 H

ea
th

ro
w

).
  W

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 w
id

er
 u

se
 o

f b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 h

as
 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

th
an

 in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
re

vi
ew

s,
 th

ou
gh

 w
e 

w
er

e 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 th
is

 s
ta

ge
 w

ith
 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t o
ut

co
m

es
 d

er
iv

ed
 fr

om
 th

is
.  

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 w

ay
 (

m
os

t n
ot

ab
ly

 th
e 

lo
ca

l P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
T

ru
st

),
 a

nd
 is

 a
 m

em
be

r 
of

 th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

A
lli

an
ce

.

8

Page 130



2.
 M

an
ag

in
g 

fi
na

nc
es

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 it

s 
us

e 
of

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
.  

A
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 s
pe

nd
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 n
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

xt
er

na
l f

ac
to

rs
 a

re
 p

re
se

nt
 b

ut
 fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

bo
ve

 a
ve

ra
ge

 s
pe

nd
 

fo
r 

a 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
gr

ou
p 

of
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
  T

he
 b

es
t p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

 in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
ca

n 
be

 a
sk

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
xp

la
na

tio
ns

 a
s 

to
 h

ow
 th

ey
 r

un
 

at
 lo

w
er

 c
os

ts
.  

Le
ss

on
s 

fr
om

 th
es

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 m
ay

 th
en

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
in

 H
ill

in
gd

on
 to

 h
el

p 
re

du
ce

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

se
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

.

2.
3)

 
K

L
o

E
 1

.3
: 

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
he

 a
im

 o
f t

hi
s 

K
Lo

E
 is

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
“o

rg
an

is
at

io
n’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

is
 ti

m
el

y,
 r

el
ia

bl
e 

an
d 

m
ee

ts
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 

us
er

s,
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e”

.  
K

Lo
E

 1
.3

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 fo
cu

se
s 

on
 th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
pu

bl
is

hi
ng

 r
ep

or
ts

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
w

hi
ch

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 a
t y

ea
r 

en
d.

  D
ue

 to
 th

e 
tim

in
g 

of
 o

ur
 in

te
rim

 w
or

k,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

un
ab

le
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

 
20

09
/1

0 
sc

or
e 

fo
r 

th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e,

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, w

e 
ha

ve
 r

ol
le

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
sc

or
e 

of
 3

.

9

Page 131



3.
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
In

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 ‘G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

’ t
he

 k
ey

 q
ue

st
io

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

is
 h

ow
 w

el
l t

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

go
ve

rn
s 

its
el

f a
nd

 c
om

m
is

si
on

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

at
 

pr
ov

id
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 b
et

te
r 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e.

  T
hi

s 
qu

es
tio

n 
is

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

ur
 K

Lo
E

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 fu
rt

he
r 

br
ok

en
 

do
w

n 
in

to
 m

or
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ea

s,
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 s

ec
tio

ns
 3

.1
 to

 3
.4

 b
el

ow
.  

T
he

 s
co

re
s 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 K
Lo

E
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 th
em

e,
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

20
08

/0
9 

fin
al

 s
co

re
 fo

r 
co

m
pa

ris
on

, a
re

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
.  

S
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

fo
r 

a 
fu

ll 
lis

tin
g 

of
 s

co
re

s.
  D

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

 s
co

rin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

t A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

ar
ea

 
K

L
o

E
In

d
ic

at
iv

e
K

L
o

E
 s

co
re

 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e
T

h
em

e 
sc

o
re

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

K
L

o
E

 s
co

re
 

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

T
h

em
e 

sc
o

re

2.
1 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

2
2

2.
2 

U
se

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

3
2

2.
3 

G
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
3

2

G
ov

er
ni

ng
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

2.
4 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
3

3

2

2

3.
1 

K
L

o
E

 2
.1

: 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 c
on

si
de

rs
 w

he
th

er
 “

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ur

es
 q

ua
lit

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 s

up
pl

ie
s,

 ta
ilo

re
d 

to
 lo

ca
l n

ee
ds

, t
o 

de
liv

er
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
nd

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

. T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 h
as

 s
ix

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 C
le

ar
 v

is
io

n 
of

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ou

tc
om

es
; 

 E
xt

en
si

ve
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g;

 
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 s

er
vi

ce
 r

ed
es

ig
n;

 
 U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
e 

su
pp

ly
 m

ar
ke

t; 
 E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t o
pt

io
ns

; a
nd

 
 R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

. 

10

Page 132



3.
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

O
ve

ra
ll,

 w
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

s 
a 

2.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 
w

ith
in

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
, a

nd
 h

as
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 a

re
as

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 le

ar
ni

ng
 m

or
e 

ab
ou

t, 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 it

s 
lo

ca
l s

up
pl

ie
r 

ba
se

. T
he

re
 r

em
ai

n 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y;

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

w
or

ki
ng

 h
ar

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s.

 

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s 

3.
1.

1 
C

le
ar

 v
is

io
n

 o
f 

ex
p

ec
te

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
: 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

cl
ea

r 
pi

ct
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 it
s 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 is
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 k
ey

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
th

e 
Jo

in
t S

tr
at

eg
ic

 N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
T

he
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 it
 c

an
 c

o-
op

er
at

e 
m

or
e 

w
ith

 it
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 it

 o
bt

ai
ns

 a
n 

up
 to

 d
at

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 T

ru
st

.  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f i

ts
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t d

ep
ar

tm
en

t, 
an

d 
th

is
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

pr
of

ile
 o

f t
he

 
te

am
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t h

as
 r

eg
ul

ar
 o

ne
-t

o-
on

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e.
  T

he
re

 a
re

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
di

re
ct

or
at

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
la

ns
 w

hi
ch

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 e
ac

h 
di

re
ct

or
at

e.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
se

 p
la

ns
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

de
riv

ed
 fr

om
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l c
ou

nc
il-

w
id

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

nd
 th

is
 is

 a
n 

as
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n.

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 fi
na

lis
e 

an
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n-

w
id

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
en

su
re

 th
at

 in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ire
ct

or
at

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
la

ns
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 it

.  
T

hi
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

sh
ou

ld
 li

nk
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

s 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ac

tio
ns

.
O

nc
e 

fu
lly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
, t

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pu

bl
ic

is
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

eb
si

te
, t

o 
su

pp
or

t s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
ho

w
 th

ey
 c

an
 w

or
k 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

3.
1.

2 
E

xt
en

si
ve

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

in
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
: 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 m

ea
ns

 to
 o

bt
ai

n 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

th
us

 in
fo

rm
 it

s 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

ns
ul

ts
 o

n 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
us

es
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f U
se

r 
P

an
el

s.
  F

ur
th

er
 v

ie
w

s 
ar

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
gr

ou
ps

, s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

A
lli

an
ce

 w
hi

ch
 s

ou
gh

t v
ie

w
s 

on
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e.

 F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 9

00
 S

tr
ee

t C
ha

m
pi

on
s,

 w
ho

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

us
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

on
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, m
os

t n
ot

ab
ly

 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

us
es

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
us

er
 v

ie
w

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 d
el

iv
er

ed
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
ar

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

T
ea

m
.  

O
ve

ra
ll,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
its

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 o
bt

ai
ni

ng
 u

se
r 

vi
ew

s 
in

 a
ll 

ar
ea

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
A

ct
iv

e 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 w
ay

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
se

ek
in

g 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 a

 w
id

er
 r

an
ge

 o
f s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

w
ith

in
 it

s 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

.  
T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

‘U
nl

oc
ki

ng
 th

e 
H

ea
th

ro
w

 S
up

pl
y 

C
ha

in
’ n

et
w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 B

A
A

, a
nd

 th
e 

C
re

di
t C

ru
nc

h 
G

ro
up

, 
ai

m
ed

 a
t s

up
po

rt
in

g 
lo

ca
l s

up
pl

ie
rs

 th
ro

ug
h 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
pu

bl
is

he
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e

11

Page 133



3.
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 b
ut

, a
s 

th
er

e 
is

 n
ot

 a
n 

ov
er

rid
in

g 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
S

tr
at

eg
y,

 th
is

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pu

bl
ic

is
ed

. I
f i

t w
er

e,
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

th
e 

w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
ca

n 
in

te
ra

ct
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
(s

ee
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 p
ag

e)
.  

3.
1.

3 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

er
vi

ce
 r

ed
es

ig
n

: 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 e

nh
an

ci
ng

 c
us

to
m

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

, a
lth

ou
gh

 th
is

 is
 a

t a
n 

ea
rly

 s
ta

ge
 a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 lo
ok

in
g 

at
 o

th
er

 n
ew

 w
ay

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 

an
d 

a 
ke

y 
el

em
en

t o
f t

he
 B

us
in

es
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t D

el
iv

er
y 

(“
B

ID
”)

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

is
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f F

le
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 P

as
se

ng
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

at
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 o
ffe

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 
‘W

el
co

m
e 

to
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
’ i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

pa
ck

 fo
r 

ne
w

 r
es

id
en

ts
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
on

ito
rs

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
ap

ita
l A

m
bi

tio
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e,

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
R

eg
io

na
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (
“R

IE
P

”)
, w

hi
ch

 a
llo

w
s 

re
gu

la
r 

in
te

rn
al

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
it 

ha
s 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 a

 fu
ll 

se
t o

f 
C

on
tr

ac
t R

eg
is

te
rs

. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

vo
lu

m
e 

an
d 

va
lu

e 
of

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
be

in
g 

of
fe

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

e-
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t s
ite

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, w

hi
ls

t I
T

 is
 b

ei
ng

 u
se

d 
to

 
dr

iv
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
 r

ed
es

ig
n,

 th
er

e 
is

 n
ot

 a
 c

le
ar

 li
nk

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

IT
 a

nd
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 a

nd
 th

is
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

co
ul

d 
be

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ne

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 u

se
 te

ch
no

lo
gy

 in
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

w
ay

s 
to

 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 it

 c
om

m
is

si
on

s.
 

3.
1.

4 
U

n
d

er
st

an
d

in
g

 t
h

e 
su

p
p

ly
 m

ar
ke

t:
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

su
pp

ly
 m

ar
ke

t, 
so

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

its
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
of

 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t. 
 K

ey
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 h
av

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

re
di

t C
ru

nc
h 

G
ro

up
, a

nd
 th

e 
‘U

nl
oc

ki
ng

 th
e 

H
ea

th
ro

w
 S

up
pl

y 
C

ha
in

’ n
et

w
or

k.
  A

 
ke

y 
ex

am
pl

e 
of

 w
he

re
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 it
s 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 to
 fu

lly
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
its

 s
up

pl
y 

m
ar

ke
t i

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
W

es
t L

on
do

n 
A

lli
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 
is

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 d

om
ic

ili
ar

y 
ca

re
 a

cr
os

s 
its

 a
re

a.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

w
or

k 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 it

s 
su

pp
ly

 b
as

e 
fr

om
 a

n 
in

te
rn

al
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv

e.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 m
ak

in
g 

us
e 

of
 C

ap
ita

l A
m

bi
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 a
na

ly
se

 it
s 

in
te

rn
al

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

, i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 a
do

pt
 a

 m
or

e 
pr

o-
ac

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 it

s 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ac

tiv
ity

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is
 w

or
k,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

C
on

tr
ac

t r
eg

is
te

rs
 a

nd
 a

 C
on

tr
ac

t 
R

ev
ie

w
 B

oa
rd

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ith

 it
s 

di
re

ct
or

at
es

.  
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 it
s 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

pr
oc

ur
in

g 
lin

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r,
 

bu
t n

ot
 y

et
 o

n 
a 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 o

r 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 b

as
is

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 

12

Page 134



3.
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
W

e 
su

gg
es

t t
ha

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 e
xp

lo
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 a

 w
id

er
 r

an
ge

 o
f s

up
pl

ie
rs

, s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 w
ith

 
th

e 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r.

3.
1.

5 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 o

f 
p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s:

 T
he

 C
en

tr
al

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t T
ea

m
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
ed

 a
nd

 a
lig

ne
d 

to
 th

e 
si

x 
di

re
ct

or
at

es
, a

nd
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

. T
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

 p
os

t f
or

 tw
el

ve
 m

on
th

s,
 a

nd
 h

as
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
e 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
of

 th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
of

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 T

he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t D
ep

ar
tm

en
t h

as
 a

 h
ig

h 
pr

of
ile

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 r
eg

ul
ar

 o
ne

-t
o-

on
e 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
re

 h
el

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

up
pl

ie
rs

, i
nc

or
po

ra
tin

g 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 
en

tit
ie

s.
 A

ll 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

ar
e 

ad
ve

rt
is

ed
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

D
ue

 N
or

th
 p

or
ta

l, 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 a
w

ar
de

d 
in

 th
is

 w
ay

. 

C
on

tr
ac

t m
an

ag
em

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
ke

y 
ar

ea
 o

f f
oc

us
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il,

 a
nd

 a
s 

su
ch

 is
 b

ei
ng

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
B

ID
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 T

hi
s 

is
 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 a

 m
or

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t, 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
 r

ea
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 c

on
tr

ac
t m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
ith

 M
iti

e 
w

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or

m
in

g,
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 a

ct
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
its

 c
on

di
tio

ns
. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

w
ar

e 
th

at
 it

 n
ee

ds
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 it
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fu
rt

he
r 

to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

in
to

 it
s 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

ar
ea

 
th

at
 is

 a
lre

ad
y 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 a
ll 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
th

at
 a

re
 te

nd
er

ed
, b

ut
 h

as
 n

ot
 y

et
 b

ee
n 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
, a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
is

 is
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
on

 a
 c

oh
er

en
t a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t b
as

is
. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 it

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

w
id

er
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

 in
 a

ll 
of

 it
s 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t a

ct
iv

ity
, a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 c
on

si
st

en
t a

nd
 c

oh
er

en
t C

ou
nc

il 
w

id
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

.  
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y.

3.
1.

6 
R

ev
ie

w
in

g
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

o
m

p
et

it
iv

en
es

s 
an

d
 a

ch
ie

vi
n

g
 v

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
: 

T
he

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 is

 m
or

e 
cl

ea
rly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 
so

m
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s 
th

an
 o

th
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 A
 k

ey
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

of
 th

is
 in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 M

iti
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

in
 3

.1
.5

. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
its

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 it

s 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 e
xt

er
na

l n
et

w
or

ks
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

A
lli

an
ce

 a
nd

 th
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

rs
 G

ro
up

. T
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 is

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

ro
ug

h
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l a
nd

 d
om

ic
ili

ar
y 

ca
re

 p
ac

ka
ge

s,
 b

ut
 w

e 
fe

el
 th

at
 m

or
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 d
on

e 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
.  

A
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
on

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 s
ec

tio
n 

2.
2.

 

13

Page 135



3.
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

3.
2)

 
K

L
o

E
 2

.2
: 

U
se

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
he

 K
Lo

E
 s

ee
ks

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 “

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

pr
od

uc
es

 r
el

ev
an

t a
nd

 r
el

ia
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
m

an
ag

ed
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

”.
 T

hi
s 

K
Lo

E
 h

as
 fo

ur
 in

di
vi

du
al

 a
re

as
 o

f f
oc

us
: 

 R
el

ev
an

t a
nd

 r
el

ia
bl

e 
da

ta
; 

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s;

 
 D

at
a 

se
cu

rit
y;

 a
nd

 
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

w
e 

ha
ve

 a
ss

es
se

d 
th

is
 K

Lo
E

 a
s 

le
ve

l ‘
3’

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 fo

un
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
sp

on
de

d 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

nd
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

m
an

ne
r 

to
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
fr

om
 o

ur
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t f
or

 2
00

8/
09

, a
nd

 th
is

 h
as

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

sc
or

e 
fo

r 
th

is
 K

Lo
E

 to
 a

 ‘3
’. 

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s 

3.
2.

1 
R

el
ev

an
t 

an
d

 r
el

ia
b

le
 d

at
a:

 W
ith

in
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

K
Lo

E
, w

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f S
po

t C
he

ck
s 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
. W

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 fo

un
d 

fr
om

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
an

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 to

 b
rin

g 
to

 y
ou

r 
at

te
nt

io
n.

  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 s

te
ps

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
its

 d
at

a 
qu

al
ity

 in
 th

e 
pa

st
 1

2 
m

on
th

s.
 A

 D
at

a 
Q

ua
lit

y 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

a 
cl

ea
r 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
. D

at
a 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
, i

s 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
eg

ul
ar

 fo
ru

m
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 a

nd
 C

ab
in

et
. P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
r 

ch
am

pi
on

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 a

nd
 c

en
tr

al
 

su
pp

or
t i

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 d
ire

ct
or

at
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 T

ea
m

. 

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

r 
cl

in
ic

s 
ha

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s 
of

 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
,

fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 in
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 r
ec

yc
lin

g.
 T

he
re

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
be

en
 fu

rt
he

r 
co

-o
rd

in
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 T

ea
m

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 s
ha

rin
g 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 s

po
t c

he
ck

s.
 

14

Page 136



3.
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

ro
to

co
l i

n 
pl

ac
e,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 d
at

a 
qu

al
ity

 p
ro

to
co

l b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 it

 w
or

ks
 w

ith
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 fu
rt

he
r 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 C
o-

or
di

na
to

rs
 G

ro
up

, w
hi

ch
 is

 
ch

ai
re

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e.

 T
hi

s 
fo

ru
m

 a
llo

w
s 

di
sc

us
si

on
 o

f i
ss

ue
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
, a

nd
 s

ha
rin

g 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
w

he
re

 th
is

 is
 

id
en

tif
ie

d.

3.
2.

2 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e 

d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
: 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 (

“C
M

T
”)

, 
C

ab
in

et
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 C
om

m
itt

ee
s.

 T
he

se
 r

ep
or

ts
 id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
di

sc
us

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 v
ar

ia
nc

es
 in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 c

rit
ic

al
 is

su
es

. 
T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
es

e 
re

po
rt

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

na
ly

se
d 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
t a

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

so
 v

ar
ia

nc
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ac

tio
ns

 c
an

 b
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 m
or

e 
se

ni
or

 fo
ru

m
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 to

 r
at

io
na

lis
e 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ys

te
m

s 
th

at
 it

 u
se

s 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 d
at

a,
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

.

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ou
rc

es
 fr

om
 w

hi
ch

 it
 d

er
iv

es
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 it
s 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

. A
 k

ey
 

ex
am

pl
e 

of
 th

is
 is

 In
si

te
 7

, p
ur

ch
as

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (
“L

S
P

”)
, w

hi
ch

 a
llo

w
s 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 b
e 

an
al

ys
ed

 in
 

m
or

e 
de

ta
il 

th
an

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y.

 A
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 G

re
en

S
pa

ce
s 

an
d 

S
ch

oo
ls

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t. 

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
le

ar
 e

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

or
ki

ng
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 it

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 r
es

ol
ve

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

su
es

, r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

a 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ca
n 

al
so

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
ho

w
 it

 w
or

ks
 w

ith
 it

s 
in

te
rn

al
 s

ta
ff 

to
 ta

ke
 o

n 
bo

ar
d 

vi
ew

s 
ar

ou
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
on

ta
ct

 
C

en
tr

e.

3.
2.

3 
D

at
a 

se
cu

ri
ty

: 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 a

n 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

re
vi

ew
 o

f d
at

a 
se

cu
rit

y,
 a

nd
 a

 fo
llo

w
 u

p 
re

po
rt

 
as

se
ss

es
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
as

 m
ak

in
g 

‘g
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
’. 

 T
he

 B
us

in
es

s 
C

on
tin

ui
ty

 P
la

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 te

st
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
, a

nd
 

is
 b

ei
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 fu

rt
he

r 
fo

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 in
 th

e 
lig

ht
 o

f t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

C
iv

il 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
P

ol
ic

y.
 T

he
 p

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

te
st

ed
 a

ga
in

 
on

ce
 th

es
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 p

la
ns

, a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

th
at

 th
es

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
fu

lly
 te

st
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 tw

el
ve

 m
on

th
s.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f I
S

O
 2

70
01

 in
 

ob
ta

in
in

g 
its

 C
od

e 
of

 C
on

ne
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

its
 G

S
I n

et
w

or
k.

 

15

Page 137



3.
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

3.
2.

4 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
: 

T
he

re
 is

 c
le

ar
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s,

 a
nd

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
w

ith
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 R

ep
or

ts
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f d
at

a,
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 b
ot

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
sh

ar
ed

 p
rio

rit
ie

s.
 

B
et

w
ee

n 
fo

rm
al

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 h

ig
h-

le
ve

l f
or

um
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 C
M

T
, s

pe
ci

fic
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
re

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

at
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ta
l l

ev
el

, 
an

d 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
lin

ic
s 

th
at

 a
re

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

  

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
a 

su
ite

 o
f i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
th

at
 a

llo
w

 it
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

m
an

ag
e 

its
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 it

s 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 It

 h
as

 m
ad

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
 in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 it
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

W
es

t L
on

do
n 

A
lli

an
ce

, 
an

d 
al

so
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

o-
or

di
na

to
rs

 G
ro

up
, w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ha
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e.

 A
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n 
to

 
fu

rt
he

r 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 s
ec

tio
n 

2.
2.

 

3.
3)

 
K

L
o

E
 2

.3
: 

G
o

o
d

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 is
 s

ee
ki

ng
 to

 v
er

ify
 w

he
th

er
 “

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

pr
om

ot
es

 a
nd

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 v
al

ue
s 

of
 g

oo
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
”.

 T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 h
as

 fo
ur

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 P
rin

ci
pl

es
 o

f g
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

; 
 E

th
ic

al
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

cu
ltu

re
; 

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e;

 a
nd

 
 P

ur
po

se
 a

nd
 v

is
io

n.
  

O
ve

ra
ll,

 w
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

s 
a 

le
ve

l 3
 a

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
si

nc
e 

20
08

/0
9,

 s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 d
em

on
st

ra
tin

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 to
 M

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 e

na
bl

in
g 

M
em

be
rs

 to
 ta

ilo
r 

th
ei

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

. 

16

Page 138



3.
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s 

3.
3.

1 
P

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

o
f 

g
o

o
d

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

: 
T

he
 C

on
st

itu
tio

n 
cl

ea
rly

 o
ut

lin
es

 r
ol

es
 a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s;
 a

 S
ch

em
e 

of
 D

el
eg

at
io

n;
 a

nd
 C

od
es

 o
f 

C
on

du
ct

 fo
r 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 O
ffi

ce
rs

. H
ow

ev
er

, d
es

pi
te

 h
av

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 d
at

e 
sc

he
du

le
d 

of
 M

ay
 2

00
9,

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 th

e 
M

em
be

r/
O

ffi
ce

r 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 is

 n
ot

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

la
st

 r
ev

ie
w

 d
at

e 
be

in
g 

20
08

.

S
in

ce
 2

00
8/

09
, i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
M

em
be

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ith
 th

is
 n

ow
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
on

 li
ne

. S
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
al

so
 b

ee
n

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t t

o 
en

ab
le

 M
em

be
rs

 to
 ta

ilo
r 

th
ei

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

. T
he

se
 w

er
e 

do
ne

 la
te

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 s

o 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 h
av

e 
no

t y
et

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pi

le
d.

M
em

be
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 s

ta
tis

tic
s 

in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 th
e 

ta
ke

-u
p 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

y 
M

em
be

rs
 is

 v
ar

ia
bl

e,
 h

ow
ev

er
, w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 th

at
 M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
ro

le
s.

 M
em

be
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
llo

w
s 

M
em

be
rs

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fr

om
 b

ot
h 

in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l s
ou

rc
es

.
T

he
re

 is
 s

co
pe

 fo
r 

so
m

e 
M

em
be

rs
 to

 ta
ke

 fu
rt

he
r 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
ffe

re
d,

 fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e,

 th
ro

ug
h 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
P

er
so

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

T
oo

lk
it.

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
E

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
us

e 
by

 M
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
ir 

P
er

so
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
oo

lk
it 

is
 li

m
ite

d.
 In

 2
00

8/
09

 a
 q

ue
st

io
n 

on
 th

is
 w

as
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
‘A

nn
ua

l Q
ue

st
io

nn
ai

re
 fo

r 
al

l C
ou

nc
ill

or
s’

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

th
is

; h
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
qu

es
tio

n 
di

d 
no

t a
pp

ea
r 

in
 th

e 
20

09
/1

0 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
. W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

is
 q

ue
st

io
n 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

us
e 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

P
er

so
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
oo

lk
its

.

3.
3.

2 
E

th
ic

al
 f

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 a

n
d

 c
u

lt
u

re
: 

T
he

 r
ol

e 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 s

in
ce

 it
s 

in
ce

pt
io

n,
 a

nd
 fu

rt
he

r 
m

or
e 

so
 a

s 
a 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

vi
ew

. R
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 th
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

,
an

d 
no

 s
er

io
us

 is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
 T

he
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t C

ha
ir 

an
d 

M
em

be
rs

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 in
te

re
st

s.
 F

ur
th

er
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
n 

et
hi

cs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 a

ll 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 c
la

im
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 fo

r 
ex

pe
ns

es
. T

he
 e

th
ic

al
 a

ge
nd

a 
is

 d
is

se
m

in
at

ed
 a

nd
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

of
 s

ta
ff 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 O

ffi
ce

rs
. 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

ar
e 

cl
os

el
y 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
m

an
ag

ed
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 c

od
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s.

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
ar

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 s

ta
ff,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

W
hi

st
le

bl
ow

in
g 

P
ol

ic
y.

 T
he

 r
es

id
en

ts
’ s

ur
ve

y 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 a
 h

ig
h 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 th

in
k 

hi
gh

ly
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

17

Page 139



3.
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

3.
3.

3 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
: 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

a 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 d

at
ab

as
e 

(u
til

is
in

g 
C

IP
F

A
 g

ui
da

nc
e)

 a
nd

 s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 r
ol

es
 a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
fr

om
 e

ac
h 

pa
rt

ne
r 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

ta
ki

ng
 o

n 
a 

ne
w

 p
ar

tn
er

. 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
up

da
te

d 
its

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 r
eg

is
te

r 
in

 2
00

9/
10

.

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
ts

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 m

ad
e.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 o
n 

co
ur

se
 to

 c
la

im
 9

0%
 o

f t
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 L
A

A
 s

tr
et

ch
 r

ew
ar

d 
ta

rg
et

 
w

hi
ch

 e
qu

at
es

 to
 o

ve
r 

£7
 m

ill
io

n 
in

 r
ew

ar
d 

gr
an

t p
ai

d 
ov

er
 2

 y
ea

rs
. T

he
 L

A
A

 is
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

t o
f s

tr
on

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
ac

tio
n 

an
d 

th
is

 r
es

ul
t d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

su
cc

es
s 

in
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 k
ey

 p
rio

rit
y 

ou
tc

om
es

 fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
  T

hi
s 

re
tu

rn
 o

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t o
f b

ot
h 

re
w

ar
d 

gr
an

t a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 r

es
id

en
t o

ut
co

m
es

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 v

al
ue

 fo
r 

m
on

ey
 fo

r 
H

ill
in

gd
on

 P
ar

tn
er

s.
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

ed
 u

s 
w

ith
 o

ut
co

m
es

 d
em

on
st

ra
tin

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 fr

om
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
e.

g.
 H

ill
in

gd
on

 P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
T

ru
st

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

te
am

s 
in

to
 th

e 
C

iv
ic

 C
en

tr
e;

 B
lu

e 
S

ki
es

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
or

ke
rs

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
ou

t 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l w

or
k;

 a
nd

 th
e 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
Y

ou
th

 S
up

po
rt

 w
or

k.
 

3.
3.

4 
P

u
rp

o
se

 a
n

d
 v

is
io

n
: 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
vi

si
on

 is
 c

le
ar

ly
 o

ut
lin

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
07

/1
0 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
, a

nd
 th

is
 is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
H

ill
in

gd
on

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
ar

e 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

20
08

/1
1 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
LA

A
).

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f E

th
ic

al
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
cu

ltu
re

 w
as

 o
pe

n 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

t w
ith

 a
 s

tr
on

g
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
Le

ad
er

 a
nd

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

3.
4)

 
K

L
o

E
 2

.4
: 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
he

 fo
cu

s 
of

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 is

 a
ro

un
d 

ho
w

 d
oe

s 
th

e 
“o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

m
an

ag
e 

its
 r

is
ks

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

so
un

d 
sy

st
em

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
”.

 T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 h
as

 
th

re
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t; 
 C

ou
nt

er
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n;
 a

nd
 

 S
ys

te
m

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

w
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

s 
le

ve
l ‘

3’
 a

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r,
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
: h

ig
he

r 
up

ta
ke

 o
f M

em
be

r 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ra

in
in

g;
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

H
om

e 
O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

its
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
k;

 a
nd

 
th

e 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g 
of

 th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 ‘t
ip

pi
ng

 o
ff’

 in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

m
an

ag
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

. 

18

Page 140



3.
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s 

3.
4.

1 
R

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t:

 T
he

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
ou

tli
ne

s 
th

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

, e
m

ph
as

is
in

g 
th

at
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
th

e 
du

ty
 a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 o
f a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

M
em

be
rs

, w
ith

 s
om

e 
gr

ou
ps

 h
av

in
g 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
 

T
he

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

is
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 a
t b

ot
h 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

le
ve

ls
, a

nd
 a

t e
ac

h 
S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
 m

ee
tin

g.
 T

he
 r

is
k

re
gi

st
er

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

ris
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

pd
at

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
20

09
/1

0.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 n
ow

 1
4 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 th
at

 
ar

e 
ra

te
d 

as
 m

aj
or

 o
r 

hi
gh

ly
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t. 
F

ro
m

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ris
k 

re
gi

st
er

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
al

l o
f t

he
se

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
w

e 
ha

ve
 s

ee
n 

ex
am

pl
es

 o
f t

he
se

 fo
r 

ei
gh

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

 T
he

se
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
es

e 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 a

 m
et

ho
d 

of
 

m
ea

su
rin

g 
th

e 
su

cc
es

s 
of

 th
es

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
. 

S
in

ce
 2

00
8/

09
 a

ll 
M

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

ei
th

er
 ta

ke
n 

up
 th

e 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t t

ra
in

in
g 

or
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
m

ai
le

d 
th

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

al
so

 
be

en
 p

os
te

d 
on

to
 th

e 
M

em
be

r 
pa

ge
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

eb
si

te
 m

ak
in

g 
th

em
 m

or
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 to

 M
em

be
rs

. 

3.
4.

2 
C

o
u

n
te

r 
fr

au
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
: 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
C

ou
nt

er
 F

ra
ud

 a
nd

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
ed

 
to

 s
ta

ff.
 It

 is
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

od
es

 o
f C

on
du

ct
s 

an
d 

S
ta

nd
in

g 
O

rd
er

s.
 T

he
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 o

ve
rs

ee
n 

by
 th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 it

 is
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
gu

id
an

ce
. T

ra
in

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 h

as
 

be
en

 r
ol

le
d 

ou
t a

cr
os

s 
bo

th
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

M
em

be
rs

. T
he

 la
te

st
 fr

au
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 s

ta
tis

tic
s 

st
at

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 m

an
ag

er
s 

ha
d 

no
t a

tte
nd

ed
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r 
bu

t w
e 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
ev

id
en

ce
 s

ho
w

in
g 

th
at

 th
es

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pe
rs

on
al

ly
 c

on
ta

ct
ed

; w
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 

th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 m
at

er
ia

l i
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 th
e 

in
tr

an
et

; a
nd

 a
 n

ew
 e

-le
ar

ni
ng

 to
ol

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.

A
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pl

an
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
an

ti-
fr

au
d 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
hi

gh
 r

is
k 

ar
ea

s.
 R

es
ul

ts
 o

f a
ny

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

re
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. W
he

re
 fr

au
d 

is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
in

ve
st

ig
at

es
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
nd

 p
ro

se
cu

te
s 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. A
 p

ro
to

co
l i

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 

be
tw

ee
n 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
F

ra
ud

 te
am

, a
llo

w
in

g 
jo

in
t i

nv
es

tig
at

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
he

ld
, a

nd
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 s

ha
re

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ith
 p

ol
ic

e.
 T

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
T

ea
m

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l i

nv
es

tig
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 4
74

 in
di

vi
du

al
s

w
ith

dr
aw

in
g 

th
ei

r 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 r

eg
is

te
r.

 

S
in

ce
 th

e 
is

su
e 

th
at

 w
as

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 2

00
8/

09
 w

ith
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 ‘t
ip

pi
ng

 o
ff’

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

oi
nt

 a
bo

ut
 th

is
 is

su
e 

in
 th

e 
m

an
ag

er
 

fr
au

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 s

es
si

on
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
is

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 in

st
an

ce
s 

of
 ‘t

ip
pi

ng
 o

ff’
 in

 2
00

9/
10

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
co

un
te

r 
fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

oe
s 

no
t m

en
tio

n 
th

is
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

oi
nt

 a
nd

 it
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d 

si
nc

e 
20

08
. 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

:
T

he
 C

ou
nt

er
 F

ra
ud

 a
nd

 C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

pd
at

ed
 o

n 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
nt

ai
n 

a 
st

ro
ng

 m
es

sa
ge

 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 c
as

es
 o

f a
le

rt
in

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
be

in
g 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 (
“t

ip
pi

ng
 o

ff”
).

19

Page 141



3.
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

3.
3.

3 
S

ys
te

m
s 

o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l:

 T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 c

ha
ire

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 b

y 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

an
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 w

or
ks

 to
 

T
er

m
s 

of
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 th
at

 a
re

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 C

IP
F

A
 g

ui
da

nc
e.

 T
he

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
en

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ob
us

t c
ha

lle
ng

e 
to

 k
ey

 a
re

as
, f

or
ex

am
pl

e,
 a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

af
te

r 
th

e 
co

lla
ps

e 
of

 th
e 

Ic
el

an
di

c 
ba

nk
in

g 
sy

st
em

. 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

 A
ss

ur
an

ce
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 C
IP

F
A

/ S
oc

ie
ty

 o
f L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 (

“S
O

LA
C

E
”)

 g
ui

da
nc

e,
br

in
gi

ng
 to

ge
th

er
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 s
ou

rc
es

 fr
om

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 T
hi

s 
is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
di

re
ct

or
at

e 
w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l c

on
tr

ol
s 

an
nu

al
ly

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t 

T
he

 g
ra

nt
s 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
or

k 
th

at
 w

as
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

D
el

oi
tte

 fo
r 

th
e 

20
08

/0
9 

ye
ar

 e
nd

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ve

ry
 fe

w
 e

rr
or

s 
an

d,
 th

e 
on

e 
gr

an
t t

ha
t d

id
 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 w

as
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 a
n 

er
ro

r 
of

 le
ss

 th
an

 £
30

0 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 is

su
e.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

in
 it

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 g
ra

nt
s,

 r
eq

ue
st

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 u
s 

in
 a

dv
an

ce
 o

f i
t b

ec
om

in
g 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
no

rm
al

 ‘g
ui

da
nc

e’
 c

ha
nn

el
s.

 

20

Page 142



4.
M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
In

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 M

an
ag

in
g 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 th

e 
ke

y 
qu

es
tio

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

is
 h

ow
 w

el
l t

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

m
an

ag
es

 it
s 

na
tu

ra
l r

es
ou

rc
es

, p
hy

si
ca

l a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 v
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

.  
T

hi
s 

qu
es

tio
n 

is
 a

ns
w

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
re

e 
K

Lo
E

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
fu

rt
he

r 
br

ok
en

 d
ow

n 
in

to
 m

or
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

ar
ea

s,
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 s

ec
tio

ns
 4

.1
 to

 4
.3

 b
el

ow
.  

T
he

 s
co

re
s 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 K
Lo

E
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 th
em

e,
 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
fin

al
 s

co
re

 fo
r 

co
m

pa
ris

on
, a

re
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

.  
S

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
fo

r 
a 

fu
ll 

lis
tin

g 
of

 s
co

re
s.

  D
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 

sc
or

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

t A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

ar
ea

 
K

L
o

E
In

d
ic

at
iv

e
K

L
o

E
 s

co
re

 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e
T

h
em

e 
sc

o
re

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

K
L

o
E

 s
co

re
 

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

T
h

em
e 

sc
o

re

3.
1 

N
at

ur
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

2
2

3.
2 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

3
3

M
an

ag
in

g
re

so
ur

ce
s

3.
3 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

3

3

-

2

O
ve

ra
ll 

w
e 

ha
ve

 s
co

re
d 

th
is

 th
em

e 
at

 le
ve

l 3
.  

K
Lo

E
 3

.1
 N

at
ur

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
as

 n
ot

 a
ss

es
se

d 
in

 2
00

9/
10

.  
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
gu

id
an

ce
, t

he
 2

00
8/

09
 s

co
re

 fo
r 

th
is

 K
Lo

E
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ro
lle

d 
fo

rw
ar

d.
  K

Lo
E

 3
.3

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

as
se

ss
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e 
in

 2
00

9/
10

, a
nd

 
as

 s
uc

h 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
sc

or
e.

4.
1)

 
K

L
o

E
 3

.1
: 

N
at

u
ra

l r
es

o
u

rc
es

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 d

ire
ct

ed
 th

at
 th

is
 K

Lo
E

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 in

 2
00

9/
10

 fo
r 

si
ng

le
 ti

er
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
  A

s 
su

ch
, t

he
 p

rio
r 

ye
ar

 s
co

re
 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ol

le
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, a

nd
 n

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a.

21

Page 143



4.
 M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

4.
2)

 
K

L
o

E
 3

.2
: 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 is

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 w

he
th

er
 “

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

m
an

ag
es

 it
s 

as
se

ts
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 h
el

p 
de

liv
er

 it
s 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

ne
ed

s”
. T

hi
s 

K
Lo

E
 h

as
 th

re
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

pp
ro

ac
h;

 
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 w
or

ki
ng

; a
nd

 
 A

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

w
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

s 
le

ve
l 3

 a
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f 2

00
8/

09
 w

hi
ls

t d
em

on
st

ra
tin

g 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r 
ou

tc
om

es
.

A
re

as
 o

f 
fo

cu
s 

4.
2.

1 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

:
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ap

pl
ie

d 
its

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
. I

t a
ls

o 
ou

tli
ne

s 
ho

w
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 m

ov
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 fu
rt

he
r 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
A

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

G
ro

up
 o

ve
rs

ee
s 

al
l 

as
se

t r
el

at
ed

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 c
ro

ss
-C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
oa

ch
, a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 a
ll 

de
ci

si
on

s 
m

ad
e 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
nn

in
g.

  T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t o

ut
co

m
es

 in
 2

00
9/

10
 r

el
at

ed
 to

 c
ap

ita
l a

ss
et

s 
m

at
ch

in
g 

its
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 T
he

se
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 tw

o 
ne

w
 le

is
ur

e 
ce

nt
re

s,
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
a 

lo
ng

 r
un

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 r

es
id

en
t c

on
ce

rn
s 

ov
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
Li

br
ar

ie
s,

 u
si

ng
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 a
ss

is
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

 v
er

y 
hi

gh
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

ts
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

lib
ra

rie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
.

4.
2.

2 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

w
o

rk
in

g
: 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

, b
ot

h 
in

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
, c

or
po

ra
te

 a
nd

 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

rs
, a

nd
 th

is
 is

 a
t t

he
 le

ve
l a

bo
ve

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 b

y 
pr

oj
ec

t b
as

is
.  

F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

e 
lo

ca
l s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 h
as

 a
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

be
hi

nd
 it

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 w

ith
 ta

sk
s 

as
si

gn
ed

 to
 th

os
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

as
se

t r
el

at
ed

 is
su

es
.  

It 
is

 
th

is
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 n

ew
 y

ou
th

 c
en

tr
es

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

ce
nt

re
s.

 

22

Page 144



4.
 M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

4.
2.

3 
A

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t:

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 it
s 

de
ta

ile
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

f a
ll 

as
se

ts
, c

ha
lle

ng
in

g 
th

ei
r 

us
e 

an
d 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

.  
T

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

ha
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 le
d 

to
 £

2m
 o

f c
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

in
 2

00
9/

10
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 u

nd
er

ut
ili

se
d 

an
d 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

in
g 

as
se

ts
. A

fte
r 

an
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 
pr

oc
es

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
de

ci
de

d 
to

 d
is

po
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ss
et

s.
 M

an
y 

ot
he

r 
su

ch
 in

st
an

ce
s 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 b
ei

ng
 r

es
ol

ve
d,

 w
ith

 p
oo

re
r 

co
nd

iti
on

 
as

se
ts

 e
ith

er
 h

av
in

g 
de

ci
si

on
s 

to
 in

ve
st

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

em
 u

p 
to

 s
ta

nd
ar

d,
 o

r 
di

sp
os

e.
  H

ill
in

gd
on

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
s 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

bo
th

 C
IP

F
A

 a
nd

 A
C

E
S

.

4.
3)

 
K

L
o

E
 3

.3
: 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

O
ve

ra
ll 

su
m

m
ar

y 

T
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 is

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 w

he
th

er
 “

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

pl
an

s,
 o

rg
an

is
es

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

s 
its

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f i
ts

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

rio
rit

ie
s”

. T
hi

s 
K

Lo
E

 h
as

 fo
ur

 in
di

vi
du

al
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

: 

 P
ro

du
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

ed
 w

or
kf

or
ce

; 
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g;
 

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l c

ha
ng

e;
 a

nd
 

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 g

oo
d 

pe
op

le
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

w
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
is

 K
Lo

E
 a

s 
le

ve
l 3

.  
In

 th
is

 fi
rs

t y
ea

r 
of

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 th

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 K
Lo

E
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

ve
ry

 s
tr

on
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, e
xc

ee
di

ng
 m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

w
el

l.

A
re

a 
o

f 
fo

cu
s 

4.
3.

1 
P

ro
d

u
ct

iv
e 

an
d

 s
ki

lle
d

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e:

  P
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 s
ki

lls
 g

ap
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
A

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ki

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 o
pe

ra
te

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 s

ki
lle

d 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
s 

fr
om

 C
IP

F
A

 q
ua

lif
ie

d
ac

co
un

ta
nt

s 
to

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
ke

rs
. U

se
 o

f a
ge

nc
y 

w
or

ke
rs

 is
 fa

lli
ng

 a
s 

sk
ill

s 
ga

ps
 n

ar
ro

w
 a

nd
 r

ec
ru

itm
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 im

pr
ov

e.
  

T
he

re
 a

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 c

en
tr

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

pp
ra

is
al

 (
P

A
D

A
).

  T
he

re
 is

 a
 g

ol
de

n 
th

re
ad

 li
nk

in
g 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
to

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t f

or
 s

ta
ff.

  P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
at

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f 

em
pl

oy
in

g 
th

is
 s

ys
te

m
.

T
he

re
 a

re
 s

ys
te

m
s 

fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
m

an
ag

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f a
cc

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e.

  I
nn

ov
at

io
ns

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
ra

te
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e,
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

se
en

 r
at

es
 fa

ll 
fr

om
 1

3.
4 

da
ys

 p
er

 p
er

so
n 

pe
r 

an
nu

m
 in

 2
00

2/
03

 to
 8

.1
 d

ay
s 

pe
r 

pe
rs

on
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 in
 2

00
8/

09
.

23

Page 145



4.
 M

an
ag

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

4.
3.

2 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g
:

T
hi

s 
is

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

di
re

ct
ly

 ti
ed

 to
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
.  

In
 2

00
9/

10
 th

e 
B

ID
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 

la
un

ch
ed

 a
im

in
g 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 e

ve
n 

gr
ea

te
r 

sa
vi

ng
s 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

th
an

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 d

at
e.

  W
ith

in
 th

is
 is

 a
n 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l d
es

ig
n 

el
em

en
t r

e-
ad

dr
es

si
ng

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 p
eo

pl
e.

  

A
ge

nc
y 

st
af

f e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 is
 c

lo
se

ly
 m

on
ito

re
d.

  H
R

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

oc
ca

si
on

s 
w

he
re

 th
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
of

fe
re

d 
by

 u
si

ng
 a

ge
nc

y 
st

af
f i

s 
va

lu
ab

le
, h

ow
ev

er
 th

ey
 a

ls
o 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

at
 it

 is
 a

n 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 o

pt
io

n.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
pu

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
ag

en
cy

 c
os

ts
 –

 b
y 

ha
vi

ng
 o

ne
 k

ey
 a

ge
nc

y 
su

pp
lie

r 
at

 b
et

te
r 

ra
te

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
ls

o 
im

pr
ov

es
 r

ec
ru

itm
en

t l
ea

d 
tim

es
 –

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 

to
 s

av
e 

a 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

£7
00

,0
00

 in
 2

00
9/

10
 o

n 
20

08
/0

9 
ag

en
cy

 c
os

ts
.

A
 b

i-a
nn

ua
l s

ta
ff 

su
rv

ey
 is

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n,

 th
e 

m
os

t r
ec

en
t r

es
ul

ts
 o

f w
hi

ch
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

st
af

f v
ie

w
s 

on
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l a
sp

ec
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 e

qu
al

iti
es

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 

T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 E

qu
al

iti
es

 r
ep

or
t c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 w
hi

ch
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 H
ill

in
gd

on
 is

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
its

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ity

 p
ol

ic
y,

 a
nd

 fu
lfi

lli
ng

 it
s 

pl
ed

ge
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
th

e 
di

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

.

4.
3.

3 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

al
 c

h
an

g
e:

S
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
er

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 s

pe
ci

fic
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ov
er

in
g 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l C

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
C

ha
ng

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t.
U

si
ng

 th
e 

sk
ill

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 tr
ai

ni
ng

, t
he

y 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 s
ta

ff 
in

 a
 w

id
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f w
ay

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ch

an
ge

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
.  

T
he

se
 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

(“
te

am
 H

ill
in

gd
on

” 
st

af
f m

ag
az

in
e,

 in
tr

an
et

 e
tc

),
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

al
lo

w
in

g 
st

af
f t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 in
pu

t 
in

to
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
to

 a
sk

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 o

r 
w

ill
 b

e 
ha

pp
en

in
g.

 

4.
3.

4 
D

iv
er

si
ty

 a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
 p

eo
p

le
 m

an
ag

em
en

t:
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
ad

op
te

d 
th

e 
ne

w
 E

qu
al

iti
es

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t, 

ha
vi

ng
 

be
en

 p
ee

r 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

t l
ev

el
 3

 a
nd

 s
el

f a
ss

es
se

d 
at

 le
ve

l 4
 fo

r 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 E
qu

al
iti

es
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 r

an
ke

d 
as

 ‘M
ov

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 E
xc

el
le

nc
e’

.  
 

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

bu
ilt

 a
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 w
hi

ch
 is

 b
ro

ad
ly

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 in
 m

an
y 

w
ay

s,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 s

om
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

fo
cu

s 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 g

en
de

r 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
.

S
ta

ff 
vi

ew
s 

in
di

ca
te

 a
 g

oo
d 

le
ve

l o
f s

ta
ff 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n,

 a
nd

 r
et

en
tio

n 
le

ve
ls

 a
re

 v
er

y 
si

m
ila

r 
to

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ha
rt

er
ed

 In
st

itu
te

 o
f P

er
so

nn
el

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 R

et
en

tio
n 

in
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 w
ith

 s
ki

lls
 s

ho
rt

ag
es

 is
 a

id
ed

 b
y 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 p

er
io

d 
of

 fu
rt

he
r 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

ce
 c

om
pl

et
ed

.

24

Page 146



5.
R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

O
ur

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
ac

co
un

t o
f a

ss
oc

ia
te

d
gu

id
an

ce
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
.  

T
he

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 it

s 
of

fic
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
, t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
nd

 
ou

rs
el

ve
s 

as
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
ito

rs
 in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

“S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s”

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. 

T
he

 m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t a
re

 o
nl

y 
th

os
e 

th
at

 c
am

e 
to

 o
ur

 a
tte

nt
io

n 
du

rin
g 

ou
r 

au
di

t a
nd

 a
re

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 a

ll 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

at
 e

xi
st

 o
r 

of
 a

ll 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
  Y

ou
 s

ho
ul

d 
as

se
ss

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
ei

r 
fu

ll 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 b

ef
or

e 
th

ey
 a

re
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
  I

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

, w
e 

w
ou

ld
 e

m
ph

as
is

e 
th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
no

t r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 n

at
io

na
l u

se
 o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 d
er

iv
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
so

le
ly

 fo
r 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  N

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

ny
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 is
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

as
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 is

 
no

t i
nt

en
de

d 
fo

r 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

pu
rp

os
e.

 

It 
is

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
di

es
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

to
 a

rr
an

ge
 fo

r 
a 

sy
st

em
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
sy

st
em

s.
  A

ud
ito

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d,
 in

 d
oi

ng
 s

o,
 b

e 
al

er
t t

o 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f f

ra
ud

 
an

d 
irr

eg
ul

ar
iti

es
.  

O
ur

 fi
nd

in
gs

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 r

ev
ie

w
.  

W
e 

di
d 

no
t r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

 

F
or

 y
ou

r 
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e,
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
 in

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

fo
rm

at
. M

ul
tip

le
 c

op
ie

s 
an

d 
ve

rs
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t m

ay
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ex

is
t i

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 m

ed
ia

 -
 in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

ny
 d

is
cr

ep
an

cy
 th

e 
fin

al
 s

ig
ne

d 
ha

rd
 c

op
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ga
rd

ed
 a

s 
de

fin
iti

ve
. E

ar
lie

r 
ve

rs
io

ns
 

ar
e 

dr
af

ts
 fo

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

 a
nd

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ur

po
se

s 
on

ly
. 

D
el

o
it

te
 L

L
P

 

C
ha

rt
er

ed
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

ts
  

B
irm

in
gh

am

28
 J

un
e 

20
10

 

25

Page 147



A
pp

en
di

x 
1:

 In
te

ri
m

 s
co

re
s 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ss

es
se

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

sc
or

es
 a

t t
hi

s 
in

te
rim

 s
ta

ge
 o

f o
ur

 r
ev

ie
w

: 

O
ve

ra
ll 

ar
ea

 
K

L
o

E
20

09
/1

0
In

d
ic

at
iv

e
K

L
o

E
 s

co
re

 

20
09

/1
0

In
d

ic
at

iv
e

T
h

em
e 

sc
o

re

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

K
L

o
E

 s
co

re
 

20
08

/0
9 

fi
n

al
 

T
h

em
e 

sc
o

re

1.
1 

P
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 h

ea
lth

 
3

3

1.
2 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 

ef
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

3
2

M
an

ag
in

g
fin

an
ce

s

1.
3 

F
in

an
ci

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g*

 
3

3

3

3

2.
1 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

an
d 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t 

2
2

2.
2 

U
se

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

3
2

2.
3 

G
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
3

2

G
ov

er
ni

ng
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

2.
4 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

 
3

3

2

2

3.
1 

N
at

ur
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
* 

2
2

3.
2 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

3
3

M
an

ag
in

g
re

so
ur

ce
s

3.
3 

W
or

kf
or

ce
**

 
3

3

-

2

* 
T

hi
s 

K
Lo

E
 w

as
 n

ot
 a

ss
es

se
d 

in
 2

00
9/

10
.  

T
he

 2
00

8/
09

 fi
na

l s
co

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ro
lle

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

**
 T

hi
s 

K
Lo

E
 w

as
 a

ss
es

se
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e 
in

 2
00

9/
10

, s
o 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

sc
or

e.
 

26

Page 148



27

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2:

 U
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 2
00

9/
10

 s
co

ri
ng

 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 t

o
 2

00
9/

10
 s

co
ri

n
g

 

T
he

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t u

se
s 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 c
ur

re
nt

 fo
ur

-p
oi

nt
 s

ca
le

 fr
om

 1
 to

 4
, w

ith
 4

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t. 
T

he
 s

co
re

s 
aw

ar
de

d 
ha

ve
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

de
fin

iti
on

s:
 

Le
ve

l 2
 –

 m
ee

ts
 o

nl
y 

m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, p

er
fo

rm
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
; 

Le
ve

l 3
 –

 e
xc

ee
ds

 m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, p

er
fo

rm
s 

w
el

l; 
an

d 

Le
ve

l 4
 –

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 e
xc

ee
ds

 m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, p

er
fo

rm
s 

ex
ce

lle
nt

ly
. 

T
he

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

 o
ve

ra
ll 

U
oR

 s
co

re
 th

at
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

by
 c

al
cu

la
tin

g 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

ap
po

in
te

d 
au

di
to

r’s
 s

co
re

s 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 th
re

e 
th

em
es

 in
 th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k.

A
ud

ito
rs

 w
ill

 n
or

m
al

ly
 r

ea
ch

 th
ei

r 
sc

or
es

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 th
em

e 
by

 c
al

cu
la

tin
g 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
sc

or
es

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 K
Lo

E
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

th
em

e.
  T

he
 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
 to

 th
is

 r
el

at
e 

to
 th

em
es

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
ev

en
 n

um
be

r 
of

 K
Lo

E
s.

  I
n 

th
es

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ce
rt

ai
n 

K
Lo

E
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ro
un

di
ng

 o
f t

he
m

e 
sc

or
e 

av
er

ag
es

, a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

 F
or

 th
e 

G
ov

er
ni

ng
 th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

th
em

e,
 if

 th
e 

sc
or

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
fo

ur
 K

Lo
E

’s
 a

ve
ra

ge
 1

.5
, 2

.5
 o

r 
3.

5,
 th

en
 th

e 
sc

or
e 

fo
r 

K
Lo

E
 2

.2
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

us
e 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
ro

un
di

ng
 is

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
ne

xt
 w

ho
le

 n
um

be
r,

 o
r 

do
w

n.

F
or

 2
00

9/
10

, w
he

re
 a

 K
Lo

E
 is

 n
ot

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
fo

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t b
ut

 w
as

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t i
n 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r,
 th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 w

ill
 c

ar
ry

 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
sc

or
e 

w
ith

ou
t r

eq
ui

rin
g 

a 
re

as
se

ss
m

en
t f

or
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

w
o 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

to
 th

is
 is

 w
he

n 
th

e 
sc

or
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r 
is

 le
ve

l 1
; t

he
re

 w
er

e 
no

 s
co

re
s 

of
 le

ve
l 1

 fo
r 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
 in

 2
00

8/
09

. 

Page 149



D
el

oi
tte

 r
ef

er
s 

to
 o

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

of
 D

el
oi

tte
 T

ou
ch

e 
T

oh
m

at
su

 (
‘D

T
T

’),
 a

 S
w

is
s 

V
er

ei
n,

 a
nd

 it
s 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 e
ac

h 
of

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 le

ga
lly

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t e
nt

ity
. P

le
as

e 
se

e 
w

w
w

.d
el

oi
tte

.c
o.

uk
/a

bo
ut

 

fo
r 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
le

ga
l s

tr
uc

tu
re

 o
f D

T
T

 a
nd

 it
s 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s.
 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

 is
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 m

em
be

r 
fir

m
 o

f D
T

T
. 

T
hi

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 w

rit
te

n 
in

 g
en

er
al

 te
rm

s 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
re

lie
d 

on
 to

 c
ov

er
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

itu
at

io
ns

; a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 s
et

 o
ut

 w
ill

 d
ep

en
d 

up
on

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 a
nd

 w
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

 y
ou

 o
bt

ai
n 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 a
dv

ic
e 

be
fo

re
 a

ct
in

g 
or

 r
ef

ra
in

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 c
on

te
nt

s 
of

 th
is

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n.

 D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
pl

ea
se

d 
to

 a
dv

is
e 

re
ad

er
s 

on
 h

ow
 to

 a
pp

ly
 th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 s
et

 o
ut

 

in
 th

is
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
to

 th
ei

r 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

 a
cc

ep
ts

 n
o 

du
ty

 o
f c

ar
e 

or
 li

ab
ili

ty
 fo

r 
an

y 
lo

ss
 o

cc
as

io
ne

d 
to

 a
ny

 p
er

so
n 

ac
tin

g 
or

 r
ef

ra
in

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ct

io
n 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f a
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l i
n 

th
is

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n.

 

©
 2

01
0 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

D
el

oi
tte

 L
LP

 is
 a

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
 w

ith
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
nu

m
be

r 
O

C
30

36
75

 a
nd

 it
s 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

ffi
ce

 a
t 2

 N
ew

 S
tr

ee
t S

qu
ar

e,
 L

on
do

n 
E

C
4A

 3
B

Z
, U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. T

el
: +

44
 (

0)
 2

0 

79
36

 3
00

0 
F

ax
: +

44
 (

0)
 2

0 
75

83
 1

19
8.

 

M
em

b
er

 o
f 

D
el

o
it

te
 T

o
u

ch
e 

T
o

h
m

at
su

 

Page 150



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Head of Audit Annual Assurance Statement  
 

Contact Officer: Helen Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

 
 
REASONS FOR REPORT 
The Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government requires the 
Head of Audit to provide a written report to those charged with governance 
timed to support the Annual Governance Statement. It must 

• Include an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s control environment 

• Disclose any qualifications to that opinion 
• Present a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived 
• Draw attention to issues relevant to the Annual Governance Statement 
• Comment on compliance with standards and the results of the internal 

audit quality assurance programme 
 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
The Committee is requested to review the audit opinion and the evidence on 
which it is based. 
 
BACKING DOCUMENTS 
The code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United 
Kingdom 
Previous audit committee reports 
 
INFORMATION 
1. Opinion 
1.1.Based on the work undertaken during the year Internal Audit can provide 
satisfactory assurance that the systems of internal control within the Council 
were operating adequately and effectively. Overall there were nine limited 
assurance opinions, including four schools and four audits received No 
Assurance. 
 
2. System Weaknesses identified in year 
2.1. During the year four audits were issued with no assurance reports. The 
areas and the current status of the findings are detailed below.  
 
Hillingdon Grid for Learning, (HGfL) and HGfL Security – Problems were 
identified in this area in May 2009. The Directors of Education and Children’s 
Services and of Finance and Resources have ensured that the problems 
identified were dealt with at a high level. Issues in both reports have now been 
substantially resolved. 
 
The weaknesses were identified before the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS) for 2008-9 was signed and, consequently a control issue was added to 
the AGS. The resolution of this issue is also noted in the AGS for 2009-10. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 151



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

  
Northwood School – Issues identified at this school have been resolved in-
year. The school was federated with Queensmead and ECS have put 
considerable effort into resolving the issues. The school has also been subject 
to Financial Management in Schools Standards (FMSiS) review and has 
achieved the standard. We are satisfied that considerable progress has been 
made and the risk is now very low. The four outstanding recommendations 
are due to be completed by September 2010. 
 
Utilities Contracts, Water – This audit was one of the last to be completed 
in-year. There is no strategy in place to monitor or reduce usage. The issue 
will be addressed in 2010-11 and has been included as an issue in the AGS. 
 
3.Summary of Work 
3.1. An update and executive summary of the 2009-10 audits completed since 
March 2010 is included at Appendix 1.  The overall position of the annual 
audit plan is in Appendix 2. The latest position on outstanding issues from the 
2008-9 and 2007-8 plans is in Appendices 3 and 4.  
 
3.2. The original plan for 2009-10 included 122 audits where there was an 
expected opinion or compliance view. The audit committee have been 
informed of any deletions from the original plan and the reasons for removal.  
At the same time, contingency items have been added as the need arose. As 
a result the overall total number of audits in the plan was 118. 
 
4. Comparison of actual and planned work 
4.1. Staffing was affected by the resignation of two members of staff in-year. 
Recruitment lag and other changes amounted to approximately 90 days of full 
time equivalent lost time. 
 
4.2.The resultant total of planned audits in year was 118.  The number of 
planned and completed audits at year-end was 99 with 11 draft and 8 work in 
progress. A breakdown of the changes, by directorate, is given in table 1 
below. To avoid confusion and provide consistency, the figures in each 
directorate reflect the audits that were planned in that area for 2009-10. 
Where a team moved between directorates in year it has not been moved for 
the purposes of these figures.  
 
Table 1 
Area Planned Deleted Added Total Finalised Draft WIP Total 
Council-wide 9 0 0 9 8 1 0 9 
DCE/F&R 28 10 2 20 16 4 0 20 
ECP 9 1 0 8 7 1 0 8 
PCS 7 2 0 5 5 0 0 5 
ASCHH 14 3 2 13 8 3 2 13 
ECS non 
school 13 4 0 9 7 1 1 9 
ECS school 29 2 1 28 28 0 0 28 
IT 13 3 1 11 7 3 1 11 

Page 152



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Area Planned Deleted Added Total Finalised Draft WIP Total 
Anti fraud 
probity 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 1 
Investigations     14 14 12 0 2 14 
Totals 122 25 21 118 99 13 6 118 

 
 
4.3. A comparison with previous years’ performance is included in the tables 
below. The tables show comparisons with the adjusted plan in all years. There 
has been a steady overall improvement in the output of the team. 
  
Table 2 - Adjusted plan - Fully completed audits 
Adjusted Plan Percentage of plan 
 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 
Planned and complete 84 83 73 
Planned and Work In Progress at year-end 16 17 27 
Planned and not complete 0 0 0 

Total 100 100 100 
  
Table 3 – Adjusted plan - Fully completed or draft issued 

Work Planned  Percentage of plan 

 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 
Planned and complete or draft issued 95 92 86 
Planned and Work In Progress at year-end 5 8 14 
Planned and not complete 0 0 0 

Total 100 100 100 
 
4.4. Every three years school have to have a certificate stating that they meet 
the Financial Management in Schools Standard (FMSiS) set by the DCFS – 
now the Department for Education (DfE). Hillingdon schools may be assessed 
by a recognised external assessor or by the Internal Audit team.  This year 23 
of the 27 schools requiring certification requested an assessment from 
Internal Audit. All were assessed as having met the FMSiS standard, as did 
the four that were externally assessed. 
 
4.5. Fourteen investigations were carried out into fraud or irregularities and 
these have been reported to the committee in updates throughout the year. 
Largely they have fallen into four categories: 

• No issue at the conclusion of the investigation. 
• Issues to be addressed by management action 
• Disciplinary issues 
• Prosecutions 

 
4.6. During the year one prosecution case started in 2008-9 reached court 
and the staff member was convicted. One case started in 2009-10 reached 
court in May 2010 and again there was a successful conviction. 
 

Page 153



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

4.7.  Anti Fraud work was slightly higher than the budgeted 160 days for the 
year at 171 days.  Most of this was accounted for in the investigations, which 
took 71 days, compared to the 60 budget. Two large investigations account 
for most of the days, both of which are ongoing. 
 
4.8. Other work in support of the assurance statement included: 

• Gathering and collating  information that LB Hillingdon is required to 
provide under the Taxes Management Act as part of an anti-fraud 
measures; 

• Co-ordinating the National Fraud Initiative exercise and reporting 
savings to the Audit Commission;   

• Maintaining the Fraud Hotline and email boxes and organising 
appropriate advertising; 

• Contribution to the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) management 
group, to review evidence for the AGS. 

• Auditing the manager assurance statements and evidence provided to 
support them for the AGS for 2009-10; 

• Providing advice and guidance or a wide range of issues to 
Directorates 

• A review of the audit reports produced by the internal auditors of 
Hillingdon Homes 

• Delivering Fraud Awareness workshops to managers and setting up an 
e-learning fraud awareness module for staff. 

 
5. Issues Relevant to Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
5.1. The following issues require inclusion as control issues in the Annual 
governance statement.   

• Water Utilities - strategy needs to be put in place.   
• Continue to provide financial support to schools to ensure that they 

achieve FMSiS standards.  
 

 
6. Performance against targets set 
6.1. At the beginning of the year the target was set to deliver 90% of the audit 
plan to completion stage. 
 
6.2. Staffing in Internal Audit was affected by vacancies in year. Two 
members of staff left in-year, one in July and one in August 2009. They were 
replaced by graduate trainees but they did not start until December 2009 and 
January 2010 
 
6.3. Ninety nine audits have been finalised. This represented 84% of planned 
audits.  However, more audits were completed to draft stage and taking this 
into account 95% of the plan has been completed.  Taking into account 
adjustments notified to the audit committee, all planned audits were at least 
work-in-progress at the year-end. It is anticipated that the remaining audits will 
be completed shortly.   
 

Page 154



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

6.4. Table 2 above gives a year on year comparison of this year’s outturn with 
the last two for actual completions and Table 3 provides a comparison for 
audits completed to draft stage. 
 
6.5. Table 4 summarises the performance on other internal audit targets. The 
most significant change in performance is the number of audits issued within 
15 days of the conclusion of the audit. This is a direct result of the Audit 
Manager vacancy because supervision and quality control was shared 
between the Head of Audit and the other Audit Manager. The response rate to 
client questionnaires has declined markedly and this will be addressed going 
forward. However, the level of satisfaction from those responding has slightly 
improved.  The number of final audit reports issued within 5 working days of 
the receipt of the management response increased by 7 % and was within the 
target set. 
 
 
Table 4 
Other Targets Target 20009-10 2008-9 2007-8 

performance 
% of audit issued 
within 15 days of audit 
conclusion. 

90 90 79 85 

% of final reports 
issued within 5 days 
of receipt of 
management 
response 

85 96 94 87 

% of client satisfaction 
surveys returned 

80 23 18 55 

% with good or very 
good rating 

90 74 93 77 

% when non returns 
assumed to be good 

90 94 n/a n/a 

% of 
recommendations 
agreed by 
management 

95 99 98 97 

 
7. Compliance with Standards 
7.1. There is an annual requirement to carry out a review of the system of 
internal audit. For the last three years this has been carried out by  

• A self assessment  
• A self assessment reviewed by a member of the audit committee 
• A peer review by another Head of Audit. 

Following discussions with the Chairman of the audit committee it was felt that 
a self assessment would be appropriate this year. This has been carried out 
and is being presented to the committee as a separate paper. Overall we are 
compliant with the standards. Issues have been reflected in an improvement 
plan. 

Page 155



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 

Page 156



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Audits Finalised since March 2010 
Summary of Audit Outcomes 

. 
Utilities Water  
Assurance level: No Assurance  
 
To improve the control environment an action plan with timescales which is 
more specific to water needs to be produced taking into account the following:  

• water saving solutions within the council and borough; 
• implementation of Automatic Meter Reader technology ; 
• replace inefficient technology and implement new water efficient 

solutions.  Methods are suggested in the Construction Industry 
Research and Information Association (CIRIA) document. This is a 
document which outlines how to reduce water usage within office 
environments and contains simple to follow benchmarking techniques.  

 
Management Response - Property accepts the issues raised in the report 
and is in the process of preparing an action plan. 
 
 
IT Disaster Recovery 
Assurance level: Limited 
 
We were pleased to note that the council has the following controls in place to 
manage an IT Disaster: 

• The network has been designed and configured with multiple resilient 
components; 

• Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) units are in place, designed to 
protect all network and server equipment with a capacity of up to 5 
hours;  

• All systems are backed up on a daily basis to a Storage Area Network 
(SAN) and also to backup tapes; key systems are also backed up to a 
secondary SAN at Breakspear.  This ensures in the event of a disaster 
event, minimal data is lost and primary data can be recovered.  

Below are the areas where the control framework should be improved:   

• There is no IT Disaster Recovery Plan in place;  

• The number of Priority 1 systems need to be reduced and order of 
restoration of these services identified and recorded; 

• Adequate training needs to be provided to Operational IT staff to deal 
with a potential IT disaster.   

 

Management Response - It has not been possible to determine what 
the expectations of the entire authority are.  We are aware of individual 
requirements but must rely upon the Council's Business Continuity 

Page 157



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Planning (BCP) team to advise on priorities etc for an effective and 
holistic ICT DR Plan.  Now that the BCP team are back to operational 
staffing levels they have re-engaged with Corporate ICT and we will be 
implementing a DR plan based upon the specifications supplied to us. 

  

Major Construction Contract – Current 
Assurance level: Limited 
 
The following areas were reviewed and found to be operating satisfactorily: 
 

• there are controls in place to ensure that payments are not duplicated 
but made only for completed jobs; 

• an up to date record is maintained by the MCP Accountant of 
payments to contractors;  

The areas requiring improvement were:  

• approval and reporting on variations; 
• no documented Contract Variation procedure and process map  
• no minutes are taken at the monthly Cost and Financial meetings; . 
• the authority given to the Head of MCP for variation needs to be more 

specific and restricted; 

Management Response: The service is in the process of 
implementing the recommendations and has already addressed the 
issue of contract variations. Other issues are currently being 
progressed. 

 
Domestic Waste – Civic Amenity Sites (Domestic Waste Collection and 
Disposal) 
Assurance level: Limited 
 
We were pleased to note that:  

� There was adequate physical control to restrict access to the domestic 
landfill waste area unless using a HillingdonFirst Card or paying the 
£10 fee. 

 � There was appropriate signage which confirms that a £10 charge is 
payable by non-Hillingdon Council residents wishing to access the 
domestic landfill waste area. 

� Staffing numbers at the site were adequate for the efficient and 
effective operation of the site. 

� Income is banked regularly and Cash and Deposit Summaries are 
completed and provided to Corporate Accountancy for their control. 

The key areas of concern resulting from the audit were: 

� Written processes, procedures and instructions for staff were lacking. 

Page 158



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 � Income from the cash operated barrier was not reconciled to the barrier 
“Z” rolls total. 

� Receipt number references issued by the cash operated barrier are not 
recorded on bank paying-in slips in support of cash being banked. 

�  Security of cash held in the office awaiting banking is limited as there is 
no safe. 

� The legal requirement that the site supervisor should undertake and 
keep up to date necessary training certificates is not being met. 

�  Staff may not have received the necessary refresher training. 
• A formal Site health and safety risk assessment has not been performed 

for over ten years. 
 

Management Response: Waste Services Management accepts the issues 
raised in the Internal Audit report and agree the recommendations as 
indicated. There is likely to be a  delay in the implementation of some of the 
recommendations due to the  future  plans for the  improvement and 
upgrading of the New Years Green Civic Amenity Site  at Harefield. 
 
 
Budgetary Control 2009 - 2010 (ECS and ECP) 
Assurance level: Satisfactory 

 
We were pleased to note that:  

• Extensive corporate budgetary control general reference information 
existed on Horizon which is easily accessible by staff. These were 
supplemented by local enhancements in some instances. 

• There was compliance by budget managers with the corporate budget 
monitoring key requirements and expectations in the majority of cases. 
Appropriate and valued support is given by designated accountants. 

• Adequate information was available to budget holders to highlight 
budget variances promptly and appropriate reporting is made. 

• Virements were correctly authorised. 
 

The key areas of concern resulting from the audit were: 
  

• Some budgetary control information held on Horizon may need to be 
reviewed and updated. 

• Pro-active action was found lacking in relation to overspending by the 
Music Service in ECS. 

• Not all Heads of Service meet on a monthly basis with their Finance 
Team to discuss issues 

 
 
Land Charges  
Assurance level: Satisfactory 

Page 159



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 
We were pleased to note: 

• Controls were found to be satisfactory in relation to local land searches 
and maintenance of the register. 

• Security to protect both the electronic and manual registers was found 
to be adequate.  

The areas for improvement resulting from the audit were:  

• Fees on the Council website were incorrect  
• Although income was being collected and banked promptly, there was 

no reconciliation between Oracle and the Ocella system to detect any 
discrepancies 

 
Purchase Card Audit 
Assurance level: Satisfactory 

 
We were pleased to note:  
 

• Controls over issuing Purchase Cards were satisfactory 

• All cardholders had signed the Agreement for Purchasing Cardholders 
that cover the terms and conditions of use before being given the card 

• Reconciliations and authorisation of purchases and cash withdrawals 
were being carried out and the e-Procurement Team were adequately 
monitoring use of cards. 

• Security of cards was also found to be adequate and when a card was 
reported lost or stolen, it was immediately reported to the Royal Bank 
of Scotland 

 

Utilities Gas and Electricity  
Assurance level: Satisfactory 
 
We are pleased to note: 
 

• There is a comprehensive draft Energy and Sustainability Policy in 
place. 

• To achieve value for money the council, following an approved tender 
process, awarded a contract for electricity and gas to LASER in 2009. 

• TEAM, a validation bureau, were awarded a contract in November 
2009 to help ensure that the council pays only for electricity and gas 
used and to provide continuous data on usage information. 

The areas which can be improved are:  

• including a timescale and financial resources requirements on the 
action plan;  

Page 160



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

• making the policy accessible to all staff on Horizon. 
 

 
Asylum Accommodation  
Assurance level: Satisfactory 

 
We are pleased to note: 

 
• References had been obtained for all landlords. 

• Inspections had been carried out by the Council to ensure compliance 
with Health & Safety. 

• Copies of signed Service Level Agreements with landlords were found 
to be on file.  

• All clients had received 2 offers of accommodation and had been set 
up on the Asylum Management (AM) system. 

• Client User Agreements had been signed by clients and copies 
retained on file. 

• All terminations had closure forms completed and a letter had been 
sent notifying the landlord. 

• All income was accounted for and promptly banked. 

 

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• Delays in sending letters to clients when payments of rent have 
ceased. 

• Gas/electricity certificates were past their renewal date. 
• The arrangements for transporting cash to the Civic Centre need to be 

reviewed. 
• The safe’s insurance limit is not always adequate for the amount of 

cash held. 
 

 
Performance Management 
Assurance level: Satisfactory 
 
We were pleased to note: 
 

• There is an adequate performance management framework in place 
that is linked to the council and community priorities. 

• Roles and responsibilities of performance management were clearly 
defined at both a corporate level and within the respective directorates. 

• There is evidence that the performance indicators are monitored on a 
quarterly basis. 

The areas for improvement resulting from the audit were:  

Page 161



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

•  Procedures for collecting, processing and reporting data within 
respective services should be documented; 

• The data quality policy needs to be reviewed and expanded to include 
partnerships and their roles, responsibilities, good practices, controls 
and risks 

• Service planning and PI data should be merged into one system to 
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the performance 
management system; 

• The Corporate Performance Team should increase the awareness at 
service level of various tools that would enable services to demonstrate 
value for money. 

 
 
Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) 
Assurance level: Satisfactory 

 
We were pleased to note:  

 
Generally, the control environment was satisfactory and this was 
demonstrated by compliance to the document “Structure, Procedure and 
Working Protocols for the LSP” (“the Protocol”) in relation to: 

• Preparation and implementation of a Stainable Community Strategy 
(SCS) 

● Development, negotiation and delivery of  a Local Area Agreement 
● Partnership working to meet local needs and priorities and strategic 

aims and targets set out in the SCS 
● Promotion of citizenship and democratic engagement 
● Setting of the strategic direction/vision of the LSP 
● Setting of the priorities for the development and implementation of the 

SCS 
● Monitoring of overall achievements of the SCS 
● Promoting and communicating the LSP 
● Sharing the lessons and information from the thematic partnerships 
● Additionally, we are of the opinion that the LSP provides value for 

money 
 
The areas of concern resulting from the audit were: 
 

● The membership of Hillingdon Partners Executive recorded on the 
 Significant Partnerships Database was out of date. 

● The Partnership Performance Management Framework and Toolkit 
 (“the Toolkit”) had not been reviewed since the last refresh, and the 
 Protocol had not been reviewed since it was first introduced. 

● The Protocol document on Horizon was not the current version. 
 

Page 162



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 
Major Planning Applications 2009 – 2010 
Assurance level: Satisfactory 
 

We were pleased to note:  

• Easily accessible process, procedural and strategy information held on 
the Council Intranet/Website. 

• Compliance with established processes and procedures. 
• Charges were made and income was received and banked. 
• Sufficient and appropriate staffing with clearly defined roles and 

responsibilities. 
• Adequate performance management. 

 
The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• Adequacy and review of process and procedural information. 

• No supporting evidence of the Planning Application Fee calculation and 
 no evidence of any associated internal checking. 

• OCELLA Computer System user passwords are not required to  be 
 changed when first issued, manual locking of personal computer 
 screens by users is not applied and user access rights recorded by the 
 OCELLA Computer System do not reflect what users can do in 
 practice. 

• Income reconciliations between the OCELLA and ORACLE computer 
 systems not carried out. 

 
 
 
Axxia System – Legal Services 09/10  
Assurance level: Satisfactory  
 
The following processes were in place: 

• detailed management information was available to enable Legal 
Services management to establish resources being used and stages of 
cases. 

• the case management feature of the Axxia system has been effectively 
exploited to reduce administration workloads and create a history log of 
a case’s progression. 

• the System Administrators oversee the system’s usage and are in 
control of managing entries on Axxia made by Lawyers. They are 
readily available at all time to make amendments and respond to client 
enquiries. 

Page 163



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

• all new staff who joined Legal Services received training on the Axxia 
system and then support was available on an ongoing basis from the 
System Administrators.  
 

The control environment needs to be improved in the following areas:  

• formalising written procedures for  the use of the Axxia system. 

• complete and timely recording of case notes and details of time spent  
on cases therefore impacting on the integrity of the data. 

• password protected access to the Axxia system. 

 
Carefirst Creditors 
Assurance level: Satisfactory  

 
The following areas were reviewed and found to be operating satisfactorily. 

• Satisfactory documented procedures and process maps 

• Access to the carefirst system is restricted by ID & password and has a 
good inbuilt audit trail. 

• Satisfactory segregation of duties in place 

• There are satisfactory controls in place to ensure that invoices are 
accurate and correctly paid. 

• There is adequate documentary evidence to support transactions.  

 

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• Arrangements for delegations during staff absence were not clear. 
 
It should be noted by the audit committee that the CareFirst system was 
permanently closed on 31st March 2010 when its successor Integrated 
Adults System (IAS) became live.  The area of concern raised has been 
addressed by the IAS system. 

 

Breakspear Crematorium 
Assurance Level: Satisfactory 

 

We were pleased to note: 

 

• The system in place to record bookings and receive payments was 
efficient and effective. 

• All income and expenditure was properly accounted for and adequately 
controlled. 

• The crematorium is secure, using gates, alarms and CCTV.  

Page 164



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

• We are pleased to report that the crematorium complies with 
environmental legislation and is achieving above the required 
standards in regard to emission levels. 

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• Policies and procedures were not up to date. 
• Copies of staff’s required qualifications were not held on file. 
• An up to date inventory was not available. 
• The Council’s Standing Order Policy was not followed correctly in 

respect of obtaining 2 written quotes for orders between £3,000 and 
£10,000. 

 
 
Hillingdon First Card 
Assurance level: Satisfactory 

 
We were pleased to note:  
 

• The controls around preventing duplicate cards being sent out to 
residents were all in place. 

• The HillingdonFirst Card is being fully utilised and costs are being 
monitored against budget and reported to the HIP Steering Group. 

 

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• Applicants eligibility for a Hillingdon First Card is not verified  
• There is no statement informing applicants that the data they supply 

may be used for the prevention and detection of fraud. 
• Cards are not cancelled promptly when residents notify us when they 

are leaving borough 
• 2nd Replacement cards are not being charged for. 

 
 
Home Care in House Provision 
Assurance Level: Satisfactory 
 
We were pleased to note: 
 

• Policies and procedures were available to all staff and carers receive a 
handbook which includes the standards to be expected and a code of 
practice. 

• Carers were provided with weekly rotas and visits are monitored using 
the Ezi Tracker system.  

Page 165



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

• All fees to be charged for 2009/10 were set and approved by Cabinet in 
February 2009 and all users were invoiced correctly. 

• Staff had up to date CRB checks and had received mandatory training. 

 

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• There is no formal Domiciliary Care Strategy in place. 

• Assessments were not always carried out within 28 days of receiving 
the referrals. 

• The Substantive Team are not always recording the Annual Review 
dates on the Protocol system. 

• When data was transferred from CareFirst to Protocol some dates 
changed to a default date and are therefore not providing an accurate 
record. 

 

 

Debt Recovery Processes  
Assurance level: Satisfactory 
 

It is pleasing to report that: 

• The Debtors area has been given priority by the BID Finance Project 
 Team and the review is in progress. 

• The controls over use of external solicitors are in place 

• The Council Tax debts referred to external solicitors for legal action 
 have achieved satisfactory outcome. 

 

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were: 

• The decision to move to in-house Legal services was not accompanied 
 by a revision in protocols. Consequently there is a lack of clarity 
 regarding the roles and responsibilities of each party within the debt 
 recovery processes, which has led to misunderstandings. 

• Terms and conditions of agreements, with the firms of external 
 solicitors used by Council Tax, were not formalised. 

• Insufficient easily accessible information about the true cost of 
 recovering debt, which makes evaluation of value for money difficult. 

• Lack of proper liaison between Sundry Debtors team and client 
 departments to monitor and identify bad debts for write off at the 
 earliest opportunity, because it is uneconomic to collect them. 

 

Page 166



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 
 
 
Parking Management Schemes 
Assurance level: Full 

 
We were pleased to note:  
 

• In each Parking Management Scheme, full consultation with residents 
was carried out and all feedback was recorded on the individual 
Parking Management Scheme file. 

• The design, publication and implementation of schemes complied with 
legislative requirements.  

• Reviews were carried out to ensure the schemes were achieving their 
objectives. 

 

No major control weaknesses were noted. A minor improvement was 
suggested. 

 

Building Control 
Assurance Level: Full  

 
We are pleased to note: 

• Policies and procedures have incorporated the legislation set out  in 
 the Building Act 1984 and Building Regulations 2000. All  Building 
 Notices’ and Full Plans’ applications were on official forms,  had been 
 registered promptly and had the correct fee paid. 

• All reports of Dangerous Structures had been visited by a Building 
 Control Officer within 2 hours and the necessary action taken. 

• Building Control are accredited for ISO9000 and the audit last year 
 confirmed that quality assurance standards were being met. 

  

The areas of concern resulting from the audit were:  

• Not all inspection reports were authorised by a Principal Building 
Control Officer or the Building Control Manager. 

• The use of the electronic signature is not restricted to those officers 
unable to authorise inspection reports. 

 

Asylum Finance 
Assurance Level: Full 
 
We are pleased to note: 

Page 167



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

•  UKBA procedures for claiming grant money are held by the 
AsylumInformation Officer and the Principal Accountant. Procedures 
also exist for the Information Officer’s responsibilities. 

• The Asylum and Finance Teams follow the guidance and deadlines 
provided by UKBA. 

• Monthly meetings are held between the Asylum and Central Finance 
Teams to discuss the claims made and any issues arising. 

• Any queries from UKBA are dealt with on a timely basis. 

 

The only area of concern resulting from the audit was:  

• Only the Information Officer and Principal Accountant currently have 
 the required skills and knowledge to carry out their necessary tasks. 

 
Lottery Funding Accounting Arrangements 
Assurance Level: Full 
 
We are pleased to report that no issues or concerns resulted from our review 
and we are satisfied that financial transactions are properly authorised, coded 
to the correct cost centre, account and respective job codes, and that the 
claims have been authorised.  
 
 
Schools’ Audits 
 
The table below summarises the school audits finalised in the period. 
 

2009-10 Assurance Level 
Schools - Primary  
Hillingdon  Satisfactory 
Schools - Secondary  
Uxbridge High Satisfactory 
Vyners Satisfactory 
Ruislip High Satisfactory 

 
Follow Up Audits 
 
We continue to make progress in following up and clearing action points from 
previous audits. Audits recently followed up showed that implementation rates 
had significantly increased to 82%. Details are given in the table below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 168



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 
Audits Followed up in the Period 

AUDIT TITLE 

D
A
T
E
 IS

S
U
E
D
 

H
IG
H
 

M
E
D
IU
M
 

L
O
W
 

  IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 -
 H
IG
H
 

IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 

-
M
E
D
IU
M
 

IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 -
 L
O
W
 

  N
O
T
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 
- 

H
IG
H
 

N
O
T
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 
- 

M
E
D
IU
M
 

N
O
T
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 
- 

L
O
W
 

London Tender Portal  (Due 
North) Oct-09 2 4    2 3     1  
Student Awards Jan-10 1 2 1   1 2 1      
Ombudsman Complaints Jan-10  1 1    1 1      
Adult Eduaction Jul-09 5 6 10   5 6 10      

Overtime Payments Feb-
10 1 3    1 3       

Member Services Jun-09 1 2 1   1 2 1      
General Ledger Jun-09  2 1    1     1 1 
Parking Services Apr-07  1     1       
Community Safety Oct-09  1     1       
Commercial Properties Sep-

08 
  

2 
          

2 
 

Pension Administration May-
09  

 
1     

 
   

   
1 

 

Hillingdon Grid for Learning Dec-
09 4 

 
4 0   4 

 
2 0   

  
2 

 

Supporting People Grant Jun-09  1 2   0 1 2      
Domestic Refuse & Waste 
Disposal Jul-08 2 

 
2 2   2 

 
2 2   

   

Music Service Nov-
09 1 

 
1   1 

 
1   

   

Network Security Oct-08  2     1     1  
3rd party Service 
Management Jan-09  

 
1 4    

 
1 4   

   

Northgate Revenue & 
Benefit review 

Mar-
09  

1 
2    

  
2   

  
1 

 

Oracle  Upgrade Jan-09  3 1    3 1      
Web Security Nov-

09  
 
3 2    

 
1 2   

 
2 

  

Email Security & 
Management Jan-09  

 
3 2    

 
   

  
3 

 
2 

Private Sector Leasing May-
08 1 

 
1 1    

 
   

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

Exor Oct-08  1     1       
Use of Shared Oyster 
Cards 

Sep-
09 5 

 
2     

 
   

 
5 

 
2 

 

Hillingdon Grid for Learning 
Security 

Dec-
09 4 

 
8 1   4 

 
8 1   

   

Council Tax Nov-
08  

1 
    

1 
   

   

Payroll Aug-
09 2 

 
   1 

 
   

 
1 

  

Ocella Apr-09  6     2     4  

Page 169



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

AUDIT TITLE 

D
A
T
E
 IS

S
U
E
D
 

H
IG
H
 

M
E
D
IU
M
 

L
O
W
 

  IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 -
 H
IG
H
 

IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 

-
M
E
D
IU
M
 

IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 -
 L
O
W
 

  N
O
T
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 
- 

H
IG
H
 

N
O
T
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 
- 

M
E
D
IU
M
 

N
O
T
 
IM
P
L
E
M
E
N
T
E
D
 
- 

L
O
W
 

Guru Nanak Secondary Dec-
09 2 

 
5 2   2 

 
5 2   

   

Colham Manor Primary Oct-09 4 7 1   4 7 1      
Field End Junior Dec-

09 2 
5 

1   2 
 
5 1   

   

Abbotsfield Sep-
09 5 

 
7 6   5 

 
7 6   

   

Barnhill Oct-09 7 6 4   7 5 2    1 2 
Bishop Ramsey Oct-09 1 3 1   1 3 1      

  50 97 47   43 75 41   9 20 6 
               

 
% Implemented 
by Risk    86% 77% 87%      

               

 
Overall % 
Implemented         82%   

 
Overall % Not 
Implemented        18%   

            100%   
               

 
Details of audits followed up but where issues remain outstanding are in the 
table below: 
 
Audits with Issues Outstanding 
Audit Title No. of 

Outstanding 
Recommendations 

Revised 
Target 
Date 

London Tender Portal 1 Jun 2010 
General Ledger 2 Sep 2010 
Commercial Properties 2 Dec 2010 
Pensions Administration 1 Jul 2010 
Hillingdon Grid for Learning 2 Sep 2010 
Network Security 1 Mar 2011 
Northgate Revenues & 
Benefits Review 1 Jun 2010 

Oyster Cards 7 Jul 2010 
Web Security 2 Aug 2010 
Email Security & 
Management 5 Aug 2010 

Private Sector Leasing 3 Sep 2010 
Payroll 1 Sep 2010 
Ocella 4 Sep 2010 

Page 170



Appendix 1   

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Barnhill 3 Sep 2010 
 
 
Advice Guidance and Consultancy 
 
Management continue to request ad hoc advice from us on operational issues 
within their service area and we have representatives on a number of project  
teams; the Social Care Transformation Board, the  Adult Social Care 
Information Systems Modernisation Programme Board and the Hillingdon 
Homes Project Team. 
 
Work continues on producing further advisory newsletters for schools.  
 
 
Anti-Fraud Work 
 
Our routine work on anti-fraud includes probity checks, presenting fraud 
awareness sessions to managers and co-ordinating the National Fraud 
Initiative continues. 
 
A consolidated report on Hillingdon’s Counter Fraud Measures in 2009-10 is 
being presented as a separate document to the Audit Committee. 
 
An allegation was received that refuse collectors were taking bribes. Enquiries 
identified that the refuse was being collected by a private firm with no 
connections to the council. 
 
Another bribery allegation was received regarding a Civil Enforcement Officer 
working for our Parking Enforcement contractor. The allegation was proven 
and the contractor  dismissed the employee. 
 
Any confidential investigations are reported in Part 2. 
 
 
 
 

Page 171



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
     H M L 
CROSS CUTTING CORPORATE ISSUES         
Budgetary control Finalised 02/03/10 Satisfactory  0 6 2 
Hillingdon First Card  Finalised 4/05/10 Satisfactory  2 1 1 
Taxes Management Act Finalised 17/12/09 Not Applicable     
NFI Completed  31/03/10 Not Applicable     
Anti Fraud Promotion Completed  31/03/10 Not Applicable     
Anti Fraud Proactive Detection Completed  31/03/10 Not Applicable     
Fraud/Irregularity Investigations completed 31/3/10 Not Applicable     
Corporate Working Parties Completed  31/3/10 Not Applicable     
Annual Governance Statement - Audit Finalised 7/5/09 Not Applicable     
Annual Governance Statement - Input Completed  31/3/10 Not Applicable     
Consultancy Advice and Information (Ad hoc) Completed  31/3/10 Not Applicable     
Oyster Cards - Corporate Usage Finalised 26/4/10 Satisfactory  0 0 0 
Purchase Cards - Corporate Usage Finalised 29/03/10 Satisfactory  0 3 0 
Local Strategic Partnership Finalised 08/04/10 Satisfactory  0 2 6 
Performance Management Finalised 29/03/10      Satisfactory  0 2 2 
Mobile Phone use and control Finalised 26/4/10 Satisfactory  0 0 0 
Flexi Leave - Monitoring, Approval and Control Draft Issued       
          
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE/FINANCE & 
RESOURCES         

P
age 172



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
Chrysalis Finalised 11/02/10 Satisfactory  2 2 1 
HR Payroll changes and trigger dates Draft       
Payroll Draft        
Teachers Payroll - Starters, Leavers, Changes Finalised 7/8/09 Limited  4 3 0 
Council Tax - Scanning and Indexing Project Deleted       
Corporate Property         
Facilities Management Contract Deleted       
Estate and Valuation Service Draft       
Utilities Contracts Gas & Electricity  Finalised 26/03/10 Satisfactory  0 1 1 
Utilities Contracts Electricity – Deleted & combined with 
Gas Deleted 

Not 
applicable      

Utilities Contracts Water Finalised 16/04/10 No Assurance  1 0 0 
Legal         
LEXEL - General Management of Legal Services Deleted.       
Ombudsman Complaints Finalised 14/01/10 Full 26/05/2010 0 0 0 
Freedom of Information /Data Protection Draft Issued       
Complaints Against Members Finalised 23/11/09 Full  0 0 2 
AXXIA System Finalised 16/04/10 Satisfactory  0 2 5 
Debt Recovery Processes Finalised 10/5/10 Satisfactory  0 6 2 
Major Construction Projects        
Contracts - Pre Tender Finalised 30/10/09 Satisfactory  2 3 2 
Contracts - Current Finalised  25/05/10 Limited  8 2 1 
Contracts - Final Accounts Deleted       
          
Procurement         
Due North System Finalised 13/10/09 Satisfactory 12/03/2010 1 0  
Contract Register and Rationalisation Finalised   3/6/10 Satisfactory  0 2 0 
Compliance with Tender Strategy Deleted       

P
age 173



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
          
Personnel         
Establishment Control Deleted        
Agency & Interim Assignment Approvals Deleted        
Employability Status - Permanent and Temporary 
Eligibility Deleted         
Payment of Sick Pay (compliance with policy) Finalised 5/10/09 Full  0 0 0 
Overtime Payments Finalised 11/01/10 Satisfactory 13/05/10 0 0 0 
On-line sickness reporting Deleted       
          
ENVIRONMENT & CONSUMER PROTECTION         
Business Continuity Deleted        
Grounds Maintenance Contracts - Parks and Open 
spaces Finalised 23/02/10 Satisfactory  0 4 0 
Trees Maintenance Finalised 6/1/10 Satisfactory  0 0 3 
Highways Reactive Maintenance Draft       
Highways Planned Maintenance Finalised 26/01/10 Satisfactory  0 4 0 
Parking Management Schemes - Authorisation and 
Control of Finalised 4/5/10 Full  0 1 0 
Breakspear Crematorium Finalised 06/05/10 Satisfactory  2 6 0 
Trading Standards Finalised 16/11/09 Satisfactory  0 1 2 
Domestic Waste Collection & Disposal Finalised  3/6/10 Limited  3 4 3 
          
PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SERVICES         
Major Applications Finalised 15/04/10 Satisfactory  4 3 3 
Building Control Finalised 16/4/10 Full  0 1 0 
Land Charges Finalised 22/3/10 Satisfactory  0 2 0 
Fusion Contract (Hillingdon Athletic Stadium) Deleted        

P
age 174



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
Adult Education Deleted         
Community Safety Finalised 29/10/09 Satisfactory 15/10/09 0 0 0 
Lottery Funded Projects (Probity) Finalised 11/5/10 Full  0 0 0 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES         
Nursery Education - Private Provision In Progress       
Pupil Transport Deleted       
School Meals Service - Central LEA Contract Combined       
School Meals Service - Individual school contracts Draft       
Student Awards Finalised 29/1/10 Satisfactory 26/4/10 0 0 0 
Diabetes Management in Schools Finalised 22/6/09 Not Applicable  0 0 0 
Asylum Accommodation Finalised 23/04/10 Satisfactory  2 8 2 
Asylum Finance Finalised 23/04/10 Full   2 1 
Placement Team Deleted  Not Applicable     
Target Youth Support Deleted  Not Applicable     
Schools - Primary         
Belmore Primary Finalised 16/11/09 Satisfactory  2 8 3 
Charville Primary Finalised  12/11/09 Satisfactory  3 4 2 
Colham Manor  Primary Finalised 01/10/09 Limited 04/05/2010 0 0 0 
Cranford Park Primary Finalised 05/11/09 Satisfactory  1 3 3 
Field End Junior Finalised 2/12/09 Satisfactory 04/05/2010 0 0 0 
Harlyn Primary Finalised 23/04/10 Satisfactory  2 5 0 
Hayes Park Primary Finalised 11/02/10 Satisfactory  1 2 0 
Hillingdon Primary Finalised 17/03/10 Satisfactory  0 5 3 
Hillside Junior Finalised 03/03/10 Satisfactory  2 4 3 
Pinkwell Primary Finalised 21/05/10 Satisfactory  4 5 2 
William Byrd Primary Finalised 30/4/10 Satisfactory  2 1 2 
Wood End Primary Finalised 11/2/10 Satisfactory   1 7 4 
Schools - Secondary        

P
age 175



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
Abbotsfield Finalised 11/09/09 Limited 04/05/2010 0 0 0 
Barnhill Community High Finalised 09/10/09 Limited 04/05/2010 0 1 2 
Bishop Ramsey Finalised 15/10/09 Satisfactory 04/05/2010 0 0 0 
Bishopshalt  Finalised 2/02/10 Satisfactory  3 7 5 
The Douay Martyrs Finalised 20/11/09 Satisfactory  3 3 3 
Guru Nanak Secondary Finalised 4/12/09 Satisfactory 04/05/2010 0 0 0 
Harlington Community Finalised 2/2/10 Satisfactory   0 6 3 
Haydon  Finalised 2/2/10 Limited  7 4 0 
Mellow Lane  Finalised 27/11/09 Satisfactory  2 5 3 
Northwood  Finalised 06/07/09 No Assurance June 2010 1 3 0 
Queensmead  Finalised 17/12/09 Full  0 0 5 
Rosedale College Finalised 11/2/10 Satisfactory   1 2 0 
Swakeleys Deleted  N/A      
Uxbridge High  Finalised 08/03/10 Satisfactory  0 2 3 
Vyners Finalised 12/03/10 Satisfactory  2 7 5 
Ruislip High Secondary School Finalised 25/03/10 Satisfactory  4 5 2 
 Wood End Park Finalised 11/2/10 Satisfactory  1 7 4 
Other School Related        
Primary Sickness Scheme Finalised 29/01/10 Satisfactory  3 6 1 
FMSiS Certification  Completed  Not Applicable     
Hillingdon Grid for Learning Finalised 2/12/09 No Assurance May 2010 0 1 0 
Schools Private Funds Finalised 12/2/10 Satisfactory  1 0 0 
ASCHH         
Finance systems         
Protocol Creditors (ASCHH) Deleted  Not Applicable     
Carefirst Creditors (Part year Adult Services) Finalised 16/04/10 Satisfactory  0 1 1 
Carefirst Debtors Finalised 12/2/10 Satisfactory  1 2 1 
Protocol Debtors Deleted  Not Applicable     

P
age 176



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
Supporting People Grant Certification Finalised. 5/6/09 Full May 2010 0 0 0 
Housing         
Council HRA Draft       
Finders Fee Finalised 29/10/09 Satisfactory Feb 2010 0 1 0 
Private Sector Leasing Drafting       
Temporary Accommodation (formerly B&B) In Progress       
Hillingdon Homes Contract Arrangements Deleted - Not Applicable     
Housing Benefit Subsidy Finalised 28/10/09 Full  0 2 0 
Older People's Care        
Homecare In-House Provision Finalised 13/05/10 Satisfactory  3 4 2 
Learning Disabilities         
Sec 75 Agreement (Funding of LD Services) Drafting       
Mental Health Service         
Mental Health Service Drafting       
Contingency         
Payroll Transformation Finalised  Not Applicable     
Children's Fund Payments to CU Finalised Sep 10 Not Applicable     
Investigation 15 Finalised 1/9/09 Not Applicable     
Investigation 17 ongoing       
Investigation 18 Finalised 30/6/09 Not Applicable     
Investigation 19 Finalised  11/12/09 Not Applicable     
Investigation 20 Finalised 27/8/09 Not  Applicable     
Investigation 21 Finalised 16/12/09 Not Applicable     
Investigation 22  Finalised 22/10/09      
Investigation 23 Finalised 1/3/10 Not Applicable     
Investigation 24 Finalised 31/3/10 Not Applicable     
Investigation 25 Finalised 31/3/10 Not Applicable     
Investigation 26 Finalised  1/3/10 Not Applicable     

P
age 177



Appendix 2    

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2009-10 Progress 

Audit Title Status 
Date 

Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
Investigation 27 Ongoing       
Investigation 28 Ongoing       
Purchase Cards Probity Checks Finalised 26/8/09 Not Applicable     
Members Allowances/Expenses  Finalised 6/11/09 Full   0 0 0 
Transforming Social Care (Project team participation) ongoing       
Cherry Lane Primary Draft       
Housing Benefit – Testing for External Audit Finalised 2/6/10 Full  0 0 0 
ICT Contracted Days        
IT Risk Management In progress       
Restructuring of ICT Finalised  29/07/10 Satisfactory  0 4 1 
IT Disaster Recovery Finalised 14/04/10 Limited  1 3 0 
CRM Application Finalised 24/12/09 Limited  0 4 1 
Environmental Services Application Finalised  25/08/09 Limited  1 7 2 
HR & Payroll System Finalised 18/01/10 Satisfactory  0 2 1 
Oracle Financials  Draft       
Desk Top Technologies Deleted  Not Applicable     
Data Matching Finalised   Not Applicable     
Audit Needs Assessment Deleted  Not Applicable     
E-Payments Project Deleted  Not Applicable     
Remote Access Finalised  29/07/09 Satisfactory  0 3 0 
Telephone Systems Finalised 21/10/09 Full   0 0 3 
Hillingdon Grid for Learning  - Security  Finalised 2/12/09 No Assurance May 2010 0 0 0 

 

P
age 178



Appendix 3  

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2008-9 Progress 

Audit Title Status Date Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
     H M L 
COUNCIL-WIDE ISSUES               

Property Databases Finalised 07/01/09 Satisfactory 
 Dec 09 revised 

date June 10 1 2 2 

Use of Shared Oyster Cards Finalised 31/8/09   Limited 
April 2010 revised 
date of July 2010   5 2 0  

                
FINANCE & RESOURCES               
Council Tax Finalised 07/11/08 Satisfactory Jan 2010  0 0 0 
Payroll  Finalised 06/08/09  Satisfactory  Feb 10   - 3  2  

General Ledger  Finalised  17/06/09 Satisfactory  
March 10 revised 
date Sep 2010   -  1 1  

Payroll Expenses Procedures Finalised 23/12/08 Limited Feb 10  1 0 0 

Pensions Admin Finalised 07/01/09 Satisfactory 
May 10 revised 
date July 2010 0 1 0 

Commercial Properties Finalised 11/09/08 Satisfactory 
March 2010 revised 

date Dec 2010 - 2 - 
ENVIRONMENT & CONSUMER PROTECTION               
Parking Services Completed  20/09/08 Satisfactory  Feb 2010  0 0 0  
Domestic Refuse Collection & disposal Finalised 30/07/08 Satisfactory May 2010   0 0 0 
Exor System Finalised 03/10/08 Satisfactory June 2010 -  0  - 

Business Continuity & Emergency Planning Finalised 08/06/09  Limited  
Feb 2010 revised 
dated June 2010 3 2 0  

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES               

S106 Planning Gain Finalised 15/06/09  Satisfactory  
Jan 10 revised date 

June 10 1  1 1 
Adult Education Finalised 16/07/09  Limited   June 2010  0 0  0 
IT Audits               

P
age 179



Appendix 3  

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

Internal Audit Plan 2008-9 Progress 

Audit Title Status Date Finalised Assurance Level 
Date of last Follow 

up 
Number of outstanding 

recommendations 
     H M L 
Third Party Service Management (Northgate) Finalised 19/01/09 Satisfactory March 2010 0 0 0 
Web Security Finalised 30/11/09 satisfactory         March 2010   0 2  3  

Application Security (SCUBA system) Finalised 04/03/09 Limited 
System 

decommissioned  0 0 0 

IT physical and environmental security Finalised 25/03/09 Satisfactory 
Followed up Feb 

2010  0 1 1 

Helpdesk Application Finalised 05/03/09 Satisfactory 
Followed up Feb 

2010 0 1 1 
Housing & CT (Northgate) application review Finalised 25/03/09 Satisfactory March 2010  0 1 0 
Ocella application review Finalised April 09  Limited   June 2010  0 4   0 
IT Data Security and Transfer (from Contingency) Finalised 26/03/09 Limited   0 4 3 

Email Security and Management Finalised 27/05/09 Limited 

Followed up Jan 
2010 revised dated 

August 2010  3 2 0 
Oracle Financials Upgrade Finalised 03/03/09 Satisfactory March 2010  0 0 0 

 
 
Key:  Audits marked as Finalised have had a final report issued with an audit opinion 

Audits marked Completed have had audit input that did not generate an audit opinion, such as working groups, advice and 
guidance, anti-fraud activity and some probity audits. The audit activity was completed for 2008-09 but work may be ongoing 
in 2009-10. 

P
age 180



Appendix 4 

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

  
ü ü ü ü for 
Finalised/Satisfactory/Full    Key  

  ð ð ð ð for in progress       Currently being followed up 
  ò ò ò ò for Limited      
       
       

PLAN 2007-8    
Number of outstanding 
recommendations 

Comments 

Assurance 
Audit Title Status Level High Med  Low 

 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING      

Private Sector Leasing    ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    1 1 1 
Being followed up as part of Feb 2010 
audit – Revised dates to be agreed 

EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES       
Children's services       
Direct payment for disabled children    ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    0 0 0 Followed up June 2010 
Music Service üüüü üüüü 0 0 0 Followed up March 2010 
FINANCE & RESOURCES       
Finance         
Pensions Assets    ü   ü   ü   ü   ü  ü  ü  ü 0 0 0 Followed up Feb 2010 
ICT       
Asset Management/ Software and 
Hardware Management    ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    0 1 0 

Followed up  Jan 2010 - Revised date 
June 2010 

Network Security 
üüüü üüüü    0 1 0 

Followed up April 2010 – Revised date 
March 2011 

BACS Payments Application 
   ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    0 1 0 

Followed up Jan 2010 – Revised June 
2010 

Website Content Management System    ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    1 0 0 Followed up Jan 2010 – Revised Sept 

P
age 181



Appendix 4 

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

  
ü ü ü ü for 
Finalised/Satisfactory/Full    Key  

  ð ð ð ð for in progress       Currently being followed up 
  ò ò ò ò for Limited      
       
       

PLAN 2007-8    
Number of outstanding 
recommendations 

Comments 

Assurance 
Audit Title Status Level High Med  Low 

 

2010 
Business Continuity Management 

üüüü üüüü    
0 2 0 Followed up Jan 2010 – Revised date 

Sept 2010 
Procurement/AP     ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    0 4 2 Follow up in progress 
      
ENVIRONMENT & CONSUMER PROTECTION     
Exor System  (IT) - review of concept    ü   ü   ü   ü üüüü    0 0 0 Followed up June 2010 
contingency                   

Securicor collection    ü   ü   ü   ü     3 0 
 

0 
Followed up Nov 2009 – Revised target 
Sept 2010 

 

P
age 182



 

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
  

 

Page 183



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE 
SYSTEMS OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

 
Contact Officer: Helen Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

 
 

REASONS FOR REPORT 
 
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended 2006) require a review of the 
systems of Internal Audit.  
 
This report summarised the outcome of the review and provides an action plan for 
improvement. 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 
Review the actions and summary of the outcomes. 

1.INFORMATION 
1.1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended 2006) require a review of the 
systems of Internal Audit.  The first review, for the financial year 2006-07, was a self-
assessment by the Head of Audit. This was followed by a review by Councillor Elizabeth 
Kemp in 2007-08 and a peer review by the Head of Audit at Southend on Sea Borough 
Council in 2008-9.  
 
1.2. Following discussions with the committee the view was that a self-assessment in line 
with guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) would be sufficient for 2009-10. 
 
1.3. The self assessment included a full review against CIPFA’s Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government, to check that the previously reported compliance with 
standards was still in operation.  
 

1.4. For those areas where improvements were identified and an action plan agreed 
following the 2008-09 review, progress is outlined below. (The actions from the review are 
at Appendix 1) 
 
1.5.  An updated Terms of Reference was approved by this Committee in June 2009 with a 
further review, containing minor updates, also being approved in March 2010. The main 
changes were:- 
§ a requirement for the Head of Internal Audit to produce an annual audit opinion,  
§ Adding Internal Audit’s involvement in contributing to the production of the Annual 
Governance Statement 
§ Internal Audit’s role in consultancy work 
§ How Internal Audit resources will be determined 
 
1.6.  Establishing a Terms of Reference with partner organisations was not included in the 
updated Terms of Reference. After considering this proposal, it was considered that as 
each partner would need to agreed the TOR, it would not necessarily be a straightforward 

Agenda Item 8

Page 185



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

exercise.  No problems had occurred during 2009-10 when audits on the Mental Health 
Service and S75 Learning Disability Funding which involved partners were undertaken. It 
was therefore not considered a priority. Contacting LSP partners to identify common areas 
of interest will be developed over the next few years. 
 
1.7. This Committee undertook a review of its effectiveness in November 2009 and 
formally reported its findings to the December 2009 meeting. An action plan has been 
agreed and will be monitored throughout 2010-11. 
 
1.8. Written protocols between Internal Audit and management were not progressed. 
However, Terms of Reference for each audit are agreed with relevant management and 
they cover, in broad terms, the protocol to be followed. The protocol with the Corporate 
Management Team, although not in writing, has been embedded over the last year and is 
working well. 
 
1.9. The liaison arrangements with Deloitte are included in their Planning Report. 
 
1.10. The Head of Internal Audit conducted sample reviews of audit files in 2009-10 to 
assess compliance and quality standards. Areas for improvement in respect of recording 
audit work were identified and brief training sessions have been held during monthly Team 
meetings. 
 
1.11. A written policy for the retention and destruction of audit documentation, both paper 
and electronic, was written and incorporated into the Corporate Policy in December 2009. 
 
1.12. Although production of an access policy for audit files and records was agreed as 
part of the action plan, it was considered that this was not a priority as access to audit 
reports was governed by Data Protection and Freedom of Information legislation. Also, all 
audit staff are required to sign up to the Code of Practice which includes guidance on 
distribution of audit reports. We will develop a formal policy in 2010-11. 
 
1.13. To ensure that any significant risks identified during an audit are incorporated into the 
council’s risk management process, the finalisation checklist has been amended to remind 
auditors to report to the Risk Management and Insurance Manager. The Risk Manager has 
a direct reporting line to the Head of audit and emerging issues are discussed at monthly 
meetings. 
 
1.14. There was an action to include managers in the benchmarking exercise, which is 
usually undertaken annually. However, we did not participate in the benchmarking exercise 
in year so the action was redundant. 

 
 

Page 186



APPENDIX 1 

INTERNAL AUDIT SUMMARY SELF ASSESSMENT& ACTION PLAN:  2008/09 – UPDATED WITH CURRENT PROGRESS ON 28 MAY 2010 

REF ADHERENCE TO THE STANDARD Y P N ACTION REQUIRED RESPONSIBLE OFFICER DATE 

 

Updated May 2010 1       London Borough of Hillingdon 

1: SCOPE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
SCOPE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

1.1 Terms of Reference X    Update Term of Reference 
  

Head of Audit June2009 

1.2 Scope of Work X   Liaise with significant partners in the Local Strategic 
Partnership to try to establish common Terms of 
reference, data sharing protocol and the approach to 
sharing assurance. 
 

 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

March 
2010 

4: AUDIT COMMITTEES 
SCOPE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

4.2 
 

Internal Audit’s 
Relationship with the Audit 
Committee 

X   The Committee need to carry out a review of its own 
effectiveness 
 
 

Head of Audit  Sep 2009 

P
age 187



APPENDIX 1 

INTERNAL AUDIT SUMMARY SELF ASSESSMENT& ACTION PLAN:  2008/09 – UPDATED WITH CURRENT PROGRESS ON 28 MAY 2010 

REF ADHERENCE TO THE STANDARD Y P N ACTION REQUIRED RESPONSIBLE OFFICER DATE 

 

Updated May 2010 2       London Borough of Hillingdon 

5: RELATIONSHIPS 
SCOPE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

5.1 Principles of Good 
Relationships 

 X  Develop working protocols with significant partners 
Internal Auditors: 
 

Head of Audit March 
2009 

     a) Draft a working protocol for relationship with CMT 
b) Negotiate a protocol with Deloitte 
c) Contact LSP partners to identify common areas of 
interest. 
 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

Sep 2009 
July 2009 
July 2009 

5.5 Relationships with Other 
Regulators and Inspectors 

X   None.  There is no regular liaison with the Audit 
Commission’s Relationship Manager or other inspectors 
but it is not felt necessary to pursue this. 

  

8: UNDERTAKING AUDIT WORK 

P
age 188



APPENDIX 1 

INTERNAL AUDIT SUMMARY SELF ASSESSMENT& ACTION PLAN:  2008/09 – UPDATED WITH CURRENT PROGRESS ON 28 MAY 2010 

REF ADHERENCE TO THE STANDARD Y P N ACTION REQUIRED RESPONSIBLE OFFICER DATE 

 

Updated May 2010 3       London Borough of Hillingdon 

8.2 Approach X   Introduce a cold review of Audit Files to assess 
compliance with documents and quality standard set 
 

Head of Audit  July 2009 

8.3 Recording Audit 
Assignments 

X   Include the specific Internal Audit document 
retention policies in the corporate guidance. 
 
Formal document and access policy for Audit files 
and records 
 
 

Head of Audit June 2009 
 
Sep 2009 

10: REPORTING 
SCOPE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

10.2 Reporting on Audit Work X   Formalise reporting of identified audit risks to the 
Risk Manager. 

Head of Audit Sep 2009 

11: PERFORMANCE, QUALITY AND EFFECTIVENESS 
SCOPE OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

P
age 189



APPENDIX 1 

INTERNAL AUDIT SUMMARY SELF ASSESSMENT& ACTION PLAN:  2008/09 – UPDATED WITH CURRENT PROGRESS ON 28 MAY 2010 

REF ADHERENCE TO THE STANDARD Y P N ACTION REQUIRED RESPONSIBLE OFFICER DATE 

 

Updated May 2010 4       London Borough of Hillingdon 

11.1 
 

Principles of Performance, 
Quality and Effectiveness 

X   Review how to engage service managers in 
completing the CIPFA survey on the whole section 
performance. 
 
 

Head of Internal Audit Sept 2009 

 
 P

age 190



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

 
Fraud Awareness Survey 2010 
 

Contact Officer: Helen Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
Anti fraud measures are part of the overall strategy for good governance in any 
organisation. Hillingdon conducted a survey in 2007 to establish staff awareness of anti-
fraud and corruption issues. This year we repeated the survey to measure our success 
in raising awareness since then. 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
Not the contents of the report and the general improvements made in raising fraud 
awareness since 2007. 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 

• 1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1.   In September 2007 staff were asked to complete a fraud awareness survey to 
allow us to evaluate awareness of fraud and corruption issues and their general attitude 
to our approach to fraud. As a result of that survey an action plan was formulated to 
address some of the issues the survey identified.  

1.2. The most significant changes in the interim period have been our publicity campaign 
- featuring the three monkeys – and the running of bitesize sessions on fraud awareness 
for managers. At the same time policies, such as gifts and hospitality, which are part of 
the total control environment have been reviewed. 

 
• 2. OBJECTIVES 

 
2.1. The main objective of the survey was to compare current staff perception and 
awareness of anti-fraud and corruption measures with those of the previous survey, to 
assess the success or otherwise of the campaigns so far. 

 
2.2. To maintain comparisons with the previous survey we asked the same questions in 

relation to: 
 

• The council’s approach to fraud and corruption. 
• Staff awareness of the council’s fraud and corruption policies. 
• Raising suspicions of fraud or corruption. 
•    Confidence once suspicions are reported. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 191



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

•   Action taken on previously reported suspicions. 
•   To whom suspicions were reported. 

 
2.3. Staff were again given the opportunity to make comments on our overall approach. 
 

• 3. METHODOLOGY 
 
3.1. The survey was published on the intranet site at the end of January 2010. 
Encouragement to complete the survey was via an all staff email and inclusion in  
the Team Brief. The closing date for responses was the end of February 2010. 
 
3.2. The survey posed a series of questions, which in most cases asked staff to rate 
their views on various issues related to awareness of fraud corruption.  A summary of 
the main findings is given below, followed by a more detailed analysis of the responses. 
 

• 4. SUMMARY AND OPINIONS 
 
4.1. The survey identified an improvement in the levels of awareness of anti-fraud and 
corruption issues. 

4.2. The key findings from the survey were: - 
 

l There is an increasing awareness of fraud and corruption policies and procedures 
within the council. 

l Staff are increasingly aware of and confident in reporting concerns to the range of 
people available.  

l There is more confidence that issues will be taken seriously and properly 
investigated. 

l The percentage of people dissatisfied or very dissatisfied with the outcome of 
investigations remained static but the trend was more being very satisfied. 

 
• 5. AWARENESS OF POLICIES WHICH SUPPORT AN ANTI-FRAUD 

CULTURE 
 
5.1. In any organisation an anti-fraud and corruption culture is supported by a number of 
policies that not only deal with the issue itself but also underline the general probity 
issues. The main policies in LB Hillingdon are:- 
 

l The code of conduct for officers. 
l Whistleblowing policy. 
l Anti-fraud and corruption strategy; and,  
l Financial Regulations. 

 
5.2. Staff were asked about each of these policies and asked to say if they had; 
 

l Heard of it and knew the detail 
l Heard of it but didn’t know the detail 

Page 192



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

l Never heard of it. 
 
5.3. Overall there was an improvement in staff awareness and knowledge of these 
policies. Details of responses are given below.    
 
Code of Conduct  
 
5.4. The results of the 2010 fraud survey mirrored those of the 2007 survey with regard 
to awareness of the Code of Conduct. The majority have heard of the policy and know 
its detail, whereas only 1% have never heard of the policy, this indicates good 
awareness. 
 

Policy Awareness - Code of Conduct

1 1

71

28

71

28

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Heard of it and know the
detail

Heard of it but don't
know the detail

Never heard of it

2007-2008 %

2009-2010 %

 
 

 
Whistleblowing Policy 
 
5.5. Compared to the last fraud survey 15% more people have heard and know the 
detail of the whistleblowing policy, and 3% less people have never heard of the policy, 
demonstrating an increased awareness of this policy. 
 
 

Page 193



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

Policy Awareness - Whistleblowing

9

39

52

6

40

54

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Heard of it and know the
detail

Heard of it but don't know
the detail

Never heard of it

2007-2008 %

2009-2010 %

 
 
 
Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 
 
5.6. Individuals who have heard of the Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy and know its 
detail has increased by 14%. Overall, 85% of respondents have now heard of the 
strategy compared to 63% in 2007. There has been a significant reduction in the number 
of people who have never heard of the policy, from 37% to 16%. 
 

Policy Awareness - Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy

17

46

37

31

54

16

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Heard of it and know the
detail

Heard of it but don't know
the detail

Never heard of it

2007-2008 %

2009-2010 %

 
 
Financial Regulations 
 
5.7. Most people had heard of Financial Regulations, though 15% had not, an 
improvement on the 18% of the 2007 survey. More care is needed when interpreting the 
significance of this because some staff responding to the questionnaire may have no 

Page 194



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

need to know about Financial Regulations, especially if they do not manage budgets or 
make any spending decisions on behalf of the council. There has been little change 
since the last fraud survey; however the change does suggest a slight increase in 
awareness. 
 

Policy Awareness - Financial Regulations

28

54

18

29

56

15

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Heard of it and know
the detail

Head of it but don't
know the detail

Never heard of it

2007-2008 %

2009-2010 %

 
 
 
 

• 6. ATTITUDES TO REPORTING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 
 
6.1. Staff were asked to whom they would report fraud and corruption.  The option of 
using more than one reporting line was given so the response records the percentages 
of total respondents who would report it via an option. Some would clearly use more 
than one option. 
 
6.2. From the responses it is obvious that most staff would report concerns to Line 
Managers. 
 
6.3. There has been a decrease in the number of people who would report concerns to 
their Line Manager or Personnel but an increase in the number of people who would 
report concerns to the Internal Audit Team and the Fraud Hotline. 
 
6.4. There was an increase of 4% in the numbers of staff confident about reporting 
issues to Internal Audit and a 11% increase in those using the hotline.  This is promising 
because all instances of fraud should be brought to the attention of the Head of Internal 
Audit. Overall, only 1% of respondents would not report concerns compared to 2% in 
2007. There was a fall from 3% to 1% of those choosing the other option. Overall 
reporting is high. 
 

Page 195



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

6.5. In response to the question of whether staff would be confident in reporting 
concerns to the three main sources of Managers, Internal Audit and Personnel there 
was an overall increase in confidence with Managers and Internal Audit. Levels of 
confidence in Managers rose from 74% to 87% and in Internal Audit from 51% to 71%. 
There was a slight fall in those feeling confident about reporting concerns to Personnel 
but the shift was to the more ambivalent category because those who would not be 
confident fell from 12% to 10%.  
 

To whom would you report fraud and corruption

56

5
9 11 14

2 3

47

5 6

15

25

1 1
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Line
Manager

Colleague Personnel Internal
Audit

Fraud
Hotline

No one Other

2007-
2008 %

2009-
2010 %

 
 

How confident would you be in reporting concerns to these 
people?

74

87

57
52 51

71

13
4

12 10 6 1

14 9

32
39 43

28

0

20

40

60

80

100

Line
Manager

2007-2008
%

Line
Manager

2009-2010
%

personnel
2007-2008

%

personnel
2009-2010

%

Internal Audit
2007-2008

%

Internal Audit
2009-2010

%

Very Confident/Confident

Not confident

Neither confident nor not
confident/don’t know

 
 

 
6.6. Perception of how concerns would be treated once reported was very mixed and 
although the majority felt confident about the organisation’s attitude, there is still a small 
minority who do not, 6% compared to the previous benchmark of 10%. 
 
6.7. Staff were asked to rate how strongly they agreed with three statements; 
 

l I believe that the LBH has an open and honest culture 

Page 196



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

l I believe that the LBH takes fraud and corruption seriously 
l I am confident that all necessary action will be taken when a suspected fraud or 

corrupt act is reported 
 
6.8.  The responses are presented in the tables below.  Those believing LBH has an 
open and honest culture has risen from 51% in 2007 to 61% in 2010. Where as those 
who disagree has fallen from 18% to 9%. 

Believe LBH has an open and honest culture

8

43

28

15

3 2

10

51

29

7
2 2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Agree
strongly

Agree Neither
agree nor
disagree

Disagree Strongly
Disagree

Don't
know

2007-2008 %

2009-2010 %

 
 
6.9.Those who agree or agree strongly that LBH takes fraud and corruption seriously 
have risen from 69% in 2007 to 82% in 2010 and those disagreeing overall have fallen 
from 10% in 2007 to 4% in 2010. 
 

Believe that LBH takes fraud and corruption seriously

23

46

14
9

1
5

30

52

11

3 1 3
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Agree
strongly

Agree Neither
agree nor
disagree

Disagree Strongly
Disagree

Don't know

2007-
2008 %

2009-
2010 %

 
 

Page 197



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

6.10. Those confident that action would be take has risen from 59% to 78%, with those 
not agreeing falling from 10% to 6%.  

Confident that action will be taken

19

40

25

7
3 5

26

52

14

5
1 2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Agree
strongly

Agree neither
agree not
disagree

Disagree Strongly
Disagree

Don't
know

2007-2008 %

2009-2010 %

 
 

6.11. In all three cases, there has been an increase in the number of people who 
strongly agree and agree, and a decrease in people who disagree and strongly 
disagree; demonstrating that confidence in LBH dealing with fraud has increased.  
 

• 7. TRAINING NEEDS OF STAFF 
 
7.1. When asked if they thought they would benefit from anti-fraud and corruption 
awareness training, an overwhelming majority of staff felt that they would, with only 18% 
feeling that they would not. A proportion of the people who said ‘no’ commented that 
they had just attended a fraud awareness session. The increase in those believing they 
would benefit appears to be a shift from those who were not sure if they would benefit 
before but now think that they would benefit from training.  
 

Page 198



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

Would you benefit from fraud and corruption awareness training?

52

60

18 18

30

22

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

2007-2008 % 2009-2010 %

Yes

No

Don’t Know

 
 
 

• 8. HOW WE DEAL WITH CONCERNS RAISED 
 
8.1. Staff were asked how satisfied they were with: 
 

l The actions taken as a result of their referral. 
l The information provided to them during the investigation. 
l The final outcome of the referral. 

 
8.2. Staff were asked if they had ever raised a concern. Only a small percentage had 
ever done so and it is therefore difficult to infer any statistical validity to the results. The 
general trend was an increase in satisfaction with all questions asked in this section. 
However, on the issue of the final outcome, the same percentage of people were 
dissatisfied or very dissatisfied with the outcome, 28%, but there was a marked 
improvement, 15%, in those who were very satisfied.  As with previous surveys, care 
needs to be taken when interpreting the attitude to the final outcome, not least because 
those raising concerns may have had an unrealistic expectation of what the outcome 
was likely to be.  This expectation problem is an issue that will have to be tackled in any 
revised anti-fraud strategy. 

 
• 9. CONCLUSIONS 

 
 Since the first fraud awareness survey, attitudes have improved in all areas and there is 
an increasing confidence among staff that Hillingdon takes fraud and corruption 
seriously.  
 
9.1. In both surveys, most staff were aware of fraud and corruption policies and 
procedures, but many are now more aware of the detail of policies. 
 

Page 199



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
   

9.2. Staff are increasingly confident in reporting concerns to the range of people 
available to them through the whistleblowing process and that concerns will be taken 
seriously and properly investigated. 
 
9.3. The small number of respondents who answered the questionnaire, having made a 
complaint, makes broad conclusions difficult.  However, the percentage of people 
dissatisfied or very dissatisfied with the outcome of investigations remained static but 
the trend was to more being very satisfied. This may mean that expectations are not 
being properly managed and this needs to be addressed in the future through an 
updated anti-fraud strategy. 
 
9.4.  There is still room for improvement and, consequently, a continued need for 
awareness training. Plans are already in train to address this, including more focused 
induction for new staff, regular training sessions for managers and a programmed roll 
out of an e-learning package for all staff. 

Page 200



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 
   

 
Consolidated Fraud Report 
 

Contact Officer: Helen Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 556132 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
The Audit Committee receives regular reports on the counter fraud measures included in 
the remit of Internal Audit.  This mainly consist of internal proactive audit work aimed at 
detecting potential fraud, reactive investigations into fraud and irregularity, co-ordinating 
National Fraud Initiative data returns and the associated follow up work on investigation 
matches, running awareness programmes across the council, ensuring that policies and 
procedures are updated on a regular basis and advising managers on the measures 
they can take to prevent and detect fraud. 
 
However, Internal Audit is only one arm of the council’s counter fraud work. Most 
external fraud is handled by other departments in the council and reported through their 
Policy Overview Committees.   The recent Audit Commission Publication, Protecting the 
Public Purse, provides a checklist for those responsible for governance, to assess their 
organisations fraud defences against recommended good practice. 
 
This report matches Hillingdon against this checklist, giving examples and points of 
action where necessary.  
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
Note the contents of the report and the level of compliance with the audit commission 
checklist for those charged with Governance. Monitor actions in the report to ensure 
anti-fraud measures are given an appropriate profile in the council. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Consolidated Report on Hillingdon’s Counter Fraud Measures in 2009-10 
 
 
1. Have we committed ourselves to zero tolerance against fraud? 
Yes, this is clearly stated in the current anti–fraud strategy at paragraph 3.8 but more 
importantly it is enacted in practice. We have had two successful prosecutions for 
internal fraud in the last year. Between 2008-10 four people were dismissed, two 
resigned prior to a disciplinary hearing and three had formal disciplinary action taken. An 
allegation of bribery by a contractor’s employee was investigated when we brought it to 
the attention of the contractor and their staff member was dismissed. 
 
2.0 Do we have appropriate strategies, policies and plans? 

Agenda Item 10

Page 201



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 
   

Yes, we have an anti-fraud and corruption strategy which is supported by codes of 
conduct, whistleblowing, rules for declarations of interest and gifts and hospitality and a 
Standards Committee for Members.  
 
Action – The fraud and corruption strategy needs to be revised and procedures need to 
be reviewed and revised in conjunction with this. -  Target now September 2010. 
 
3. Do we have a dedicated counter-fraud resource? 
Not in one team, but the main prosecuting team is the Housing Benefit Fraud team with 
whom Internal Audit has an operational protocol that ensures their trained investigators 
take forward any staff criminal prosecutions once Internal Audit has amassed 
substantive evidence.  Other prosecuting teams such as Trading Standards and 
Planning Enforcement are appropriately resourced for their counter fraud work. 
 
4. Do the resources cover all of the activities or our organisation? 
Yes 
 
5. Do we receive regular reports on fraud risks, plans and outcomes? 
Yes, for internal fraud issues but not for Housing Benefit or other types of prosecutions? 
 
Action/Decision Does the committee think it would benefit from information on the 
wider fraud activities in the council and if so what form should reporting take and how 
often should it be received? 
 
6. Have we assessed our management of counter-fraud resources against good 
practice? 
Assessment was carried out against the CIPFA red book 1 standards in 2008-9. Fuller 
assessment against Red Book 2 guidance is partially completed. 
 
Action – Complete assessment against Red Book 2 and make appropriate 
amendments to policies and procedures by September 2010.  
 
7. Do we raise awareness of fraud risks including, new staff (including agency 
staff), existing staff and Members? 
 
Yes, we are continually refining this and improving our methods of delivery. Fraud 
awareness sessions for managers have been running for the last two years. Courses 
are programmed to run in September and March each year and all new managers will 
now be booked on the next available course as part of their induction process. An e-
learning programme for staff is available on the intranet and a strategy for ensuring all 
existing staff complete it in 2010-11 has been discussed with the Learning and 
Development team.  New staff will have it included in their corporate induction.  
 
 

Page 202



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 
   

The Housing Benefit Fraud Team runs an annual seminar for Members on the work that 
they do. Three times a year they run their ‘Bigger Picture’ seminar for staff, which also 
deals with HB fraud. 
 
8. Do we join in appropriately with national, regional and local networks and 
partnerships to ensure we are up to date with current fraud risks and issues? 
Hillingdon chairs the West London Fraud Managers forum, which meets quarterly to 
compare performance, working practices and review current issues. We are members of 
Local Authority Investigation Officers Group (LAIOG) London Boroughs Fraud 
Investigation Group (LBFIG), as well as the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) 
 
9. Do we have working arrangements with relevant organisations to ensure 
effective sharing of knowledge and data about fraud? 
Yes – We work with the local police financial fraud team and the UK Border Agency, 
other social landlords.  
 
10. Do we identify areas where internal controls may not be performing as 
intended? 
Yes this is done in a number of ways, most obviously by the audit of risk areas. Internal 
Audit reviews summaries of disciplinary case for potential control failures that may need 
further investigation. There is also a good culture of managers approaching Internal 
Audit when they think they have a problem area. 
 
11. Do we maximise the benefit of our participation in the audit commission NFI 
and receive reports on outcomes? 
Yes, this is co-ordinated and monitored by the Internal Audit team. The ICT team 
provide timely and accurate data downloads for matches and within each department 
there is a lead person who deals with matches in their area of expertise.   
 
Hillingdon was at the forefront of the Single Person Discount match, having suggested it 
to the Audit Commission and agreeing to pilot it in Hillingdon; and exercise which saw 
£1.4 m Hillingdon discounts being removed in 2006-7 and a further £356k removed in 
2009-10. By subsequently rolling the exercise out to all councils the Audit Commission 
has recently published figures showing £62m was identified from this exercise in 2008-9.  
 
Hillingdon will continue to take part in new matches. 
 
12. Have we reassessed our fraud risks because of the recession? 
We continually review our fraud risks and look for new ways of detecting and preventing 
fraud. No particular action has been taken as a result of the recession though we are 
more aware of the heightened risk. 
 
13. Have we amended our counter fraud action plan as a result? 
As per above we are continually reviewing and revising our counter fraud plans and 
actions. 
 

Page 203



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 
   

14. Have we reallocated staff as a result? 
Not applicable. 
 
15. Do we take effective action to ensure that social housing is allocated only to 
those in need? 
Yes – Hillingdon successfully applied for a grant of £50k to run a publicity campaign to 
publicise social housing fraud, called Blow the Whistle on Housing Cheats. The money 
is used for partnership working with social landlords in Hillingdon.  We are currently 
arranging to carry out visits on behalf of one social landlord on a contract basis. 
 
Housing Application verification visits are made to all new applicants that go onto the 
housing register to ensure that their details are correct and to confirm the eligibility of 
their application--in 2009-10 we identified 474 fraudulent applications which has reduced 
the number of people on the housing register. The Audit Commission estimates that it 
would cost £4,000 to recover possession of a property which has been illegally obtained. 
Based on this estimate the potential cost to Hillingdon could have been £1,896,000 if 
these applications had not been cancelled. 
 
16. Do we take effective action to ensure that social housing is occupied by those 
to whom it is allocated? 
The ALMO and RSL’s are responsible for doing their own check but we are working with 
them to assist in detection. This approach will obviously be reviewed when the housing 
management function returns to LBH. 
 
17. Are we satisfied that payment controls are working as intended? 
As part of routine audits Internal Audit review payment controls in various systems 
across the authority. The NFI did not identify any particular concerns in this area. 
 
18. Have we reviewed out contract letting procedures against the good practice 
guidance issues by the office of Fair Trading to reduce the risk of illegal practices 
such as cartels? 
 
We have fundamentally reviewed the way we handle all contracts over the last 18 
months. All tender contracts are now advertised on the London Tenders Portal, an 
electronic system with full transparency. A full review against the OFT guidance has not 
yet been undertaken. 
 
Action – Conduct a formal review of our processes against the OFT good practice 
guide. 
  
19. Are we satisfied that our recruitment procedures are; preventing employment 
of people working under false identities; validating employment references 
effectively and ensuring applicants are eligible to work? 
We have a liaison officer in the Borders and Immigration Service who makes regular 
visits to the council. UKBA have been working closely with Hillingdon’s HR team to 
ensure that they are appropriately trained in examining identity documents.  

Page 204



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 
   

 
Recruitment has recently been centralised and all identity documents are now checked 
centrally by trained staff. 
 
20. Where we are moving to direct payments (for example, social care) have we 
introduced suitable and proportionate control arrangements in line with 
recommended practice? 
Yes, to advise on controls and risks, a member of the Internal Audit is embedded in the 
project team responsible for introducing direct payment. They have attended awareness 
sessions and training events with Social Services staff so are well aware of risks and 
issues that need to be addressed.  
 
21. Are we effectively controlling the discounts and allowances we give to council 
tax payers? 
Yes, since our early success with Single Person Discount we have continued a 
programme of checking other reliefs. In 2009-10 exercises were conducted to verify 
those claiming reliefs for Disabled Persons, Empty Properties, In Care Exemption, 
Repossessed or classed as Repossessed properties, Under Eighteens and occupiers 
who are Dependent Relatives. All other classes with be reviewed next year, with a 
particular emphasis on students.  
 
This is all part of a rolling programme to ensure that discounts entitlements are reviewed 
and renewed regularly. 
 
22. Are we satisfied that we are doing all we can to tackle housing and council tax 
benefit fraud? 
Yes, in 2009-10 there were 18 prosecutions, 50 cautions and 39 administrative penalties 
(fines) imposed for Housing Benefit Fraud. Overpayments identified as a result of fraud 
amounted to £375,000 
 
In total the Housing Benefit Fraud team carried out 12,851 visits as follows  

• Council Tax checks 8776 
• Housing waiting list application checks   3464 
• Blue Badge/Benefit verification 611 

                     
The results of Blue Badge/Benefit verification were;  

• Blue Badge checks, during 2009/10 checks identified that 5 badges were being 
used illegally. These holders have received warning letters regarding misuse of 
their badge. The result of this activity is that more disabled bays should be 
available for genuine disabled users and discounts on parking and congestion 
charging are not now available to these fraudsters.  

• Benefit verification visits identified £474,000 as being overpaid in benefit and is 
now being recovered. 

 
23. Do we have a reporting mechanism that encourages our staff to raise their 
concerns about money laundering? 

Page 205



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 
 
   

Yes, Head of Audit and Head of Revenues are money laundering reporting contacts. 
One report has been made this year. 
 
Action – Need to raise awareness of money laundering issues throughout the council. 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Audit Commission document - Protecting the Public Purse, local government fighting 
fraud. 

Page 206



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

 
 
Review Progress on Implementing Actions Arising from Committee Self 
Assessment 
 

Contact Officer: Khalid Ahmed 
Telephone: 01895 250833 

REASON FOR ITEM 
 
To enable the committee to discuss progress made on the self assessment form which 
was compiled at the workshop which was held on 30 November 2009 and identified 
items for further action or clarification. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 
To note the information reported. 
 
 
INFORMATION 

1. Background 

1.1 On the 30 November 2009 the audit committee met and conducted a self 
assessment exercise to review its own effectiveness. The committee was compliant in 
most respects but there were some issues it felt needed further action. The table below 
lists only the issues that arose as needing further clarification or action. 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 207



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Page 208



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

 
 

Issue Comments/Actions Progress 

Terms of Reference and duties  

Are the terms of reference reviewed annually 
to take into account; 
• governance developments; and  
• the remit of other committees within the 

Council? 
 

No –  
Should this be put on the agenda – 
possibly in March? 

The Council's Constitution is reviewed on 
a regular basis to keep it up to date with 
legislative changes, best practice and to 
continue to meet the needs of the political 
interface. This includes the Terms of 
Reference of Audit.  The Committee 
could consider an item once a year on 
their Terms of Reference which could tie 
in with them looking at the Audit 
Committee's effectiveness. However, it 
must be stressed that the Audit 
Committee receives its powers from 
Council and any suggestions for changing 
Terms of Reference would need to be a 
recommendation to Council. 
  
 

Can the Committee access other committees 
and full Council as necessary? 

Not clear 
Review relationship between us and other 
committees. Include formal calling of 
members where appropriate 
 

As above. The Committee if it wishes to 
suggest changes to its Terms of 
Reference would need to make a 
recommendation to Council  

Are changes to the Committee’s current and 
future workload discussed and approved at 
Council level? 

No 
Need to clarify role and who reports and 
answers questions. 

The direction of the Committee’s 
workload is a matter for the Committee. 
The terms of reference clearly state the 
remit of the Committee 

P
age 209



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Issue Comments/Actions Progress 

Meetings and Reporting  

Are Committee papers distributed in sufficient 
time for members to give them due 
considerations? 
 

Not always 
Members require .hard copy on time. 
Important to keep members informed and 
consider part distributions. 

Agenda and reports are produced in 
accordance with Access to 
Information legal requirements. Paper 
copies are sent to the political group 
offices for Members to collect. A paper 
copy of the Chairman's agenda is sent by 
1st class post and he should receive this 
the next day. There is an issue with late 
reports, as with all Committees, but this 
can only be improved if report authors 
produced reports on time.   
 

Are minutes received as soon as possible 
after the meetings? 

No often delayed.  
Committee felt that this was an issued to 
bring to the attention of Head of 
Democratic Services. 

The intention is to produce a draft of 
these as quickly as possible after a 
meeting, but this is subject to the 
exigencies of other work pressures. 
Audit Minutes are technical and detailed 
so officer comments are crucial. This can 
delay the Minutes being sent to Members 
for information.  Minutes are always 
published well in advance of the next 
meeting and officers are aware of actions 
when they see the draft of the minutes.  
 

Do action points arising from the meetings 
indicate who is to do what and by when? 

Not always by when.  
Having a date would make it easier to 
track progress. Can a date be included? 
Actions are included throughout the 
minutes. Can action points be listed at the 

Minutes are produced in a house style 
and actions points clearly indicate which 
officer(s) is responsible for taking forward 
an action. Actions are usually carried out 
before the next meeting and this can be 

P
age 210



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Issue Comments/Actions Progress 

end of the minutes?  
Can agenda then include outstanding 
action points? 

discussed at the next meeting when the 
Chairman goes through the minutes of 
the previous meeting, page by page.  
 
Having action points at the end of the 
Minutes does not fit in with the house 
style and there seems little benefit for 
doing this. 
 
 

Does the Committee report regularly to 
Council? 

Has reported but not regularly 
Report to be produced annually in June at 
the same time as the Head of Audit 
Annual Assurance statement. It will reflect 
activities in the previous financial year. 

Report to committee is included in this 
agenda and will be included in each June 
going forward.  This can be considered as 
fully implemented. 

Committee Membership  

Are members, particularly those new to the 
Committee, provided with training in all areas 
of its remit? 

Insufficient for a member with no 
relevant background 
Devise an induction programme for 
members.  Consider intranet web site for 
members. Consider topical pre meeting 
sessions to increase knowledge and 
skills. 

New members of the committee have 
been invited to meet with the Head of 
Audit and Chair of Governors to assess 
their needs. Two members have availed 
themselves of this opportunity and they 
had had productive discussions and have 
been given and range of documents to 
increase their understanding. 
Given that there are new members, the 
committee may want to take this 
opportunity to look at its needs again. 

Do members have sufficient knowledge of the 
organisation to identify key risk areas and to 
challenge both management and the auditors 

Yes 
But it was felt that this was very 
dependent on the selection of 

 

P
age 211



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Issue Comments/Actions Progress 

on critical and sensitive matters? experienced councillors to serve on the 
committee.  
A discussion issue for the whips? 
 

Compliance with Laws and Regulations  

Has the Committee formally assessed 
whether the support it receives is sufficient 
and enables it to ensure that it complies with 
relevant laws and regulations? 

Partly 
It was felt that Committee support is not 
always adequate. 

 An experienced Democratic Services 
Manager supports the Committee, with 
additional expertise from the Head of 
Democratic Services 

Does the Committee have a mechanism to 
keep it aware of topical, legal and regulatory 
issues? 

No 
Standing item to be put on agenda. – 
Current issues/information 

Now included as an agenda item. 

Internal Control and Risk Management   

Has the Committee considered how its work 
integrates with the wider performance and risk 
management responsibilities of other 
committees / cabinet? 

Partly 
Needs more clarity. How do we close the 
circle? 

This has been clarified in a report to the 
audit committee in December 2009. 

Does the Committee receive regular 
assurance statements encompass all the 
organisation’s responsibilities, that the system 
of internal control is operating effectively and 
that it is effective in managing risk? 

Partly 
How to we get assurance on external 
partnerships? 

 
Partnership risks are reviewed as part of 
the process for producing the Annual 
Governance Statement, the as are the 
controls in place to ensure that 
partnership work effectively to achieve 
their objectives. 

Does the Committee receive progress reports 
with regard to the action plan produced to 
address any significant internal control issues 

Yes  
At the year-end. Should the committee 
get a six monthly report – say in 
December? 

 
The committee decided it only wanted 
such a report if there were significant 
items that needed to be brought to its 

P
age 212



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Issue Comments/Actions Progress 

reported in the Statement of Internal Control? For this year it could be included in the 
interim AGS report already timetabled for 
March 2010. 

attention. 

Has the Committee satisfied itself that the 
Council’s approach to dealing with fraud and 
corruption is reviewed annually, is fit for 
purpose and creates a strong counter fraud 
culture throughout the Council? 

Anti Fraud and corruption strategy has 
been reviewed regularly but now needs to 
be completely overhauled to meet the 
standards set out in CIPA’s ‘Red Book’ 
Managing the risk of Fraud. This is 
already timetabled for the March meeting. 
Note; Southend have offered to share 
their strategy documents. 

The red book review has been 
rescheduled to September 2010. 
However, the current agenda includes an 
assessment of our compliance with the 
checklist contained in the Audit 
Commission guidance – Protecting the 
Public Purse – and we can demonstrate 
good levels of assurance.  

Officer Attendance  

Does the Committee have the benefit of 
attendance of appropriate officers at its 
meetings? 

Yes 
But request that CEO or DCE attend the 
June meeting with the Annual 
Governance Statement is approved with 
the accounts. 

The Chief Executive or the Depuity Chief 
Executive will attend the June 2010 
meeting of this Committee to introduce 
the Annual Governance Statement. Also 
when requested other officers when 
invited to attend meetings do so.  

Audit Planning and Reporting  

Has the Committee established a process 
whereby it reviews any material objection to 
the plans and associated assignments that 
cannot be resolved through negotiation? 

No 
If there were an issue the committee 
would consider what action to take. 
Do we need to formalise? 

 
The committee decided that this was not 
necessary. 

Does the Committee review the adequacy of 
staffing and resources within Internal Audit to 
deliver the plan? 

No  
Resources are included in the strategy. 
Head of audit could do a report on 
staffing. Is this required? 

 
The committee decided that this could be 
reviewed with the annual audit plan and 
strategy and information was included in 
those reports. 

P
age 213



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

Issue Comments/Actions Progress 

Independence and Relationships  

Does the Committee hold periodic private 
discussions with the Head of Internal Audit? 

No 
To be organised at the beginning of a 
meeting 

 
This was to be organised for the 
beginning of a meeting but has not so far 
taken place. Consider for September 
2010? 

External Audit & Inspection  

Has the Committee satisfied itself that work in 
the plan not relating to the financial 
statements reflects the Council’s significant 
risks? 

In part The committee was to be alert to its own 
role in reviewing the external audit plan 
and to discuss the plan fully when it was 
presented to them. 

Does the Committee assess the performance 
of External Audit? 

No 
Committee to discuss with Deloitte 

Deloitte to provide a checklist to the 
Director of F&R to see if it would be 
useful 

Does the Committee hold periodic private 
discussions with the External Auditor / 
Relationship Manager? 

Yes 
But check future timetable. 

 
The committee needs to set a timetable 
at this meeting. 

Does the Committee receive reports on large 
write offs, changes in accounting treatment or 
other significant financial matters arising 
during the year? 

Assurance around budget setting? 
Large write offs 
Compliance with contract procedure 
rules. 

To produce a report on the process in the 
coming year.  

 
 

P
age 214



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)           
 

Contact: Harry Lawson  
Telephone: 01895 556578 

 
 
REASON FOR REPORT 
 
From 2010/11, Local Authorities’ Statement of Accounts are required to be 
prepared under an IFRS-based Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting, 
This is part of a wider public sector move to align accounting standards for 
private, public and international entities. To enable the Council to comply with the 
implementation timetable, planning in Hillingdon started formally in July 2009. 
 
As the body charged with governance of the authority’s Statement of Accounts, it 
is relevant that the detail of the project plan to implement the transition is 
reported to Audit Committee and that Committee are regularly updated with 
progress reports.  This report follows the introductory report in September and 
update reports in December and March. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
The transition to IFRS is a challenge to the whole organisation and should not be 
underestimated.  IFRS is not just about financial reporting; it also impacts on 
resources, budgets, systems and processes. 
 
Timetable 
 
Local authorities will be required to produce their accounts fully on an IFRS basis 
for the year 2010/11.  However, to be ready for full implementation, we will have 
to produce the accounts for 2009/10 on an IFRS basis to provide comparator 
figures and additionally restate the closing Balance Sheet for 2008/09 to provide 
the opening figures for the 2009/10 accounts. 
 
Progress Update 
 
In the March 2010 I reported that the 2008/09 Balance Sheet had been restated 
under IFRS, meeting the deadlines set by CIPFA in their LAAP 80 IFRS bulletin. 
 
The next task is to restate the 2009/10 accounts under IFRS by December 2010. 
Accordingly, the focus since March has been on collecting the necessary data for 
this purpose during the closing period. The key information collected includes: 
 
- Details of the annual leave carry over as at 31 March 2010 for all LBH and 

Schools staff. 
- Strengthening the Flexi Leave carry over sample from 30% to 35%. 

Agenda Item 12

Page 215



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

- Details of all leases held in schools. 
 
Together with data collected beforehand, all the key information is now at hand to 
commence work in restating the 2009/10 accounts. 
 
 
 

Page 216



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 20010/11 

Contact Officer: Khalid Ahmed 
Telephone: 01895 250833 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans.  
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings  
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews.  
 
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
 
All meetings to start at 5.00pm 
 
 

Meetings  Room 
28 June 2010 CR 3 
21 September 2010 CR 3A 
15 December 2010 CR 3 
10 March 2011 CR 3 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 13

Page 217



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
2010/11 DRAFT Work Programme 
 

  

Fraud Awareness Survey Head of Audit 

Consolidated Fraud Report Head of Audit 

Review of the systems of Internal 
Audit – Head of Audit. 

Head of Audit 

Review progress on implementing 
actions arising from Committee self 
assessment. 

Head of Audit / chairman of 
Committee 

28 June 2010 

Approval of Accounts, including 
Annual Governance Statement 

Director of Finance 

 Update on IFRS Director of Finance 

 Head of Audit Annual Assurance 
Statement and opinion 

Head of Audit 

 Interim Use of Resources 
Assessment 

Director of Finance/Deloitte 

 Audit Committee Work Programme Democratic Services Manager 

 Key Financial Audit Risk Relating to 
the Valuation of Icelandic 
Investments -   PART II 

Deloitte 

 Audit committee Annual Report to 
full council 

Head of Audit 

 
 
 
 
Meeting Date Item Officer/member 

  

Auditor’s report on Statement of 
Accounts 2009/10 

Director of Finance/Deloitte 

Treasury Management Practices Senior Finance Manager – 
Corporate Finance 

Internal Audit Progress Report and 
plan amendments 

Head of Audit 

Update on IFRS Director of Finance 

21 September 

Risk Management Quarter 1 
Report – PART II 

Risk Manager 

Page 218



 
Audit Committee  28 June 2010 

PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 Revised Anti Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy 

Head of Audit 

 
  

Internal Audit Progress Report and 
plan amendments 

Head of Audit 

Conversion to International 
Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) - update 

Director of Finance 

15 December 
2010 

Treasury Management Strategy 
20010/11 

Director of Finance 

 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report and 
plan amendments 

Head of Audit  

Internal Audit Strategy and Audit 
Plan 2011-10 

Head of Audit 

Review of Internal Audit Terms of 
Reference, 

Head of Audit 

Annual Governance Statement – 
Interim Report 

Head of Policy 

Conversion to International 
Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) - update 

Director of Finance 

Reserves and Balances Policy  Director of Finance 

Annual Audit Letter  Director of Finance/Deloitte 

10 March  
2011 

Risk Management report Part II Risk Manager 

 

Page 219



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL ON THE WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

Contact Officer: Helen Taylor 
Head of Internal Audit Corporate Governance 

Telephone: 01895 556132 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This report summarises for Council the work of the Audit Committee during 2009-10 in 
undertaking its responsibilities for overseeing and challenge the key areas within its remit, 
specifically: 

• Internal Control; 
• Risk Management; 
• Internal Audit; 
• Additional financial assurances; 
• Anti Fraud; and,  
• Annual Accounts and External Audit. 

 
The report provides an opportunity for members to review the work of the Committee and 
comment on its contribution and performance. 
 
This report details the key areas reviewed by the Committee in 2009-10. The Committee has 
had an impact on all areas of its remit. Notable areas were: 

• Raising the profile of Internal Audit through its review of its activities and acknowledged 
support of the function; 

• Receiving and reviewing  
o The annual plan for Internal Audit 
o the periodic progress reports presented by the Head of Internal Audit & Corporate 

Governance; 
o the report on the effectiveness of the systems of Internal Audit; 
o reports on the risk management process; 
o and approving annual accounts and presenting a robust challenge in addressing 

questions and seeking assurances from both officers and the external auditors; 
o reports on Treasury Management Practice  
o the Balances and Reserves policy 
o regular reports from the external auditors on both the accounts and the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment process 
• Monitoring the production of the Annual Governance Statement and its supporting 

evidence. Recommending the adoption of the statement to the Leader and Chief 
Executive. 

• Reviewing the council’s arrangements for the move to International Accounting 
Standards. 

• Conducting a review of its own effectiveness and producing a plan for improvement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
That the Council approves the annual report. 
 

Agenda Item 14

Page 221



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

INFORMATION 
 
1.Background 
1.1. The Audit Committee has a wide ranging brief that underpins the Council’s governance 
processes by providing independent challenge and assurance of the adequacy of risk 
management, internal control including audit, anti-fraud and the financial reporting frameworks. 
The Audit Committee also approves the Annual Accounts and receives regular reports on the 
work of the external auditor. The Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee are reproduced at 
Appendix 1 for information.   
 
2. Membership 
2.1. Details of the Committee members are in Table 1. They have a wide range of skills and 
bring both technical and professional experience to the role. The independent chair is a 
qualified accountant with wide experience in the private and public sector.  
 
        Table 1 

Member Role 
Mr. John Morley Independent Chair 
Cllr. George Cooper Deputy Chair 
Cllr Tony Egington Member 
Cllr Mary O’Connor Member  
Cllr. Elizabeth Kemp Member 

 
 
2.2. During the course of meeting members, they were briefed on relevant issues in relation to 
local government accounts, External Audit, Internal Audit, Use of Resources, Anti-Fraud 
arrangements, and risk management. 
 
3. Internal Control 
3.1. In compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (and 2006 amendment), the 
Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of internal control by receiving regular 
reports from those areas that contribute to the control framework, specifically; 

• Internal Audit; 
• External Audit 
• Risk Management; 
• Anti Fraud activities; 
• Annual Governance Statement steering group. 

 
3.2. Most of these activities were reported on at every meeting and the Committee’s 
involvement has contributed to a score at level 3 for Internal Control, in the Use of Resources. 
 
3.3. The Committee received regular reports from the Annual Governance Statement Steering 
Group, which reviews and challenges the assurances used to support the Annual Governance 
Statement that accompanies the statutory accounts. It also reviewed the resultant draft Annual 
Governance Statement 2008-9 and recommended its approval to the Leader and Chief 
Executive and will be asked to do the same for 200-10. 
 
4. Risk Management 
4.1. Regular reports on the Council’s corporate risks are produced and presented to the Audit 
Committee, which presents a further challenge to the identified risks. 

Page 222



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

 
4.2. The committee received assurance that the Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG) 
continued to meet regularly and challenge and review the risks and mitigation strategies.  
During the year the committee sought and received further clarification of the internal reporting 
structure within the council. 
 
4.3. All corporate risks have a Risk Management Action Plan, which is effectively a strategy for 
reducing the effect of the risk. 
 
5. Internal Audit 
5.1. The Council’s Internal Audit is mainly provided by an in-house team, with IT audit 
outsourced to a private firm.  Staffing and resources have continued to improve with 95% of the 
plan completed to draft stage by the end of May 2010. High levels of assurance are key to the 
production of the Head of Audit’s assurance statement, which in turn supports the Annual 
Governance Statement. During the year 99% of audit recommendations were accepted, against 
a target of 95% and an improvement of 1% over the previous year. Acceptance and 
implementation of audit recommendations is a key element of improving overall control. 
Implementation rates of over 80% were achieved at first follow up and the committee continues 
to present a challenge where recommendations have been outstanding for long periods of time. 
 
5.2. During the year, the Audit Committee received regular updates on performance and 
summaries of audit reports. Their input has been fundamental in raising the profile of Internal 
Audit and its important role in assisting management in the Council. Senior officers are required 
to provide a commentary on the actions they are taking where a report received no or limited 
assurance and the Committee can, if it considers it necessary, ask officers to appear before it. 
The Committee also invited the Director of Education and Children’s Services to attend one of 
its meetings to discuss the issues around the control issues and action plan at Hillingdon Grid 
for Learning. 
 
5.3. The audit plan and strategy approved by the Committee for 2010-11 is based on a risk 
based methodology adopted two years ago. Using this methodology the highest risked-ranked 
audits are undertaken each year with the risks being re-evaluated annually to take account of 
emerging and receding issues. 
 
5.4. In line with CIPFA guidance, an annual review of the effectiveness of the systems of 
Internal Audit was undertaken. This year, having previously conducted a self-assessment, a 
review by a committee member and a peer review by another authority, a self assessment has 
again been carried out. The service was found to be largely compliant and minor improvements 
will be actioned in the forthcoming year.   
 
6. Additional Financial Assurance 
6.1. The banking crisis continued to have an effect on the finance of all areas of government 
and during the year the committee received reports on the Treasury Management and 
Investment Strategy.  
 
6.2. The committee also asked for assurances that the budget process operated effectively and 
were presented with a paper in March 2010. 
 

Page 223



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

7. Anti-Fraud 
7.1. During the year, the Audit Committee received summarised reports of the outcome of 
Internal Audit investigations into Fraud and Irregularity.  
 
7.2. The Committee reviewed an amended whistelblowing policy in December 2009. 
 
7.3. Fourteen investigations were carried out into fraud or irregularities and these have been 
reported to the committee in updates throughout the year. Largely they have fallen into four 
categories: 

• No issue at the conclusion of the investigation. 
• Issues to be addressed by management action 
• Disciplinary issues 
• Prosecutions 

 
7.4. Internal Audit has an established protocol with the Housing Benefit Fraud Team which 
makes full use of the skills in both teams and facilitates in-house prosecutions. During the year 
one prosecution case started in 2008-9 reached court and the staff member was convicted. One 
case started in 2009-10 reached court in May 2010 and again there was a successful 
conviction. 
 
7.5. Larger investigations continue to account for a significant proportion of the total time for all 
investigations. 
 
8. External Audit 
8.1. The external auditors have attended each meeting of the committee.  The Head of Audit 
continues to meet with Deloitte’s Audit Manager to discuss the respective approaches to audit 
and how co-operation could increase the reliance they placed on our work. This continues to be 
useful and the relationship is working well. Deloitte are currently reviewing Internal Audit files for 
their 2009-10 audit and we expect that they will be able to place reliance on the work. 
Representatives from both Deloitte and the Audit Commission have attended Audit Committee 
meetings to present various reports and answer questions. The Chairman of the Audit 
Committee has met the Deloitte auditors independently, in keeping with good governance 
arrangements.  
 
9. Annual Accounts and Financial Reporting 
9.1. The Audit Committee approved the 2008/09 Statement of Accounts and Pension fund 
Annual Report in June 2009, an auditor’s report on the statement of Accounts in September 
2009 and the Annual Audit letter and Final Reports on the audit of accounts in December 2009.   
 
9.2. The final use of resources report was presented to the committee in September 2010. 
 
9.3. The Committee have maintained an active interest in accounting treasury management 
issues. Reports have been received on Treasury Management Practices and on the conversion 
to International Accounting Standards. 
 
9.4. In support of 2009-10 work, the committee received an Audit and Inspection plan from 
Deloitte in March 2010.  
 
 

Page 224



Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART 1 – MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS 

 

10. Committee Training and Development 
10.1. The Committee membership was unchanged during the year, with most members serving 
for at least their second term, which provided good continuity and members were able to 
effectively challenge papers brought before them. An audit Committee workshop facilitated by 
the Head of Audit at Southend reviewed the committee’s own effectiveness and produced a 
plan to address minor compliance issues. 
 
11. Conclusion 
11.1. The Audit Committee has made a significant contribution to ensuring that the key 
elements of the Governance Framework are given proper consideration and are appropriately 
challenged. It will continue to develop this role and contribute to strengthen, internal control, risk 
management and governance throughout the authority. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Terms of reference for Audit Committee  
Annual Governance Statement Framework  
 
 

Page 225



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit Committee  28 June 2010 
PART II – MEMBERS ONLY 

 

 

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Update report to the Audit 
Committee on the 2009/10 Audit 

Valuation of Icelandic Investments 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 227



P
age 228



 

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report   1 

Executive summary 

We presented our Planning Report on the 2009/10 audit of London Borough of Hillingdon (“the Authority”) to the Audit Committee on 11 
March 2010.  That report set out our identified key audit risks for the 2009/10 year, one of which was the valuation of Icelandic investments.  
This report sets out the Authority’s position at 31 March 2009, and the latest guidance available in relation to Icelandic investments.  

 Description Detail 
 
31 March 2009 position The Authority held £20 million of investments across two Icelandic banks.  At 31 March a net 

impairment of £4.95 million was recorded in the accounts.  
Page 2 

 
2009/10 events We understand that £5.3 million has been returned to the Authority from Heritable Bank 

during the year.  In applying the latest guidance, the Authority has calculated that the 
impairment held against its Icelandic deposits should be reduced by £0.8 million notional 
interest for the year, and £0.5 million following revised estimates of the future amounts which 
will be received from each bank.  

Page 3 

 
Latest guidance The latest guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

(CIPFA) indicates that the amounts recoverable from Heritable Bank may be 84.98% and 
from Landsbanki may be 94.98% (compared to 80% and 83% respectively at September 
2009). 
Technical guidance on how to account for revisions to the impairments held against Icelandic 
investments has been provided for Authorities to follow, which is outlines on page 4.  
 

Page 3 

 

 

P
age 229



 

2 Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 

1. Icelandic Investments 

Audit Risk 

Specific audit risks are identified during audit planning, and represent key issues of which we are aware which in our view lead to a 
heightened level of risk of misstatement in the Statement of Accounts.  We identified the valuation of Icelandic investments as an audit risk 
with the following explanation: 

• The 2008/09 financial statements included an impairment of approximately £4.95 million in relation to Icelandic investments.  The value of 
the impairment at 31 March 2010 will need to be considered based on the latest available information.  Changes in the value of the 
impairment will need to be accounted for in accordance with technical accounting guidance. In addition, the ongoing accounting treatment 
of the impairment beyond 31 March 2010 is subject to a decision by DCLG.   

This is an issue which involves degrees of uncertainty and some complex technical accounting and disclosures being required.  Our response 
to this risk is to review the Authority’s calculations and assumptions in connection with the impairment of their investments in Icelandic banks.  
We will also review correspondence between the Authority and DCLG on the future accounting treatment.     

2008/09 position 

The 2008/09 Statement of Accounts disclosed that the Authority had £20 million invested in Icelandic banks when they were placed into 
administration.  This consisted of £15 million deposited with Heritable Bank and £5 million with Landsbanki.  The most up to date information 
available at the time of signing those accounts indicated that the Authority could expect £16.15m of these deposits to be returned to it, 
leading to a £3.85 million impairment being required.  The guidance around accounting for the impairment required the Authority to apply a 
‘discounted cash flow’ calculation to which notional interest on the deposits would be applied over time until the matter is finalised.  This 
means that an impairment of £4.98 million was recorded in the Income and Expenditure account, net of £0.65 million notional interest for the 
year. 

Regulations put in place in 2008/09 allowed Authorities to defer the impact of any required impairments on the general fund by reversing the 
cost out of Income and Expenditure and applying it to a Financial Instrument Adjustment Account.   

 

P
age 230



 

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report   3 

1. Icelandic Investments (continued) 

2009/10 update 

We understand from discussions with management and review of Council meeting minutes that the following key events relating to the 
Authority’s Icelandic investments took place during the year: 

• £5.3 million was received in three instalments from Heritable Bank.  This has not yet been audited, but represents a reduction in the 
Council’s exposure.  

• £0.8 million was posted to Income and Expenditure and to the Financial Instrument Adjustment Account to reflect notional interest credits 
on the outstanding balances.  This reduces the effect of the impairment recorded in 2008/09.  

• In applying the guidance described in this document, the Authority has calculated that the impairment reflected in the 2008/09 Statement 
of Accounts should be reduced by £0.5 million.  This has not yet been audited. 

• The Authority applied to DCLG for permission to capitalise its losses in relation to Icelandic investments in order to spread the impact on 
the general fund over a longer time period than would otherwise be possible.  DCLG has turned down the Authority’s request, along with 
those of some other Councils.  We understand that a further application may be made. 

Latest guidance – position in respect of each bank 

Heritable Bank:  The latest guidance is that a total of 84.98% of deposits are expected to be returned from Heritable Bank.  This is an 
improvement from the estimated 80% in September 2009 on which the impairment in the 2008/09 Statement of Accounts was based.   

Landsbanki:  Landsbanki is an Iceland domiciled bank, and the factors behind the expected recovery rate are more complicated than 
Heritable Bank.  Iceland domiciled banks previously indicated that Local Authority investments would be given ‘priority’ status when 
repayments are awarded.  This has come into question in some instances, however the Winding-Up board of Landsbanki does still consider 
Local Authority deposits to hold priority status.  As such, a total of 94.86% of cash is expected to be recovered over the next eight years.   

P
age 231



 

4 Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report 

1. Icelandic Investments (continued) 

Latest guidance – impact on accounts 

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) issued LAAP bulletin 82 ‘Guidance on the impairment of deposits with 
Icelandic Banks’ in May 2009.  An update to this was issued in September 2009, which was used to inform the Authority’s impairment in the 
2008/09 Statement of Accounts.  A further update to the guidance was released in May 2010.  As this is the latest available information, this 
is what we will assess the level of impairment recorded against the investments the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts submitted for audit.  
Should any further guidance become available before the conclusion of our audit, this will also be considered.  

Key points within the guidance are as follows: 

• The amount of each investment assessed as being recoverable is an accounting estimate.  Changes in accounting estimate are 
accounted for in the year in which the estimate is revised, and therefore the 2008/09 accounts should not be restated for any change; 

• Prior to any reassessment, the carrying value of the investments shown on the balance sheet will be the balance at 31 March 2009, plus 
interest credited to the Income and Expenditure account during 2009/10, less any repayments received during 2009/10.  

• The recoverable amount of the carrying value at 31 March 2010 should then be reassessed to the value at that date of the expected future 
cash flows (i.e. the amounts expected to be returned from each bank), discounted at the investment’s original effective interest rate.  

• Authorities will therefore need to re-assess the excepted future cash flows as at 31 March 2010 based on the latest available information.  
Calculations performed for the 2008/09 Statement of Accounts will need amended for any revised estimates as well as actual cash 
movements during 2009/10, as well as the fact that cash flows are one year closer.  

• Accounting standards state that an impairment loss recognised in a particular year can be reversed in a future year where the decrease in 
impairment loss can be ‘related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised’.  The Local Authority Accounting 
Panel has concluded that where, based on the CIPFA guidance, impairment losses are less than previously calculated, they are as a result 
of factors occurring after the impairment was recognised, and the impairment loss should be reversed.  Where the revised estimate of the 
recoverable amount of the investments is less than the carrying amount of the deposit, a further impairment should be recognised.   

We have discussed with the finance team the release of this guidance, which they have confirmed they are aware of and have followed in the 
preparation of the 2009/10 draft accounts.  During our audit processes we will audit the entries made in the accounts against this guidance.  

P
age 232



 

Report to the Audit Committee Planning Report   5 

2. Responsibility statement 

This report should be read in conjunction with the "Briefing on audit matters" and our Planning Report to Audit Committee on the 2009.10 
Audit, both of which were circulated to you on 11 March 2010.  Collectively these set out those audit matters of governance interest which 
have come to our attention during the planning of our audit to date.  Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to 
the board and our final report on the audit will not necessarily be a comprehensive statement of all deficiencies which may exist in internal 
control or of all improvements which may be made. 

This report has been prepared for the Board of Directors, as a body, and we therefore accept responsibility to you alone for its contents.  We 
accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other 
purpose. It should not be made available to any other parties without our prior written consent. 

 

 

Deloitte LLP 

Chartered Accountants  

28 June 2010

P
age 233



Page 234



 

 

 

 

Page 235



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

Page 237

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 238

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meetings held on 11 March and 13 May 2010
	13.05.10

	5 Approval of the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts
	Statement of Accounts

	6 Indicative Stage Use of Resources Report
	Final Indicative UoR Report June 2010

	7 Head of Audit Annual Assurance Statement
	8 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of the Systems of Internal Audit
	9 Fraud Awareness Survey 2010
	10 Consolidated Fraud Report
	11 Review Progress on Implementing Actions Arising from Committee Self Assessment
	12 Update on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
	13 Work Programme 2010/11
	14 Report to Council on Work of Audit Committee
	16 Key Financial Audit Risk Relating to the Valuation of Icelandic Investments
	17 Internal Audit Progress Report

